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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FFr  FEFT EEFT  BETFT | BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
E44 Results
G =peagl Profit before taxation 536,923 610,526 593,585 472,187 509,973
SR Income tax expense (20,033) (32,436) (22,099) (36,125) (14,042)
KT REEWS Profit attributable to
gl shareholders of the Company 516,890 578,090 571,486 436,062 495,931
RATRRESLEF
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
;’-I%(f‘lf—igUSAND
600,000 578,090 -
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-
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= Ordinary business A& %7 = Dilution in shareholding IR #E#%

4 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited




hFRREE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
BT BT JEEFT BB FoT BEFT
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ME BN HRE Property, plant and equipment 5,099 8,509 13,279 12,396 14,849
FRELE Right-of-use assets 14,283 13,999 13,955 13,483 14,158
- ES Investment properties 169,818 169,632 159,415 173,113 175,626
YN Associates 4,842,032 4,988,673 5,532,229 6,117,020 6,778,417
BATER AR Financial assets at fair value through
PEREHSREE other comprehensive income - 570,417 423,343 361,001 805,914
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 503,514 - - - =
HEEN AT ENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 3,129 - - -
BREBHSREE Held-to-maturity financial assets 3,119 - - - =
BEERENEFER Credit-impaired loans to customers
K EUHE and interest receivable 39 - - - =
BiRREE Reinsurance assets 213 1,546 1,029 2,158 3,722
H it R Other debtors 180 6 15,777 16,826 -
RITETT Bank balances - 227,800 506,009 299,977 =
BIEREHEE Deferred income tax assets 10,150 535 451 170 19
TEEE Current assets 1,693,972 1,312,644 1,037,740 1,409,720 1,880,550
mENA R Current liabilities (467,330) (323,516) (254,225) (611,849) |  (833,701)
rBEH Insurance contracts (37,659) (17,482) (19,316) (34,898) (60,678)
HEAR Lease liabilities - - (65) Z (833)
BITER Bank borrowings (198,131) (199,966) (199,965) - =
Wﬁﬁ%%%m Loan from the controlling shareholder - - (149,943) (99,985) -
FIEFEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities (28,397) (24,106) (36,376) (61,041) (63,462)
EESE Net assets 6,510,902 6,731,820 7,043,337 7,598,091 8,714,581
N Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377
HiuFEEe Other reserves 1,628,236 1,504,672 1,393,720 1,512,068 | 2,285,582
RE & Retained profits
%ﬁ/}ﬁﬂx g Proposed dividend 47,781 59,726 59,726 59,726 71,671
Hi Others 3,119,508 3,452,045 3,874,514 4,310,920 4,641,951
AATREREN Total equity attributable to
AL shareholders of the Company 6,510,902 6,731,820 7,043,337 7,598,091 | 8,714,581

AR AR PE AL R 20 40 AR
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
ﬁaf'lié_EUSAND
9,000,000 8,714,581
-

7,000,000 1
5,000,000 L
3,000,000 L
1,000,000 L

0 1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

IRAMRREMNEKE 2021 FEETS
FREANIRERSE -

| am pleased to announce that the Group
has achieved the expected stable full-

year results in 2021.

F% ®IE
Chairman YAN Zheng

20215 - B RRIEARITHEELIRE
B 2REEERBDARKS  KEERZE
MERBORISHIZEER  REREEBEME
BIRIR S R E KRB S AT R B B M HEE I

BPIBEIR

[ BE20214F » BAERFEHEL - /5 M6
BER RMEBBETY  BEERS

M BEWARFEER  BHERLEN
BENRR - AEEFAKNER TEERA
MBEEFERLEER  SEEERAB
785BI R ARNBIRE ([BRER]) E
mF & 495938 L EFEDRI LA
12.8% % 13.7%  GFREARZF EFA13.7% F
B 83.031 °

B{=5&EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

In 2021, with multiple waves of coronavirus across the
globe, worldwide economic activity remains weak, and the
slow economic recovery coupled with continued epidemic
prevention and control measures have continued to bring
significant challenges and unprecedented operational
uncertainties to the global economy and businesses
environment.

OUR PERFORMANCE

Looking back on 2021, with firm confidence and clear
strategic positioning, we acted pragmatically and focused
on the development direction, conducted our core business
prudently in order to strive to achieve operating results
and growth results. The Group successfully achieved a year-
on-year growth in both operating income and after-tax
profit during the year and recorded an operating income of
HK$217.85 million and profit attributable to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) of HK$495.93 million,
increased by 12.8% and 13.7% respectively when compared
to the previous year. Basic earnings per share increased by
13.7% to 83.03 HK cents.
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REBEFEE  HMARERIKE T 2020FE R
HIRR B REE 101l - R EBRIBTE K A]
BEMRR - B BEFHETRENF
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2021 FERAKBEREE 1240 -

AREBMNBEEFEER - 1H2021F12A
31 HAE B ESRE B 96.7 87T © tLE 2020 F
FEABEE84118TT EFH15.1% ©

EFBEBRRITROERAA ([ER] - &
AEMBARERBITERAA (
NMOBEPFIBEBRRITRNDABER A A ([JRIR])
SEAIEFREE]) AAEEEEENS
RIEE BIRP 2001 FERAEBEED
91.4% ° NEE N 2021 FHEEHREFF 12
i 1B 5 45,808 & T ¢ LB 2020 FE A E
44,478 BT EF3% ©

EfEENEEAERIGERER &
ERNFERIDEEAREEET - 72021
F12A3MH EFEENREEHBAR
#£10,071.51870 ° LB 2020 FFRM AR EE
9,522.8187C EF+5.8% °

R2021F12A31H " HPIWMETEREE
EMAEEBEER69.5% ° F22021F12 A
31H ARFNERFEEMEE LK 1459
JC  HA77.2% K EERAEE o

FTHREHES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued]

During the year under review, we paid a final dividend for
2020 of 10 HK cents per share to Shareholders, bringing
stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders. In addition,
the Directors continue to pay attention to Shareholders’
demands and strive to improve Shareholders’ returns, and
have resolved to recommend a final dividend for 2021 of 12
HK cents per share.

Total assets of the Group continued to grow and recorded
an increase of 15.1% to HK$9.67 billion at 31 December 2021
as compared to HK$8.41 billion at the end of 2020.

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”, together with
its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB”")
and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"), are collectively
referred to as “XIB Group”) is the most significant financial
investment of the Group and has contributed about 91.4%
of the results of the Group in 2021. The Group's share of
profit after tax of XIB Group was HK$458.08 million in 2021,
an increase of 3% as compared to HK$444.78 million in 2020.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its balance sheet
with total assets successfully breaking through RMB trillion
at the end of the year. Total assets of XIB Group recorded
an increase of 5.8% to RMB1,007.15 billion at 31 December
2021 as compared to RMB952.28 billion at the end of 2020.

The total assets of our banking business accounted for
69.5% of the Group’s total assets at 31 December 2021. The
net asset value per share of the Company amounted to
HK$14.59 at 31 December 2021, about 77.2% came from the
investment in XIB.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued]

As being one of the very few banks in Mainland China that
owns subsidiary banks both in Hong Kong and Macau, XIB
continues to leverage its advantages of branch network
in the Greater China region in order to broaden financial
services products and provide customised solutions to
targeted clients. XIB Group will adhere to the business
philosophy of technology empowerment, characteristic
and green development, implement the development of
green finance and accelerate the issuance of green credit.
XIB Group will continue to expand its customer base of
local small and micro business owners. We expect that our
banking business will continue to maintain a stable financial
performance and achieve sustainable and reasonable value
growth in the long term.

XIB was ranked 158th in total assets and 180th in Tier-one
Capital in the 2021 Top 1000 World Banks announced by
The Banker. XIB had been rated as one of the top 200 for 5
consecutive years.

During the year under review, we continued to pull
resources together to vigorously expand the insurance
business and strived to improve the quality and profitability
of the underlying business. The premium growth momentum
continues for both Hong Kong and Macau insurance
businesses. The total gross insurance premiums increased
by 21.9% to HK$196.16 million in 2021. We have achieved an
underwriting profit after charging management expenses
for underwriting business of HK$13.27 million in 2021, a
decrease of 7.5% as compared to HK$14.35 million in 2020.
We will continue to increase the premium size as well as to
improve the business quality.

The management team of our insurance business will
continue to allocate sufficient resources and focus on
“meticulous management”, in order to identify new
opportunities and keep improving the quality and
profitability of business in the increasingly competitive
market environment, whilst endeavour to implement the
anticipated business plan in order to enhance sustainable
business development and achieve a better financial
performance.
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FTHREHES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PROSPECTS

The erratic global coronavirus pandemic development due
to the spread of mutated viruses continues to impact market
development and economic recovery in general. With the
challenges of the macroeconomic situation, the Group will
continuously and closely monitor the current complicated
and volatile situations that present both opportunities
and challenges, while seizing market opportunities,
striving to make innovation and maintaining its epidemic
prevention and control efforts. The Group will focus on
developing our core businesses, adhering to prudent
financial management strategy and strengthening our
financial services investments in the Greater China region.
We will also continue to explore new market opportunities
to achieve income diversification and improve the financial
performance of the Group, in order to create and realise
the long-term value to uphold the expectations of the
stakeholders.

Finally, | wish to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt appreciation to my fellow board members for their
invaluable advice and support and thank the management
team and all our staff for their commitment and dedicated
services during the epidemic.

YAN Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

More than two years into the pandemic, the highly
infectious coronavirus variant continued to put pressure on
the global economy. The lingering impact of the pandemic
affected the financial performance globally. At the same
time, major central banks are increasingly under pressure to
enact expansionary policies and raise interest rates.

Operating Results

The Group recorded a profit attributable to the Shareholders
of HK$495.93 million in 2021, representing an increase
of HK$59.87 million or 13.7%, as compared to HK$436.06
million in 2020. Basic earnings per share for the year was
83.03 HK cents, an increase of 10.02 HK cents or 13.7%, as
compared to 73.01 HK cents in 2020.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes
the engagement of banking business through its major
associates, XIB Group in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively, and the provision of micro credit
business in Mainland China.

The Group’s financial services business reported a profit
after tax of HK$467.65 million in 2021, an increase of 15.2%
as compared to HK$405.99 million in 2020. Such increase
in the results was primarily originated from the increase in
share of results of XIB Group during the year and the loss on
dilution of shareholding interest in XIB in 2020.

Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its
well-established branch network and technological
infrastructures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business (Continued)

XIB Group reported a profit after tax for the Group’s
reporting purpose of RMB4.34 billion, an increase of
RMBO0.29 billion or 7.1%, as compared to RMB4.05 billion
in 2020. Such increase was mainly driven by the overall
decrease in expected credit losses and other credit
impairment charges in 2021 as compared with 2020 . Net
interest income grew slightly by 1.6% in 2021 as compared
with 2020 and non-interest income decreased by 30.7% in
2021 due to the decrease in net fee and commission income
and increase in foreign exchange loss.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its total assets with
satisfactory growth in both loan books and customers’
deposits at 31 December 2021. At 31 December 2021,
the total assets grew by 5.8% to RMB1,007.15 billion as
compared to RMB952.28 billion at the end of 2020. Gross
loans to customers were RMB567.07 billion, an increase of
7.8% as compared to RMB526.2 billion at the end of 2020.
XIB achieved a continuous and stable growth in its loan
portfolios while upholding good asset quality. The gross
impaired loans and advances as a percentage of gross loans
and advances to customers was 1.06%, which was lower
than the average ratio of commercial banks. Total deposits
from customers were up 2.5% to RMB671.5 billion from
RMB655.41 billion at the end of 2020.

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, had been engaged in the provision of
micro loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and
individuals in Sanming City, Fujian Province. Sanyuan Micro
Credit continues to proactively apply all measures to recover
its impaired loans and entrust the property rights exchange
centre to list and transfer the impaired loans package.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Micro Credit Business [Continued)

Sanyuan Micro Credit recovered the principal and interest
income of impaired loans of RMB9.77 million and RMB3.19
million respectively, as compared to RMB12.33 million and
RMBO0.9 million respectively in 2020. The impaired loan
balances at 31 December 2021 were RMB172.41 million, a
decrease of 22.2% from RMB221.64 million at the end of
2020, which was mainly due to the write-off of impaired
loan principal. Sanyuan Micro Credit recorded a profit after
tax of RMB11.9 million (equivalent to HK$14.46 million) in
2021, a decrease of 9.1% as compared to RMB13.09 million
(equivalent to HK$14.74 million) in 2020.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded gross insurance premiums of
HK$196.16 million in 2021, increased by 21.9% as compared
to HK$160.86 million in 2020. The Macau insurance business
has outperformed the Hong Kong insurance business once
again during the year. The gross insurance premiums of
Macau insurance business registered a 15.2% growth to
HK$109.68 million supported by high-quality bancassurance
business, and the gross insurance premiums of Hong
Kong insurance business recorded an increase of 31.7% to
HK$86.48 million.

Underwriting profit before deducting management
expenses for underwriting business decreased by 3.1%
to HK$23.98 million as compared to HK$24.74 million in
2020. Min Xin Insurance recorded an underwriting profit of
HK$13.27 million in 2021, a decrease of 7.5% as compared
to HK$14.35 million in 2020, after charging management
expenses for underwriting business.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$15.08
million in 2021, a decrease of 2.7% as compared to a profit
after tax of HK$15.49 million in 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in revaluation gain of investment properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business (Continued)

The management team of Min Xin Insurance will continue
to broaden distribution channels and identify new business
opportunities, and at the same time will make great
efforts to implement the anticipated business plan in an
increasingly competitive market to achieve a better financial
performance and provide satisfactory returns to the
shareholders.

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”)

At 31 December 2021, the Shanghai Composite Index
increased by about 4.8% as compared to that at the end of
2020. The closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange increased from RMB4.47 per share at 31
December 2020 to RMB9.69 per share at 31 December 2021.
The fair value of the Huaneng A-Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
stood at HK$805.91 million (equivalent to RMB658.45
million). In 2021, the Group recorded a gain of HK$444.91
million (2020: loss of HK$62.34 million) arising from the net
movement in its fair value change in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling).

The Group aims to hold Huaneng A-Shares in the long term.
Huaneng A-Shares continues to contribute a satisfactory
dividend yield to the Group. During 2021, Huaneng declared
a final dividend for 2020 of RMBO0.18 per share. The Group
recorded dividend income totalling RMB12.23 million
(equivalent to HK$14.69 million) in 2021, as compared to
the final dividend for 2019 of RMBO0.135 per share totalling
RMB9.17 million (equivalent to HK$10.05 million) recorded
by the Group in 2020.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”) (Continued)

Huaneng has announced its 2021 annual results under the
PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue increased
by 20.8% and the operating expenses increased by 46.8%
as compared to 2020, primarily attributable to the sharp
increase in thermal coal prices. Its loss attributable to
shareholders was RMB10.26 billion in 2021, as compared
to profit attributable to shareholders of RMB4.56 billion
in 2020. Losses per share was RMBO0.79 for the year under
review, as compared to earnings per share of RMB0.18 in
2020. The board of directors of Huaneng proposed to declare
no cash dividend for each ordinary share of Huaneng held
by shareholders.

Property Investment

The property investment business of the Group represents
the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2021, the property investment business reported
a profit after tax of HK$2.99 million, a decrease of 22.7%
as compared to HK$3.87 million in 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in the revaluation gain of investment properties.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
remained soft in 2021. The leased commercial properties
and parking spaces in Fuzhou (the “Fuzhou Property”) of
the Group maintained full occupancy at 31 December 2021
and the monthly rental of new leases also maintained at the
same level of expired leases. The Group recorded a rental
income of RMB3.57 million in 2021, increased by 0.3% as
compared to RMB3.56 million in 2020. A leased commercial
property was reclassified to owner-occupied during the year.
At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Fuzhou Property
was HK$55.13 million, a decrease of 5% as compared to the
fair value of HK$58.01 million at the end of 2020. The Group
recorded a fair value loss of HK$0.18 million, as compared
to a fair value gain of HK$2.61 million in 2020. A fair value
loss after deferred tax of HK$0.1 million was recognised in
2021, as compared to a fair value gain after deferred tax of
HKS$1.12 million in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position.

Net Asset Value per Share

Based on 597,257,252 shares in issue at 31 December 2021
(2020: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset value per share was
HKS$14.59 at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$12.72).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2021, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$958.67 million (2020: HK$807.77 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was 11% (2020: 10.6%). At 31 December
2021, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group
were HK$1,880.55 million (2020: HK$1,409.72 million) and
HK$833.7 million (2020: HK$611.85 million) respectively with
a current ratio of 2.3 (2020: 2.3).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group's
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of
HK$598.51 million, comprised HK$498.51 million granted by
local banks and HK$100 million granted by the controlling
shareholder, increased by 14.7% as compared to HK$521.6
million at the end of 2020. Based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan facilities, all outstanding
amount will mature and is repayable within one year. These
loans are in Hong Kong dollars and subject to floating
interest rates. The effective interest rate at 31 December
2021 ranged from 2.1% to 2.4% (2020: 1.5% to 2.5%) per
annum.

In addition, the Group had withdrawable revolving bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$67.74 million at 31
December 2021, of which HK$28.36 million was secured
by the self-used office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the revolving bank loans balance
of HK$87.89 million were secured by the self-use office
building owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong
with a net book value of approximately HK$8.89 million
at 31 December 2021. The fair value of the property was
HK$290 million (2020: HK$290 million) at 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of credit
issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of a reinsurance
company that has entered into the Non-life Reinsurance
Facility with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
that wholly-owned subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of
HKS$15 million (2020: HK$15.15 million) as a collateral for the
standby letter of credit at 31 December 2021.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were pledged
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

On 30 December 2021, the Company has entered into a facility
agreement with a bank whereby the bank has agreed to
make available to the Company a credit facility in a maximum
aggregate amount of up to HK$200 million. The credit facility
was secured by a standby letter of credit to be issued in favour
of the bank. Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company
has drawn down a fixed rate three-year term loan of HK$198.6
million and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
Mainland China has placed a three-year bank deposit of
RMB200 million (equivalent to HK$244.79 million) as a collateral
for a standby letter of credit issued in favour of the bank.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings divided by total net assets) was 6.9% (2020:
6.9%).

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2021, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$904.14 million (2020:
HKS$1,175.62 million) of which 17.6% were in Hong Kong
dollars, 78.2% in Renminbi and 4.2% in other currencies
(2020: 17.7% were in Hong Kong dollars, 80.3% in Renminbi
and 2% in other currencies).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority,
Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary, shall maintain
at all times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16
million in the name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as a statutory
deposit. At 31 December 2021, Min Xin Insurance has placed
fixed deposits of HK$16 million (2020: HK$16 million) in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment
of such requirements. That subsidiary has also maintained
bank deposits of MOP18.43 million (equivalent to HK$17.89
million) and HK$62.47 million (2020: MOP15.39 million,
equivalent to HK$14.94 million and HK$42.03 million) for
fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance (Decree-Law no. 27/97/M of 30 June) (the “Macau
Insurance Ordinance”).

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, thus the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly
arises from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi. As the Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi are
both under managed floating systems, the Group reviews
and monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.2 million (2020: HK$0.25
million).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2021, the Group had 68 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
employees included but not limited to retirement benefits
and medical scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges
and skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and
workshops for our employees as well as encourages them
to attend seminars and trainings with topics of relevance
to their jobs and duties sponsored by the Group. The Group
also organises recreational activities such as Christmas party,
monthly birthday party and company trip.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we are
committed to establishing good long-term business
relationships with our brokers and agents. Insurance
products together with the pricing philosophy and other
guidelines will be provided to brokers and agents if needed.
Our staff of business department visit our brokers and
agents regularly to maintain good relationships. Our claims
and customer service staff swiftly and carefully manage and
respond to our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to
the insurance products and other related matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting and use
of public transportation to reduce energy consumption. In
addition, we proactively encourage staff to consume less
energy, water and paper, by applying such as e-filings and
paper recycling in our offices. Details are disclosed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued
by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance
risk and financial risks exposures are set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks
and financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or any other factors,
which could have a material and adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are
highly regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business
in Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation
from Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetaria De
Macau respectively and are subject to the requirements
imposed by Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetéria
De Macau from time to time. Authorisation will only be
granted to insurers when certain requirements under the
Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Insurance Ordinance”) and the Macau Insurance
Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations may restrict the operations of the
Group’s insurance business and requires the Group to
deploy significant resources and to devote considerable
time to such compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules
and regulations may be introduced from time to time and
such changes may have an adverse effect on the insurance
business of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau.

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial asset
of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng A-Shares
is affected by various factors which are beyond the Group’s
control, included but not limited to the results of operations,
liquidity position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at
its fair value at the end of each reporting period and the
change in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity. The fair value
of Huaneng A-Shares is measured with reference to the
closing bid price of A-Share of Huaneng. The closing bid
price of A-Share of Huaneng may be volatile and is affected
by various factors which are beyond the Group’s control,
included but not limited to the results of operations of
Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in the stock
market and changes in economic conditions of Mainland
China.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate depends on
various factors, including but not limited to prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties
at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
There is no assurance that changes in market conditions will
continue to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar
level or at same level, or there will be no further decline in
the fair value of the Group's investment properties.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YAN Zheng, aged 60, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of both
the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and an Authorised Representative of the Company since
April 2018. He holds a Bachelor degree in Finance from
the Department of Economics of Xiamen University
and a Postgraduate degree in Economics (Economics
Management) from the Party School of the Central
Committee of C.P.C.. He is a Senior Economist in Mainland
China and has been appointed as a member of Fujian
Provincial Senior Economist Evaluation Committee since
2006. He is currently a deputy to the 13th National People’s
Congress, a member of the 12th Fujian Provincial Committee
of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
("CPPCC"”) and a vice chairman of Economic Committee of
the Fujian Provincial Committee of CPPCC. He has extensive
experience in financial institutions management, corporate
management and capital operations.

He was the deputy director of the Department of Education
from 1987 to 1991, the deputy director of the Rural
Commercial Credit Department from 1991 to 1995, and
successively served as the deputy general manager and the
general manager of the International Business Department
from 1995 to 1996 at Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of
China. He was the deputy general manager from 1996 to
2000 and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee from
1998 to 2000 at Xiamen Branch of Agricultural Bank of China.
He served as the deputy general manager, a member of the
Party Committee and the secretary of the Commission for
Discipline Inspection from 2000 to 2005 at Fuzhou Branch of
F B R & E B T2 A 7] (China Great Wall Asset Management
Corporation*, the predecessor of China Great Wall Asset
Management Co., Ltd.). He was the deputy director-general
and a member of the Party Committee from 2005 to 2009,
and the director-general, the vice chairman and the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee from 2009 to 2016 of
Fujian Rural Credit Union. He served as the secretary of
the Party Committee of Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd. from 2017 to 2020. He was the secretary of the Party
Committee, the chairman of the board of dicrectors and the
legal representative of Fujian Investment & Development
Group Co., Ltd., which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company from 2016 to 2022.



EENSHREIEZASEABE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MTES

BRANFEE 595% 0 BE2020F 12 A B EZ T
BARRNRRTES EFLRETELREBE
EZEENE M EREESBREELR
REELBEEREERBARBBARERE
MARBRECEEREXEERBFLEM o
EEFEAEESRSFANRE - 4K E
NEBNITBECXMBEEIE B2
ENTHRENBEERUNDEREERE
K I REAKRERBEEBEEREMT
RABELZZENEGEHE  ZRRALRATH
ZIERRAR R o

f, 5 1990 F £ 2002 F L E (T RIES MK
EEMERE  BTERIE  TERIBERE
¥EEIER - b 820029 2007 FEEE
EAGMesmERPLEERERE M
SR EWER - 82007 F £2017F
B ETEREAVRBEEHERFERER
MENGANRERER ° 18 2020 F £ 2021
FEIEEMEEABEEERMNAERAR (&
FIE : 600686) EEEEE - ZRAIAL
HREAERGH ET AR -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Jie, aged 59, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Vice Chairman of the Board and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since December
2020. He holds a Bachelor degree in Agricultural Economics
Management from Fujian Academy of Agriculture and
a Doctor of Management degree in Economics and
Management of Agriculture from Fujian Agriculture and
Forestry University. He is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. He has worked in government finance and corporate
financial management, and has extensive experience
in financial capital management, financial budget
management and corporate financial management. He is
currently a member of the Party Committee and the Chief
Accountant of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd., which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

He worked in Fujian Provincial Department of Finance from
1990 to 2002, and successively served as staff member,
senior staff member and principal staff member of the
Agricultural Finance Department and deputy director of
Agriculture Department. He served as the director-general of
the Management Center of Fujian Provincial Certified Public
Accountants and the secretary-general of Fujian Provincial
Association of Certified Public Accountants from 2002 to
2007. He successively served as a director of the Accounting
Delegation Department and Rural Comprehensive Reform
Department of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance from
2007 to 2017. He was the chairman of the Supervisory Board
of Xiamen King Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code:
600686), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from 2020 to 2021.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Yu, aged 58, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the General Manager, and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since September 2018. He joined the Company
as the Executive Deputy General Manager in August 2018.
He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Water Resources
and Hydropower Engineering from Department of Civil
Engineering and Architecture of Fuzhou University. He is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial technology, capital operations and
financing re-guarantee. He is the chairman and the general
manager of Vigour Fine Company Limited, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also a director
of Samba Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

He worked in Fujian Branch of China Construction Bank
from July 1985 to April 2000, and successively served as a
staff member of the Investment Department and the Sales
Department, the deputy manager of the Sales and Credit
Department, the manager of the Business Development
Department, and the section chief of the Asset Preservation
Department. He successively served as the deputy general
manager of the Private Business Department, the principal
of the Credit Management Department and the deputy
general manager of the Office Management Department
of Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from April 2000
to July 2004. He was the general manager of Gulou Sub-
branch, Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from July
2004 to April 2007. He worked in Fujian Rural Credit Union
from April 2007 to February 2018, and successively served
as the deputy director of the Technology Department from
April 2007 to December 2007, the director of the Technology
Department and the general manager of the Technology
Service Center from February 2008 to September 2009,
the director of Technology Department, the general
manager of Technology Service Center and the director
of Ningde Office from September 2009 to June 2011, the
director of the Technology Department and the general
manager of the Technology Service Center from June 2011
to February 2015, the general manager of the Technology
Department (Technology Service Center) and the Innovation
Development Department from February 2015 to February
2018. He was the general manager from February 2018 to
August 2018 and the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative from February 2018 to
November 2019 of BEEMKEEBEREREET LA
(Fujian Provincial Mintou Financing Re-guarantee Company
Limited*, siREEET/ N NEXERBERBREELR)
He was also the chairman of the board of directors and the
legal representative of {224 B g EER AR A A (Fujian
Provincial Agricultural Financing Guarantee Company
Limited®, FIfEIE & REEEERERAF]) from February
2018 to September 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 47, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He
is currently the managing director of Citychamp Dartong
Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”, Stock code:
600067), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He joined Citychamp Dartong in December 2004 as the
deputy managing director and then has been appointed as
the managing director since April 2006. He is currently the
vice chairman of Fujian Youth Chamber of Commerce, the
vice chairman of Development Committee of Fujian Real
Estate Association and a member of the Standing Committee
of Fuzhou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YANG Jingchao, aged 56, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2018.
He holds a Bachelor degree in International Finance from
Department of Finance of Renmin University of China and
a Master of Business Administration of La Trobe University.
He is an economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial investment and capital operations.
He is currently the general manager of Finance Capital
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group
Co., Ltd. and a director of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
both are the controlling shareholders of the Company. He is
also the executive director, the legal representative and the
general manager of 1224 &% % & B R & £ 2 Al (Fujian
Futou Investment Company Limited*), a subsidiary of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., and a director of
Huafu Securities Co., Ltd. and Haixia Goldenbridge Insurance
Co., Ltd..

He successively served as a staff member of the Finance
Department, the Foreign Exchange Department and
the Fund Management Department from July 1987
to September 1992, senior staff member of the Fund
Management Department from September 1992 to January
1994 and the deputy manager of the Treasury Department
from January 1994 to December 1995 of Fujian Investment
and Enterprise Corporation. He served as the deputy general
manager of the International Finance Department of Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation from
December 1995 to April 2003. He was the deputy general
manager of the Financial Investment Department of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation from April
2003 to September 2005 and from September 2006 to May
2009 respectively. He served as the deputy general manager
of F/B A MEBEH LR A R AT (CNOOC Fujian New Energy
Company Limited*) from May 2009 to January 2015. He was
also the general manager and the legal representative of 18
EHEYRAR AR (Fujian Zhongmin Logistics Company
Limited*) from March 2012 to January 2015. He served as
the deputy general manager of the Integrated Investment
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd. from January 2015 to October 2016. He was the general
manager from October 2016 to September 2018 and was
also the secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman
of the board of directors and the legal representative from
August 2017 to September 2018 of B4 A B E S R
=B B RN A (Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental
Zone Financial Holding Group Company Limited¥).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 70, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently
the guest senior lecturer of Xiamen International Bank
Co., Ltd. and the senior advisor to the board of directors of
Luso International Banking Limited. He is a fellow member
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 40 years' extensive
experience in banking and finance. He is also a director of
the Macao Chamber of Commerce. He was the chairman of
the Supervisory Board of Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd. from 2013 to 2021. He has a Master of Science degree
in Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong
Kong Baptist University.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 51, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee since April 2017 and
has also been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since April 2018. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons)
in Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a MBA degree in 2003. He is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. He was the executive director
and the chief financial officer of Greenland Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings)
Limited, Stock code: 337) from 2011 to 2012 and from 2009
to 2012 respectively, the group financial controller of Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 2689) from
2007 to 2008, and the group financial controller and the
company secretary of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 882) from 2000 to 2003, all these companies
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 56, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He
is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and a
China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry
of Justice of the PRC. He is currently a partner of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1991. He was the chief representative of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo Beijing Office. He has accumulated extensive
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and commercial law and has been involved in various listing
and acquisition transactions of Chinese H Share companies
and red chip companies. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of SSY Group Limited (Stock code:
2005), China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock code:
1898) and China Medical System Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 867). He was an independent non-executive director
of China Communications Construction Company Limited
(Stock code: 1800) from January 2011 to November 2017
and China National Materials Company Limited (Stock
code: 1893) from July 2007 to May 2018, respectively. All
these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, aged 51, is the Deputy General
Manager and Financial Controller of the Company. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, the Chief Representative of the Fuzhou
Representative Office of the Company, and a director of Min
Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Company in April 2000 and was appointed
as Deputy Financial Controller in July 2004, Financial
Controller in January 2008, Deputy General Manager in
March 2014 respectively. He was the Company Secretary
of the Company from May 2019 to August 2021. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting, and is a Certified
Public Accountant, a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Senior Associate of Australian and
New Zealand Institute of Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He
is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
a Technical Specialist of the Institute of Risk Management.
Before joining the Company, he had worked for various
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr WU Xubin, aged 44, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 2017. He is also a director and
the Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, which holds a general insurance licence and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He holds a
Master Degree in Engineering, Economics and Management
from University of Oxford and is certified as a Construction
Project Manager (Senior) by China National Offshore Qil
Corporation. He has extensive experience in comprehensive
corporate management and served as a corporate controller
for 10 years. He served as the general manager (controller)
of CNOOC (Ningde) Oil Storage Co., Ltd., CNOOC (Ningde)
Petrochemical Jetty Co., Ltd. and CNOOC Fujian Marketing
Co., Ltd. respectively.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, aged 51, joined the Company as Group
Chief Auditor in January 2018. She is also the supervisor
of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited. She graduated in the major
of finance and accounting from Minjiang University and
in the major of law from East China University of Political
Science and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has over 27 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, accounting, asset management
and financial management. She is also a director of Samba
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and a non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 181), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to maintaining and upholding high standards
of corporate governance with a view to achieving business
objectives and sustainable development of the Company.
The Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 except
for the following deviation:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Board will continue to monitor and periodically review
the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with three Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The composition of the current Board members represents
a balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and
professional expertise. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in financial
institutions management, corporate development and
management, capital operations, financial technology,
financial investment and financing re-guarantee. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications and have
experiences in banking, accounting, legal, corporate finance
and mergers and acquisitions which would contribute
to the long-term development of the Company. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have shared their
experiences and expertise to the Board and demonstrated
their ability to provide independent view and judgement in
the Company'’s affairs.

The Board has adopted a policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with the aim of enhancing Board
effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving
our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, required expertise, skills, knowledge and length
of service.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Board Composition (Continued)

M2021F 128310 EESHKHKNEHR An analysis of the Board’s current composition at

AomHT 31 December 2021 is as follows:
-2
Directors
A Bok
Number Percentage
B Designation
WITES Executive Directors 3 37.5%
BRIESLAE (F/F) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman)
BRANSE (BIFE) Mr CHEN Jie (Vice Chairman)
BRF I (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager)
FHITES Non-executive Directors 2 25.0%
PRERE L Mr HON Hau Chit
HAEA & Mr YANG Jingchao
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
HRIASE Mr IP Kai Ming
SRXF A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi
2RI & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
5l Gender
St Male 8 100%
F A B Age Group
61-70 5% 61-70 years old 1 12.5%
51-60 5% 51-60 years old 6 75.0%
41-50 5% 41-50 years old 1 12.5%
EERARESHNEY Directorship with the Company
(&) (Number of years)
iR 20 F over 20 years 1 12.5%
1-104F 1-10 years 7 87.5%
EEHM LT ARNES Directorship with other listed companies
(AEIEE) (Number of companies)
3 3 1 12.5%
1 1 1 12.5%
0 0 6 75.0%

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

An updated list of Directors and their roles and functions
together with the information of their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management on pages 22 to 29 of
this annual report. Independent Non-executive Directors are
also identified as such in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Company’s Directors.

The Company has a formal procedure for the appointment
of new directors. Any proposed appointment will be first
reviewed by the Nomination Committee of the Board,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the proposed appointment will
then be reviewed by the Board and, if thought fit, approved
by the Board or by the Shareholders in any general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Any
new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next general meeting of the Company
following his appointment, or appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company following his appointment, and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Role and Function of the Board

The Board determines the Group’s overall corporate
objectives, business strategies and operational policies.
The Board continuously monitors and evaluates the Group's
operational and financial performance, maintains effective
oversight over the management, risks assessment and
controls over business operations. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual budgets and business plans, major
transactions, appointment of new directors, re-appointment
or re-designation of directors, dividend distribution
and accounting policies, and environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) management approach and strategy.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the General
Manager Meeting which is led by the General Manager of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Role and Function of the Board (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’s
corporate objectives, business strategies and operational
policies through independent, constructive and informed
advice. They gave the Board and the Board Committees
on which they served the benefit of their skills, expertise
and experiences through regular attendance and active
participation.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year,
the Board developed and reviewed the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations as below:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, including but
not limited to the Approval Authority Policy of the
Company and the revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees;

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

. To develop and review ESG management approach and
strategy, including but not limited to the endorsement
of ESG philosophy and governance structure, the
evaluation and determination of ESG-related risks, and
the review and approval of Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in other public companies or organisations,
other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
to review business development and performance of the
Group and additional meetings will be held as and when
required. Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance
to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. The Company Secretary assists
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings. Directors or
Board Committee members receive the meeting agenda and
accompanying Board papers or Board Committee papers at
least three days before the date of Board meeting or Board
Committee meeting. Management also supplies the Board
and the Board Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before
the Board and the Board Committees for review and
approval. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to all the Directors and Board Committee members for
their comments and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

All Directors have full access to business documents and
information on the Group on a timely basis. Furthermore,
management provides all Directors with monthly updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.
The Board and each Director has separate and independent
access to senior management and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Directors may seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense upon
making requests to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Board Meetings (Continued)

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the
development of strategy, policies and decision-making by
attending the Board meetings in person or via telephone/
video conferencing.

The attendance records of four scheduled Board meetings
held in 2021 and the annual general meeting of the
Company are set out below:

HERE FRRE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
RERBFRE
BEEg Annual
Board General
EEnE Name of Directors Meetings Meeting
HITESE Executive Directors
BRIESLAE (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 3/4 1/1
BRANEE (BIFE) Mr CHEN Jie (Vice Chairman) 3/4 1/1
BRF I (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 4/4 11
EMITES Non-executive Directors
RERRE Mr HON Hau Chit 4/4 11
HAEA & Mr YANG Jingchao 4/4 11
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALEE Mr IP Kai Ming 4/4 11
REEA Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 4/4 1/1
218 % £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 4/4 1/1
FRERITEAREK Chairman and Chief Executive

ARREFEER ([EF]) RBEE (N
THRBHZENTE) ZBHETRALE
T UAEESSEERARBAEXHEE
MBERSAERED -

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the General Manager (acting in the capacity of the Chief
Executive) of the Company are held by separate individuals
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties
regarding the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

One of the important roles of Mr YAN Zheng, the Chairman,
is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman
has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda
for each Board meeting to the General Manager, Mr CHEN
Yu.

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, supported by senior management, is
responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors and senior
management.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consist
of independent non-executive directors and at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and their independence have been assessed with reference
to the criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board has affirmed that all
Independent Non-executive Directors remain independent.

The re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board will
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and state the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code
A.4.1 but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Training

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. In 2021, the Company
has arranged seminars for the senior management with
topics covered the anti-corruption laws in Hong Kong and
Macau and €IFRS 17). The Company has also provided
training materials to the Directors and senior management
with the emphasis on the amendments to CG Code and
related Listing Rules, ESG matters and the anti-corruption
laws in Hong Kong and Macau.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received trainings in the following areas:

R HEER
Attended Read
EENA Name of Directors seminar materials
WITES Executive Directors
BRIESE A (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) N/A v
BRANFEE (BIF/F) Mr CHEN Jie (Vice Chairman) N/A v
BRF A (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) v v
EITES Non-executive Directors
RREREAE Mr HON Hau Chit N/A v
HEEA S Mr YANG Jingchao N/A v
WY IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALAE Mr IP Kai Ming N/A v
SRS E Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi N/A v
2B %A+ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun N/A v

38 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the directors and senior
management. No claim under such insurance policy was
made in 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of the
Board Committees has its terms of reference with defined
powers and authorities given to the Committee members
to discharge their duties. The terms of reference of all the
Non-executive Board Committees have been made available
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Majority of the Remuneration
Committee members and Nomination Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors while the
Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors.
The General Manager Meeting set up by the Executive
Committee and endorsed by the Board comprises the
General Manager, who is also an Executive Director, and
senior management.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman), Mr CHEN lJie
and Mr CHEN Yu.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

To further improve the work process and enhance the
effectiveness, the Executive Committee has set up a General
Manager Meeting which has been endorsed by the Board
to exercise the authority and responsibility delegated by
the Board to Executive Committee. The General Manager
Meeting meets at least once per month and operates as a
general management committee under the direct authority
of the Executive Committee. It exercises the powers,
authorities and discretions as directed by the Executive
Committee in so far as they concern the management and
daily operations of the Group in accordance with its terms
of reference and such other policies and directives as the
Executive Committee may determine from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr IP
Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, among
other things, the Group’s financial reporting and ESG
reporting, the nature and scope of audit, the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and risk management,
and compliance relating to financial reporting and ESG
reporting. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the Group's
external auditor. The Audit Committee meets regularly to
perform its duties and has a separate meeting with the
external auditor in the absence of management to discuss
any audit issues and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee can perform its
duties with unrestricted access to both the Group’s external
and internal auditors. Sufficient resources are provided
to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2021 and recommended to the Board for
approval respectively;

reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes
of changes from the previous accounting period,
effects on the application of new accounting policies,
and compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

reviewed the activities of the Group’s risk management,
compliance management and internal audit functions
and their findings and recommendations as laid down
in their respective reports;

oversee the ESG issue of the Group and reviewed
Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the
year of 2020;

reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2021;

reviewed the risk appetite report and risk management
work plan for the year of 2022;

considered the change of auditor of the Company,
reviewed the engagement letter and the remuneration
of the new auditor, and recommended the same to the
Board for approval;

reviewed and approved the proposed amendments to
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the
terms of reference of the ESG Working Group;

considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget; and

held a meeting with the external auditor, in the
absence of management, to discuss any audit issues
and any other matters the external auditor may wish to
raise.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

41



42

FFREBHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i
it
0B
XA
00
0B
3

BEREZBEN0NFEITTZREH - B
P8z HEEHINMT

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2021, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE EEXE
MEHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
BN IEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors
RIOGRE (F/E) Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman) 3/3
ERIA L Mr IP Kai Ming 3/3
2 ElES & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 3/3
HZES Remuneration Committee

FMEESRGARMUMKEAERK - Hp X
DRERBIFATES - HNZESHE
SUIEMITEREMASLELETE - EMK
BEBERXERE  RAELE BRFEE
MREFRE °

FHNEZBEERRFZAQAMNFIEE - U
RElERBNARREERSREEABN
FE R YRME=ESRLES  FMHEE
ERFELAR—RER  INERRKRAE

SERELZRUEZ - R B GEREMH
FRRERABITERE  S8REETRNEE
ERATRRERXEMBLIERER B
AERRARESL -

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG
Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr CHAN
Kwong Yu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy, and the formulation and
review of the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year and reports to the
Board on the decisions or recommendations following
each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Remuneration Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board
for approval;

reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to senior
management and recommended the same to the
Board for approval; and

reviewed the directors’ fees for the year of 2021 and
recommended the same to the Board for endorsement.

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HEREFRAH

MEHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors

ERBRNA (£E) Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 1/1

SRXF A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 11

ZEIES & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 11
WITES Executive Director

BRF ST (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 11
BREEAE Senior Management

PREF AL Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 11
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed
on an individual basis and are set out in Note 10(a) to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out in Note 10(c) to the consolidated financial statement
of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr YAN
Zheng, the Chairman of the Board, and the other members
are three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr IP Kai
Ming, Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and Board
Committee members in accordance with the Company’s
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy sets out the
procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers and reviews, among other
things, the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board, the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
of the candidates, independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, re-election of retiring Directors, term
of appointment and time commitment of Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
and the membership of respective Board Committees. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for developing
and reviewing measureable objectives for the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and
reports to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
following each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Nomination Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including but not limited to the skills, knowledge and
experiences) of the Board in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy and reported to the Board;

reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting held in 2021.

In 2021, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE EERH

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HITES
BRIESEE (/)

Executive Director
Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 11

WU IEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HERIASLE Mr IP Kai Ming 11
RXFRLE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 1/1
2RI E Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 11

EBNEHFXS

ARBIERM—EBTTHENEFETES
R R ([ GRSFERD) ) - BERR
MMER CETAR R M8+ FrEt s ( E A A
ERETEFRINFRESTAD ([ RESF
A1) FARENRE - RARERZ2BES
EHEREHR - AAERHEEREE 2021
F12A3 B LEEFE-—BET (RETRD
KA R B CERSTEER) Frat R E 1R 2 o

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims at making a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period and of their
financial performance and cash flows for that period then
ended. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by the external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. At 31
December 2021, the Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
might cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 74 to 80 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
and overseeing an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems will monitor the
material aspects of the Group’s business and operations
and also to safeguard its assets. Such systems are designed
to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk
profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in
operational systems.

The Board has adopted the Risk Management Policy which
covers the Group’s risk appetite and risk management
framework at strategic and operational levels in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks including credit
risk, market risk, insurance risk, operational risk, investment
risk and compliance risk etc., the details of which were set
out in the Risk Management and Internal Control Report on
pages 54 to 61 of this annual report.

The Board oversees the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems with the
assistance of the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Department of the Company. Risk Management Department
developed the risk registers and risk management manual
for implementing risk management and internal control
practices. The Manager of Risk Management Department
is also responsible for reviewing the risk management
status in the Group, to monitor and review the execution of
and compliance with the established risk control policies
and measures. Regular audits or reviews are conducted
to provide assurance that the risk controls are in place in
business and operational units of the Group. The Manager
of Risk Management Department presents reports to the
members of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

The Board also delegates the responsibility for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee monitors the Group’s risk management processes
and internal control systems through the Internal Audit
Department. Internal Audit Department performs ongoing
assessments and regular independent reviews of all material
controls of the Group, checks for compliance with policies
and standards and evaluates the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covering all material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions
during the year and the resources allocated to internal
control operations. The Audit Committee reported the
review result to the Board following each Audit Committee
meeting. The Board reviewed, considered and was satisfied
with the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and risk management functions are effective,
adequate and in compliance with the risk management and
internal control code provisions of the CG Code.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees paid or payable to
the new external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (appointed on 15 December 2021), and the
former auditor of the Company, KPMG (resigned on 15
December 2021), for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued
by the Company) and tax and consultancy services were
HK$2,127,000, HK$339,150 and HK$127,000 respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Tse Ching Wah, was appointed as the Company Secretary
and an Authorised Representative of the Company with
effect from 26 August 2021 following the resignation
of Mr Chan Kwong Yu as the Company Secretary and an
Authorised Representative of the Company on the same
date. Ms Tse is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company'’s affairs. She
should report to the Chairman and the General Manager
and is responsible for advising the Board on governance
matters. She confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge during the year 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right
to vote at general meetings may request Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

()  may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

() may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”) (Continued)

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the shareholder(s)
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”).

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”)

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(a) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
("AGM”] (Continued)

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the request relates; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company'’s
share registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution
at the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to the shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the

meeting; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings
(Continued)

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at
the meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation
to any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company ‘s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company will circulate the statement to
each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as
it gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM),
the shareholders concerned have to deposit a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before
the GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at a GM. The procedures for such proposal are
available on the website of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board'’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication amongst
the Shareholders, the Board and senior management of
the Company through various official channels so that the
Shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which has set out the principle and procedures
for the payment of dividend to Shareholders to provide
stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders and to
share the profits of the Company with the Shareholders.
The Board may decide from time to time to declare interim
dividend or to recommend the payment of final dividend
and special dividend to the Shareholders which is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The
Company intends to provide the eligible Shareholders with
approximately 10% to 20% of the Group's consolidated profit
for the year attributable to the Shareholders as dividend, the
remaining consolidated profit for the year will be used for
the future development and operations of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has
been no change during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company “) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) strive to establish a sound
risk management and internal control system to
achieve sustainable development and be responsible to
shareholders. The Board of the Company (the “Board”) has
the overall responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system. The senior
management is charged with the responsibility to establish
and implement such system to control risks arising from
business activities within an acceptable level via an effective
risk management process.

During the year under review, the Group complied with
the above principles and the CG Codes C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
recommended best practices C.2.6 and C.2.7. The details are
summarised as follows:

&2 CERBRFER
Figure 2 : Risk Appetite Framework
‘)?/}JL\EEU (3

R (&,
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AR IRFRRR S
Risk Appetite
Statement Report
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Five core principles include: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong liquidity position; Preserving
good reputation; Complying with regulatory and compliance management requirements; Matching
between risks and returns.

Note:
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 1)

The Group has established a risk management framework
to define its risk management objectives, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and reporting mechanism to enable the
effective implementation of the risk management process
by the Group. If there are any material risks being identified
that can have significant effect on the Group, it should
be immediately reported to the senior management or
notified to the Audit Committee to take appropriate risk
management action against the material risks.

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 2)

The Group's risk appetite is based on five core principles,
including: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong
liquidity position; Preserving good reputation; Complying
with regulatory and compliance management requirements;
Matching between risks and returns.

The senior management shall design risk indicators and
risk limits based on the five core principles and operating
environment. The senior management shall also report
its implementation status to the Board on a regular basis.
Meanwhile, a risk appetite statement report should be
compiled at least once a year and subsequently submitted
to the Board for approval.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

The Group has adopted a systematic risk management
approach to implement a top-down management
mechanism. The current risk management organizational
structure includes the Board, the senior management and
business divisions.

«  The Board is the highest steering committee for risk
management, and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, it evaluates the risks that the Group is
willing to accept during the phase of achieving strategic
goals, so as to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

+  The senior management is responsible for formulating
risk strategies, risk policies and risk management
framework; establishing a risk management culture; and
implementing and supervising the risk management
and internal control system.
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

(Continued)
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Business divisions (and subsidiaries)
serve as the first line of defense. They
shall be responsible for managing
the risks arising from business
activities. At the same time, they
shall formulate relevant regulations
and processes in accordance with
risk management policies, carry out
specific risk management work, as well
as provide risk indicators to the risk
management function on a regular
basis to track the performance of risk
management. In addition, business
divisions (and subsidiaries) shall work
with the compliance management
function to ensure that the design of
various policies was in conformity with
the related regulations of competent
authorities.

The risk management function and
the compliance management function
are responsible for the second line
of defense. The risk management
function is responsible for collecting
key risk information, managing
the implementation status of its
risk indicators as well as issuing risk
warnings when those risk indicators
are close to exceeding the risk limits.
The compliance management
function is responsible for managing
the Company'’s internal systems,
monitoring whether each business
divisions has complied with relevant
internal policies in business operations,
duly performing supervisions and
inspections such as compliance
check and compliance examination,
and conducting inspections on the
compliance practice in business
operations. Meanwhile, the risk
management function and the
compliance management function
shall report the implementation status
of risk management to the senior
management, the Audit Committee
and the Board on a regular basis.

The internal audit function acts as the
third line of defense. The Board and
the Audit Committee are responsible
for leading the internal audit function
in inspecting and evaluating the
adequacy and the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control
system regularly, and requesting for
enhancements where appropriate.

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)
(Continued)

Each business division is an implementation entity of
its respective business activities, and shall regularly
provide risk indicators to the risk management
department or internal audit function of the Company,
or corresponding function under the subsidiaries for
conducting risk management activities on the basis of
its current work.

At the same time, in order to implement the risk
management and internal control system effectively and
to achieve the goal of “To be risk-oriented and to comply
with the laws”, the Group and Min Xin Insurance have set
up a “Three Lines of Defense” model (Table 1) to ensure
that the operational management and business processes
of the Group have been embedded with risk management
activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS (FIGURE 4)

The Group conducts risk management by adopting the
following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification - Identifying the significant
sources and types of risks faced by the Group;

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluating the existing risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring - Setting key risk indicators for
identified significant risks based on the risk appetite
framework, and monitoring risk changes on a regular basis;

Step 4: Risk Reporting - Concluding and analysing the
results of risk management and reporting the results to the
senior management and the Board. The report also outlines
the following items:

+ Implementation of risk indicators and limits;
«  Risk assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP

The Group has identified significant risks in principal
businesses, which can be categorised as: Associated
company risk, Insurance risk, Credit risk, Market risk and
Operational risk. The summary about the risks and related
management measures are as follows:

Associated Company Risk

“Associated company risk “ is the risk of difficulty in realisation
of investment institution’s interests of an associated company.

The Group holds the most significant investment in XIB
Group. Therefore, the Company conducts risk management
by nominating Directors and continuously monitoring long-
term investment performance to reduce uncertainty.

At the end of 2021, the total assets of our banking business
accounted for 69.5% of the Group’s total assets.

Insurance Risk

“Insurance risk” refers to the risk of losses resulting from
unexpected changes in the payment of claims and related
expenses in accordance with the contract after receiving
premiums and starting to undertake the risk of the insured
in the insurance business.

In order to reduce the risk, Min Xin Insurance focuses on
high-quality new businesses with mature underwriting
policies, and adopts appropriate claim procedures to reduce
the risks in claim processing due to improper operations
or negligence. Besides, Min Xin Insurance has arranged the
reinsurance to control risks within an acceptable range.

The risk exposure (total insurance liabilities, net) of Min
Xin Insurance at the end of 2021 was HK$169.61 million, an
increase of 40.1% as compared to HK$121.08 million at the
end of 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Credit Risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of potential financial loss due to
counterparty or debtor failing or declining to perform
contractual obligations.

The credit risk of Min Xin Insurance is mainly from the risk
of treaty-reinsurer failing to execute the reinsurance treaty
resulting in Min Xin Insurance suffering financial loss and
may lead to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated
assets. Min Xin Insurance has selected treaty-reinsurers
with credit ratings of A- or above from Standard & Poor’s
(or equivalent) as business partners prior to arranging
reinsurance and has regularly monitored their credit ratings.
There were 12 treaty-reinsurers cooperating with Min Xin
Insurance, and their credit ratings were all above A- as at 31
December 2021.

The credit risk of the Sanyuan Micro Credit arises from the
debtor failing or refusing to repay the loans resulting in
the increase of non-performing debts and may lead to an
impairment of the Group’s consolidated assets. Sanyuan
Micro Credit has stopped underwriting new loan business
and will continue to adopt proactive measures to recover its
nonperforming loans.

Market Risk

“Market risk” is the risk due to price changes in financial
market instruments which affect the value of the Group's
financial assets and in turn create losses.

The Group’s risk management objective is to increase
shareholders’ value while ensuring that the risks will be
controlled within the Group’s acceptable range. The risk
exposures of the Group in major financial instruments at the
end of 2021 were: Stocks: HK$10.7 million (market value),
Funds: equivalent to approximately HK$69.0 million (market
value), Structured deposits: RMB539.6 million (equivalent to
HK$660.4 million) (principal).

Besides, some of the investment vehicles are denominated
in RMB. The Group may have exchange risk in the conversion
of RMB into HKD. After considering the application of fund,
the Group did not have any significant market risk resulting
from the exchange volatility as at 31 December 2021.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Operational Risk

“Operational risk” is the risk of losses due to improper
or faulty of internal operation, personnel and system, or
external events.

The Group manages and controls the risks through methods
such as effective work division and balancing mechanism,
sort major business segments and set up formal policies.

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 TO THE GROUP

The global economy continued to recover in 2021, but
the COVID-19 pandemic development across the world
remains the key source of uncertainty surrounding the
economic outlook. In respect to the business, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd., and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited has stopped new business
since 2019 and 2016, respectively. Therefore, the influence
is only minimal. For the Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, it underwrites general insurance business which
includes property damage and liability insurance. Individual
and corporation still have the needs to buy the general
insurance.

As to the operation, the Group have in place a business
continuity plan (BCP) so that we can prudently assess the
pandemic and its impact to the company’s operations and
staff. Once the pandemic turns into severe, the Company
and Min Xin insurance could launch working from home
program to work remotely or will open the backup office to
continue the business operation.

Overall, the Covid-19 had result in limited impact to
the Group in 2021 and the risk is within boundaries of
acceptable range.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policy” to have strict specification on areas such as the
definition of inside information, the requirements for the
release of inside information, the roles and responsibilities
of the Board and the senior management on inside
information management, the procedures and internal
control for processing and issuing inside information as
well as public communication. The announcement of the
disclosure of inside information shall be submitted to the
Board or an authorised officer for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse and unauthorized
processing of assets, maintain proper accounting records to
deliver a true and fair view for the financial statements, and
ensure the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

In accordance with the CG Code C.2.1 and C.2.2, the Board
and the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions in
2021. The senior management has confirmed to the Board
and the Audit Committee that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are adequate
and effective. Based on the review results and the senior
management ‘s confirmation, the Board and the Audit
Committee considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to be adequate and effective as of
31 December 2021. Details of which are summarized below:

In the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group’s risk
management framework which contained risk management
objectives, risk appetite framework, risk monitoring and risk
reporting.

In the year under review, the Board was of the view that
the risk management and internal control system has been
continuously improved by the Group. It strives to make the
risk management methods more standardised, including
the enhancement of risk appetite system, risk indicators and
risk limits, and risk monitoring system for the Group in the
future.

The Group will continue to strengthen the management and
implementation of risk management and internal control
system in order to comply with the provisions in the CG
Code and best practices.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
investment and strategic investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 37 and 17 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the revenue and results of the Group by
operating segment during the financial year is set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 81
to 84.

The Board has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 28 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) the payment
of a final dividend of 12 HK cents per share totalling
HK$71,670,870.24 for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: final dividend of 10 HK cents per share totalling
HK$59,725,725.20). The proposed dividend, if approved, will
be paid on or before 15 July 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021,
an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using
financial key performance indicators, a discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, and an account
of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s
success depends, are provided in the Five-Year Financial
Summary, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion
and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Risk
Management and Internal Control Report set out on pages 4
to 21 and pages 30 to 61 respectively of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Further discussions on the environmental policies and
performance of the Group, and our relationships with key
stakeholders are contained in a separate ESG Report, which
will be available at the Company’s website under the ESG
Report and the website of the Stock Exchange on or before
the end of April 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote
at the 2022 AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 June 2022 to
Tuesday, 28 June 2022, (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the right to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June 2022.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Dividend

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
2022 AGM. For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 5 July 2022 to
Thursday, 7 July 2022, (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 4 July 2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
4 and 5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the Group are set out in Notes 14
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 256.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 85 and in Note 36(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$508,071,000 (2020: HK$541,625,000).
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr CHEN Yu, Mr IP Kai Ming and
Mr LEUNG Chong Shun will retire by rotation at the 2022
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM
has any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company still considers that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors of the
Company are set out in the Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in the information of the Directors of the Company required
to be disclosed since the publication of 2021 interim report
of the Company up to the date of approval of this annual
report is set out below:

Mr YAN Zheng has been nominated as a vice chairman of
Economic Committee of the Fujian Provincial Committee
of CPPCC on 8 December 2021. He has resigned as the
secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman of the
board of directors and the legal representative of Fujian
investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company from 23 February
2022.
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CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR
(Continued)

Mr CHEN Jie has resigned as the chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Xiamen King Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock
code: 600686) with effect from 28 October 2021.

Mr IP Kai Ming has resigned as the chairman of the
Supervisory Board of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. and
has been appointed as the guest senior lecturer of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. with effect from 9 December
2021.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
information of the Directors of the Company required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards
of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu

Mr WU Xubin

Mr SHIUNG An Tai

Mr LAM Chi Sing (Note 1)
Mr GUO Xiang

Mr QIU Peng Zhong

Ms CHEN Fen (Note 2)

Mr ZHANG Yannan (Note 3)
Mr QIAN Wen Rong (Note 4)
Mr ZHANG Fan (Note 5)

Notes:

1. Mr LAM Chi Sing has been appointed as a director of a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 April 2021.

2. Ms CHEN Fen has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2021.

3. Mr ZHANG Yannan has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 April 2021.
4. Mr QIAN Wen Rong has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the

Company with effect from 23 June 2021.
5. Mr ZHANG Fan has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the Company
with effect from 25 June 2021.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules were as
follows:

HEAREBITRA
ZHHABEDE
EERAEE Approximate percentage
EEHA EEHE Number of of the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company
RARRRE BB 2 HE
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
HRREA (NG $5
IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
B EXFTIREEE SN - 722021 F 128318 - Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2021, none of
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the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they did not have any
interests in business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or an
entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly,
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred
by him in the execution and discharge of his duties or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for its Directors
and other officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and renewed
annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS" INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2021, substantial shareholders and other
persons (other than Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follow:

RN
BRITRA
ZBHNESL
Approximate
percentage of

BFERGEE the issued share
Z28 54 Jiof Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
RARAE BB 2 1R
Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) EREAA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner
BEERAT ([EE]) EREAARK LR 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Company Limited Beneficial Owner and interest
(“Vigour Fine") of Controlled Corporation
REEREFMEEERR REEE R 2 355,552,883 59.53%
SELTE ([BERAEE] ) Interest of Controlled Corporation
Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd.
(IIFIDGH)
BREFRAEEERR AT BEafEBA 3 88,150,000 14.76%
([EosEskR] ) Beneficial Owner
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery
Group Limited (“Citychamp”)
HEERARF ([592]) RELE R 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) Interest of Controlled Corporation
ERERERAA BEalB AR EEER 3 91,390,000 15.30%
([fE=EER]) Beneficial Owner and interest
Sincere View International of Controlled Corporation
Limited (“Sincere View")
ERE ([ERLE]) RELE R 4 91,390,000 15.30%
HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") Interest of Controlled Corporation
MORE ([#&t]) (IR EEE: 3 4 91,390,000 15.30%

LAM Suk Ying (“Ms Lam”)

Interest of Spouse
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba. Vigour Fine was
the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be interested
in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine
also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the Company.

3. 88,150,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp. Citychamp
was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and Full Day
and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be interested in
the 88,150,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also directly held
3,240,000 shares of the Company.

4. Mr Hon held the entire issued share capital of Full Day and was the
controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be
interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam, the spouse
of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s issued shares during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed
to provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant
entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao were deemed to be
interested in the above transaction by virtue of being
directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined
and the percentage of revenue from rendering of services
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and total revenue
of the Group respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank borrowings and loan from the controlling
shareholder of the Group at 31 December 2021 are set out
in Notes 28 and 29 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision of
the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with the
relevant provision of the Insurance Ordinance in relation to
the amount of gross premium income limit per annum.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as
connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 17(b), 17(c),
23(a), 35(a), 35(b) and 35(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 9, 10(a)(iii) and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan and revolving loan facilities
(collectively, the “Loan Facilities”) entered into between the
Company and certain banks in Hong Kong, among other
things, the Company undertakes to procure that there is
no adverse change on FIDG, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and FIDG shall beneficially own (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the issued share
capital of the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management control over
the Company during the terms of the Loan Facilities. Breach
of such undertakings will constitute an event of default and
all amounts (including principal and interest) due and owing
by the Company to the banks under the Loan Facilities shall
become immediately due and payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
and community purposes amounted to approximately
HK$5,000 (2020: HK$5,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to
53 of this annual report.
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EEBHRS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company and
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of KPMG, both with effect from 15 December
2021. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the

auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
its remuneration will be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAN Zheng
Chairman

HONG KONG, 30 March 2022

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

73



T4

&7 1% 216M ¥k &5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

HREEEERATKE
(REEBAME LB FR A A])

=r
=
PIESN

IAZEED (AT (B ) 2EFsoER
FEEFBSEEEEBRAERAF (LT
G [Ear ) REWBAR (LUTHE &
SE ) MEFEEMBHE - M BHREREER
—E-—F+ A=+ BHEREHBERR
FEHEZHLEFENGGEREK  F62
HARER  GERSEHRNGEEE RS
o UREGEMBEWMEKTE  BEXTESR
BERBE -

BMRE  ZEFRAVEHRRECBEEES
R AEEMANCEAVBREEN) BEE
mesRETEEER_E=-—F+=_A
=+ BNRAUBERAREEZBLEFE
MZEEHBERERGARERE  WEER
BB CRRVER) Z B -

SRR

BRPMEREFESAMASEMIN(ERE
FPEAD EITER - BFIERTER T AR
MEFCEARRS [RBREHEEME
WRAENEE] BoPIEE— T - 1R
BRESFMASRHN(ERGHMER
SR AT PRI - RABINES
CWEETTAITHEMEREREL -
HPIEE - RPMESNESRERETENR
EEMWREMNEAERRHEER -

Hith=1g
KEBHZE2020F 12 A3 BILFEZEA

MBsmEk B s —ZBENES - E0202143
H24A#X—ARFREBRN®RSE -

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 81 to 255, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements
on 24 March 2021.
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Accounting for interest in an associate

ESEMBEMARRRTREMBAR (B
IREEE) #8.8543% HIR(D - MEBELRS T
WwERPURA#ERTETZE -

The Group’s approximately 8.8543% interest
in Xiamen | n t ernational Bank and its
subsidiaries (“XIB Group”) is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method.

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILLFE"
EEERLEEREE ZHGREN BB
45808 & 7T : ERENEREEERNIRE
BEAKABK672521 8T - LBEEAG
BE_ T FEESERREMEREND
NI EBE_T-_—F+-_RA=+—HE&
SEREER69.52% °

The Group’s share of the profit after tax from
XIB Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately HK$458.08 million
and the carrying value of the Group’s interest
in XIB Group was approximately HK$6,725.21
million. This represented approximately
92.37% of the Group’s profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
approximately 69.52% of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 December 2021.

EREENMBESHNFBRENTRE17 -
Details of the financial information of XIB
Group are set out in note 17.

ERVA 2 Gl ES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter is addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.

BIFIE 5t P01 = FE 558 & 51 B 1A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B AR ERERNERN S RENETIEFBRENU
NEIE

Our audit procedures in relation to the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

THREEESHARTHERSERERUERERE
WIRBIE  IRF MR ANERN R MNER
understanding the Group’s established policy,
procedures and controls over the consolidation process
for equity accounting for the Group's interest in XIB
Group;

- BEREENERSHFNERS R EBEER XY
EITHE
comparing consolidation and reclassification journal
adjustments in respect of the interest in XIB Group with
relevant underlying documentation;

- REEREENVMBER  ENAEEEERGFEE
MEEBNAFENRERN
recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group's share of profit for the year with reference to the
financial information of XIB Group;
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RAIRE st 518
The Key Audit Matter

HHE L GRS RS
Accounting for interest in an associate

BB AR RENSHRES SERE
HEE RAREHEEEGESMEHmEKN
BATE  URGHEREBVEER S
KEVEREIE A E IR H T - B Rl R AT 1A
ERNBRIIZBIEN A ENSREERN
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BE - BRRZ HISEURSE ARG T EE
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Zr R

We identified the accounting for the interest in
XIB Group as a key audit matter because of its
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the complexity
and management judgement applied in the
preparation of the financial information of XIB
Group, which increases the risk of material
misstatement in XIB Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The critical accounting
estimates and judgements are applied by XIB
Group to determine the valuation of level 3
financial instruments, impairment of loans
and advances to customers and financial
assets at amortised cost of XIB Group, and
impairment on goodwill, which are inherently
subjective given the lack of market-based
data or significant estimation uncertainty and
thus increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

EREEGEE M B IMADOEME R - A
RS EAE MY EEEES P HRE
EEERNTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group ’s consolidated
financial statements could have a consequential
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements through the equity
method of accounting.

ERE B ER SFHEFAHET e R B E R
35
Details of the critical accounting estimates
and judgement of XIB Group are set out in
note 3.5.

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

=24/4]

How

(&SP EIERGR E 51 B R

our audit addressed the key audit matter

SREREEAZEED ( [EREBDZERED | ) IRAPTE
%@%%Eﬂ%%l B EREENVBERAITEZETN
instructing the auditor of XIB Group (“the component
auditor”) to perform a full scope audit of the financial
information of XIB Group in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us;

S BB D ZBEN R R R TR - AETFEREE
B B 75 & K AE R Y B2 K B R P K B A A B o0 i BB AT
mEZEREREEL &

participating in the component auditor’s risk
assessment process to identify significant risks of
material misstatement of the financial information of
XIB Group and discussing with the component auditors
their responses to address such risks; and

ERAR R BB D IR BRAD A e A B T B IR A4S R - WiBRER
ERRER D ZBENE TIEEAR @ sHE AR BT BHEER
HFIptm e B RRETHETZEERRMEGE -
discussing with the component auditor their findings
and conclusions with regard to their audit and
evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the audit evidence for purpose of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements by reviewing the
component auditor’s working papers.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.



MBS OM BRI AIENS
fx (%&)

HEERAFBELESTERNBREN
TR AR o RIBFAERNEFRE -

ERAFERFHEIBRAEHNERT
HEM  Kmr Rt SR EEENFE
RERNEEERRE - WREMABR
TFHEEATHETEE - B0 BEZEED
BETRBEAEIBRSPHHRERT
MIARRE - BREARNEETR - A
HPEEERRIFEREER - HFINGE
RN SR E B AU K BRET
B o R > RIRFIHLIT I A BE BB

BEETRFELE -

M=

FHER A MBS HRARNEBRIIHT A - &
BHNAT  BREEE  URESMBER
REGPERRIZHMEIR -

EREANEBAXHEBDNMBEESE
EEGtE - EENERE  UEHE
BYBHRAELRER - RABAEERE
BATEOOTA - BEBMIMTT - RMIRERT
BRAE2HAEME-

FREMEIBSN  BARBEZESBAE T
SMERE KELH  EXFFHER
% BREBFIEER B H AR E S 6 E
(CEPN

HPMERNEZZESRERER  FRLMD
NeERAMBLEMEBERERER > TR
BB BE RS BERAETERME
MR A BEMEMER - ARSHERY
B EVE PR TTE S g tE e (R
) e

ERVA 2 Gl ES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tong, Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

# #2021 F 12 H 31 H i/ For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
i EBEFT B F T
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
AR B R AR Net earned insurance premiums 156,160 126,901
BERMEFEFE Interest income calculated using
B F BB the effective interest method 7,153 4,509
FEMEHESIWA Rental income from
investment properties 9,935 8,671
BEAFERTA Dividend income from
HAth 2 E U financial assets at fair value through
e EERSUA other comprehensive income 14,686 10,054
Nk Total revenues 5(a) 187,934 150,135
HA KA Other income 5(b) 29,920 42,927
EEIA Operating income 217,854 193,062
Hihezs, (B518) — FE  Other gains/(losses) - net 6 23,863 (6,085)
IRBR TG EE A HY Net insurance claims incurred and
BEFER commission expenses incurred
HeEH on insurance business 7 (132,184) (102,165)
BoEEEREN Write back of impairment loss on
BEERMEWF S credit-impaired loans to customers
KB EEE and interest receivable 22 5,750 9,404
THER Administrative expenses (54,903) (54,634)
EEER Operating profit 8 60,380 39,582
B E A Finance costs 9 (11,632) (14,326)
el S NETE Share of results of associates 461,225 446,931
BRBE Al 2R F Profit before taxation 509,973 472,187
i8R 1 Income tax expense 11 (14,042) (36,125)
REFE A Profit for the year 495,931 436,062
B’E Dividend
REAAR S Final dividend 12 71,671 59,726
B JBN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
ER RS Basic and diluted 13 83.03 73.01
BREBRE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend 12 10
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#2021 4F 12 H 31 HIFFF  For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
=
(Restated)
BT B F T
HKS’000 HKS’000
REE A Profit for theyear | . 495931 [ - 436,062
Hib2mEWK = Other comprehensive income
FTEEHFIBERER Items that will not be reclassified to
HIER income statement:
BAFESFAEMEEYZ  Equity investments at fair value through
KR ER A other comprehensive income
NEEFEEFE Net movement in fair value reserve
(T\EJ{JEI&) (non-recycling) 444,913 (62,342)
ﬁ’é{ﬁﬂﬁ’*“’“ AINEMEE Share of other comprehensive income
Wz of associates (1,010) (28)
,,,,,, 443,903 [  (62,370)
HETREEHOEEIBIER  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
HIER: to income statement:
BAFEFAHMEEYZE  Debtinvestments at fair value through
E’Jfﬁﬂ‘k&ﬁ other comprehensive income
KEE N RIS Released on dilution of interest in
Hj%é‘@ anassociate . - 8,469
SNESTH HEE S Exchange translation reserve
HE G NG B A B M B Exchange differences arising on translation
NAW B SRR TESE of the financial statements of foreign
HIE H =58 subsidiaries and associates 225,409 409,034
—KEE N RIER IS Released on dilution of interest in
B o) an associate = (1,266)
,,,,,, 225,409 | 407,768
JE(REEE AR EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
g of associates | 10,973 | (175,449)
,,,,,, 236,382 | 240,788
BNBRBERNREE Other comprehensive income for the year,
Hit 2 mEk netoftax | 680,285 | 178,418
AEEEHKRSHEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,176,216 614,480
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

202112 H 31 H455  As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
FRE BT T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - W N ERE Property, plant and equipment 14 14,849 12,396
FHREEE Right-of-use assets 15 14,158 13,483
& E Y Investment properties 16 175,626 173,113
=N Associates 17 6,778,417 6,117,020
AT ES AHMEEYEE  Financial assets at fair value through
e EE other comprehensive income 18 805,914 361,001
BREEE Reinsurance assets 21 3,722 2,158
H i UL BR X Other debtors = 16,826
WITHETF Bank balances - 299,977
BTSRRI EE Deferred income tax assets 30 19 170
7,792,705 | 6,996,144
RENEE Current assets
IRIEEVS A AN Deferred acquisition costs 19 49,958 40,440
1R B e 38 Insurance receivable 20 110,538 63,218
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 21 9,043 5,977
EEERENEFPER Credit-impaired loans to customers
T2 JFE W R B, and interest receivable 22 17,979 21,034
FE—REEE R FIRE Dividend receivable from an associate - 4,754
E MR - TR Other debtors, prepayments and
BE deposits 45,854 28,788
AJ Yt [B] AR B R 18 Current income tax recoverable 35 -
BN FHES BIEEIRN Financial assets at fair value through
S REE profit or loss 23 742,997 369,978
RWe NIRTET Cash and bank balances 24 904,146 875,531
1,880,550 | 1,409,720
REBEE Current liabilities
REAaL Insurance contracts 25 121,697 94,318
IR ERT TR Insurance payable 26 59,366 31,135
HibEERR M ESTE R Other creditors and accruals 25,531 36,450
HEAE Lease liabilities 27 230 65
RITERR Bank borrowings 28 497,308 371,583
PRI E R Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 99,985 49,958
JE A~ 2N HR TR 18 Current income tax payable 29,584 28,340
,,,,,, 833,701 | 611849
REBEEFE Net current assets 1,046,849 797,871
BEERARBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 8,839,554 7,794,015

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

83



i S RBIRIR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021412 H 31 H#H  As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
HE BT T BT
Note HKS’000 HKS’000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RE &4 Insurance contracts 25 60,678 34,898
HEAE Lease liabilities 27 833 -
PR ISR E K Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 = 99,985
EEFTEFHAaRE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 63,462 61,041
,,,,,, 124,973 | 195924
EEFE Net assets 8,714,581 7,598,091
S Equity
B& A Share capital 31(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377
HiFE#ES Other reserves 31(b) 2,285,582 1,512,068
REB & Retained profits 4,713,622 4,370,646
ARABRREN Total equity attributable to
S shareholders of the Company 8,714,581 7,598,091
BR1E YAN Zheng
BE Director
BRF CHEN Yu
BE Director

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

£ 2021 4F 125 31 HIEFS  For the year ended 31 December 2021

EfbafEe
Other reserves
AYE AVE HEER Ef
e RS EtEEE  NEFE  BEe
#E £E Ef  (TFR) (FUBR)  leaschod  EEE £ BREs
BE ke BE®  BES  Rirvle  Fairvalue  buidings  Exchange Tl RERR 45
Share  Statutory General Capital reserve reserve  revaluation  translation other  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  (recycling) ~(non+ecycling) reserve reserve  reserves profits equity
B Bfn BETn BRFn BEFn BT BTn BETn BRFn BT BEFx
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS$'000
H0nE1R18 At1 January 2020 V715371 1,043,49% 148674 309526 46,70 20235 507 (381809 1393720 3934240 7083337
KEERF Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 1608 436,62
Ef3ENE Other comprehensive income - - - - (1878) (62370) - 369533 178418 - 178418
BE Dividend - - - - - - - - - (59,726) (59,726)
~FBADTEERES  Released on diluton ofnterestin
3] anassociate - (101972) (15757) (30056) - (237) - - (480 g -
g5 Transfers - 62,886 25,066 - - - - - 87932 (87,95) -
H020%12831R At31December 2020 1715377 1004410 157,983 299470 (82475 139749 5,207 (12216) 1512068 4370646 7598091
AT Representing:
ANERTRE 2020 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 59726
iff Others 1715377 1004410 157,983 199470 (8247 139749 5,207 (12276) 1512068 431090 7538365
R200E128318 At31December 2020 1715377 1004410 157,983 299470 (82475 139749 5,207 (12276) 1512068 4370646 7598091
RUNEIR1E At 1 January 2021 1715377 1,004410 157,983 299,470 (82,475) 139,749 5,207 (12,276) 1,512,068 4370646 7,598,091
TEERT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 45931 495931
L Other comprehensive income - - - = 30,845 443,903 = 205,537 680,285 = 680,285
B Dividend - - - - - - - - - (59,726)  (59,726)
~FBEDTHERLT  Released on disposal o equity
[ AEARERES investments at fairvalue through
REzsEAD other comprehensive income
by an associate - - - - - 39 - - 39 (39) -
g5 Transfers - 4,465 50,725 - - - - - 93,190 93,190) -
Y IEVEEIL: At 31 December 2021 1715377 1046875 208708 299470 (51,630) 583,691 5200 193261 2285582 4713622 8,714,581
AT Representing:
MNERTRE 2021 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - nen T
iff Others 1715377 1046875 208708 299470 (51,630) 583,691 5207 193261 2285582 4,641,951 8,642,910
R0NE12831A At31December 2021 1715377 1046875 208708 299470 (51,630) 583,691 5207 193261 2285582 4713622 8,714,581
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OIRERSEEXR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#2021 4F 12 H 31 HIFFF  For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
it EBETFT B F T
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
RETBRERA Net cash inflow from
FEE operations 34(a) 9,865 17,063
B A Interest received 40,990 20,807
EARPAES) Interest paid (10,442) (14,690)
EEANEZAE] Tax paid (12,052) (11,142)
REEKTHRERA Net cash inflow from
FE operating activites | 28,361 | 12,038
REEE Investing activities
BIERBEEERERT Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
7 A ERTT 7 3K insurance regulatory requirements (23,397) (15,884)
BE (7)) BR4I8 Withdrawal/(placement) of
IRITIF restricted bank deposits 150 (15,150)
RRFEARBB=MF8 Withdrawal of bank deposits with
|ITIFHK original maturity over three months 204,896 197,246
BAREEXANGTERN Purchase of financial assets at
TREE amortised cost = (5,473)
BARATEERER Purchase of financial assets at
HIBEM & E fair value through profit or loss (2,551,307) (979,811)
fgm HELEATESES Redemption/disposal of financial assets at
BISVEN SR EE fair value through profit or loss 2,219,185 717,547
BB I AN FT 2R Redemption of financial assets at
TREE amortised cost - 8,532
A - S NARHE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (976) (661)
Bl — KB &R RIS Dividend received from an associate 4,754 -
KEEHR SR FE Net cash outflow from investing activities | (146,695) | (93,654)
mMEFBARESREH Net cash outflow before
B financing activities (118,334) (81,616)

86 EIEES
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mOREREXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HE 2021 F12H31 Hi-4/#  For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
i EBEFT B F T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
A& EE Financing activities
ERERRRE R Loan repaid to the controlling
shareholder 34(b) (50,000) (50,000)
ESIRITER Bank loans obtained 34(b) 626,496 171,600
BEREITER Bank loans repaid 34(b) (499,590) (60,000)
A E A E R A Other borrowing costs paid 34(b) (2,298) -
K EE RS Dividend paid 34(b) (59,726) (59,726)
HENZK Lease payments 34(b) (245) (191)
IREE RS BRI TIF K Withdrawal of restricted bank
deposits 34(b) 244,140 -
RMEEEBRER Net cash inflow from
R financing activites | . 258,777 | 1,683
HERELSEEY Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
@, Of) equivalents 140,443 (79,933)
1A1B&FNRER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 1 January 319,002 361,594
EXEEHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes 7,544 37,341
12A3MBE&EGENEER Cash and cash equivalents at
HEZEY 31 December 466,989 319,002
ReRBESEEYMEH Analysis of the balances of cash
wak il and cash equivalents
B& MIBITETF Cash and bank balances 24 904,146 1,175,508
BB BR R FEE S Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
RE M AFRAVERTT to insurance regulatory
e Y requirements 24(b) (96,363) (72,966)
BREIAIRITER Restricted bank deposits 24(c), (d) (15,000) (252,850)
JREERER=EAH Bank deposits with original
HERTT R maturity over three months (325,794) (530,690)
466,989 319,002

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

87



88

#n O BT IS IR 5T i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— iR EiY

MESBEGRAR ([AR7R]]) KA
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ié o

KRB AE—REEBFMEZBERA
A) o KA A M AFBFIRAIBE
BHERERNE 171 - ARRINBRMHES
BEMARSHABRAR (B ) +
R e

EZRRARANERERABIRER
BRAE ([EE])(—KEFBEMK
VHWEBERAR)  MERERRRRE
BEREMBEEBRAEMELA (48
EREEE]) (—KEFEARKME
FXIZEYAR]) e

KA BHRERDN2022F3 A30H
EEEe AT -

FEZEHECR

MBI AN R A M BRMREAMER SRR
RN T > BRARAHAIN - tEFHER
EF2WNMEFERNERER -

2.1 Rl B2

AEBGREMBREERIEBT B SRT
fing ([BAGMAR]) BANE
B REEL ([(FEYHREE
A1) 1) (SRR A EROERE S
M a R - A G ER ([(FA
gRrZEAD ) kBB (@) ]))
REBRRGFT R L CREGRH)
(BBEIF622%) ([KRAEEDI) 1)
B E MR o BLAR B AR & M IS MR M
5 URAERHALBEESEEFYETR
ERERRE - BIZERRRREXNE
B NF B BHRRITTE (EEHAE
RHMERAREZ ETRAD (1L
mARAD | ) BE A BERIRS

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in financial
services, insurance, property investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8
Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Directors consider that Vigour Fine Company
Limited (“Vigour Fine”), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong, is the immediate holding
company of the Company and Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG”), a company
established in the People’s Republic of China, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board on 30 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been aligned
with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “"Companies Ordinance”). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).
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FE2E5ECR (18)

2.1 uﬂﬂﬁjglg (mg)
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B ER%EREERNBEENESL
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss

investment properties

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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2

F2E5ECR (18)

2.1 HRHIE%E (18)

RN & BB RS LM HREK
FREAE TERET G - ETRE
BEEEBERAARES S BORBIETIT
EEFIE - BAUFHTRREBEEEE
HERBERMAEBAAMEL - BER
BRAEB RN FAE -

BRAE I B {F M ET R A BB T B
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ATEVERT IR ZIERT IRRER © IR E
IR EAHR ARG HE - AIRE
FIEIA R AR R G T HIRIRER -

BhBEAEERSEEIE AR
B RER AT B RRBEABRRMA
VLR - EREEIRIE -

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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FE2E5ECR (18)
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AERIZE 95R R
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F395% - BE
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BRA_E e E R R AHE R AOR AR &
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BERFBRITARFKEMNE ([FE
RITEEFENER]) 58 - REEE
Bt GLemEELEMBET
XWEMNOR - BEBERBTBRTH
ESINERIESEEX /b

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs

During the year, the Group has adopted the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

- Amendment to
HKFRS 16

- Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Reform - Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

None of the adoption has had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. At 1
January 2021, the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are bearing interest indexed to Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”). Based on the
assessment of the management, these financial assets
or financial liabilities are not subject to the reform and
HIBOR will continue to be used until maturity of the
terms.
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2 ISR (8) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

22 HEBUWBHSEAETTHN
EA (&)

HEAGAUBRERNBEEH &g
TR RS EBEMZENEL K EANE
A1 A EITER| R EANS TN EIE 2021
FNRANBLESFHFEEHRES - TN
BREEAGZEMBERERANEERMAN

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

B

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended
31 December 2021 and which have not been early

\§

N adopted in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
- BAUKHREER RERELOHK - HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
175 ERAERT® related Amendments®
- BRIBB LI ER BaEIEA - Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
ER MBI IER HKAS 1 Current or Non-Current and
EupEiElEzle related amendments to
EHIENG Hong Kong Interpretation 5

#7125 (2020)°

(2020)°

- BETER LR FRTEER Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
F1RREL W’ HKAS 1 and Policies’
B RS 22 A HKFRS Practice
B NEE 2 Statement 2

- BETEA ST LR gFHAEH Amendments to Definition of Accounting
E 85 EE’ HKAS 8 Estimates’

EAE SRR

RAE—R5

Amendments to

Deferred Tax related to

F125% WEER HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities
BEMNIEH arising from a Single
JRIEFRIE® Transaction®
- BRI EBGEER W HMBK Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
F 1657 By -k i HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended
AT Use?
Fris a2
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

- Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract’

- Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework®

- Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or

Joint Venture*

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.
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B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

The nature and impact of the amendments are
described below:

(a) HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments

HKFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

HKFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified
for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the variable fee approach. The
general model is simplified if certain criteria are met by
measuring the liability for remaining coverage using
the premium allocation approach.

The general model will use current assumptions to
estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of future
cash flows and it will explicitly measure the cost of
that uncertainty, it takes into account market interest
rates and the impact of policyholders' options and
guarantees.

The implementation of HKFRS 17 is likely to bring
significant changes to an entity's processes and
systems, and will require much greater co-ordination
between many functions of the business, including
finance, actuarial and information technology.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a) HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments (Continued)

The HKICPA issued Amendments to HKFRS 17 to
address concerns and implementation challenges
that were identified after HKFRS 17 was published.
The amendments defer the date of initial application
of HKFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. At the same time, the HKICPA issued
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary
Exemption from HKFRS 9 that extends the fixed expiry
date of the temporary exemption from applying HKFRS
9 in HKFRS 4 to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

HKFRS 17 is applied retrospectively unless
impracticable, in which case the modified retrospective
approach or the fair value approach is applied.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the
date of initial application is the start of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
standard, and the transition date is the beginning of
the period immediately preceding the date of initial
application.

The Group is in the process of conducting a detailed
assessment of the impact of such new standard. It is
impracticable to quantify the effect as at the date of
issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term "significant accounting policies" with "material
accounting policy information". Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

BEEMGHREEREBREE 25 [F HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
HEEMHE ([EBAS]) ETT Judgements (the "Practice Statement") is also amended

(EF] - AEAERINES [P ERN
miz] RN ST ERIE - WH A
e RRNEN B EMBRRES

Z o [BEBRE ] RIAINEEMRA -

R IREAZIER] T & S A KB
BHRRKKEELBATE  ErjstE
FEAEHERSTHRROKE -

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

to illustrate how an entity applies the "four-step
materiality process" to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group, but may affect the
disclosures of the Group's significant accounting
policies.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Application of amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)

(cJ] Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
"monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty". An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty - that is, the accounting policy may
require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and
must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements
or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates
made up to 31 December.
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EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued]

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.9) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement or
transferred directly to retained profits when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

99



i O BT IR R REHAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

100

F2E5ECR (18)

2.3 IREERE (18)

(a) FIBLSIRIEZERRIER (78)

IR R AR A B AR R AR 2
BRINR - BEARFBRRNEGER
D FEREmEREARBFAZE
o AR eEaRAEEEEKER
MBI VEFF 12 i 25 B AN X B IR R 2 ]
RERBERENEZEWSEARRNDE

BRI EANERREME IS
BEANAHBRKIREGEH EEREF
2153216 EERE M BKA R A S
BMEEYIR -

ERRBNMBARRRA REER
A H) R B IR ANEMNRREREE (EE
2.10(b)) PR - B AR K EA B AR
miZ e N YR B -

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the shareholders of the
Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 2.15 or 2.16 depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investments
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the investments.
The cost of the investments include purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investments, and any direct investment into
the associates that forms part of the Group’s equity
investments. The investments are adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investees’ net assets including profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and any impairment losses
relating to the investment. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The accounting policies of the investees have
been aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in an associate, the Group’s interests are reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interests in an associate are the carrying amount of the
investments under the equity method together with
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investments in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2.9). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the interest reduced
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)). The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition
date.

If, after reassessment, (ii) is greater than (i), then this
excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.10(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the net sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and is recognised in the income
statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term of
land use rights held the lease
for own use

Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
own use unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Computer equipment  20% - 50%

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and  10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10(b)).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets which comprise computer software
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Costs associated with maintaining computer system
are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 4 years.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of intangible asset is determined by comparing
the net sale proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset are reviewed, and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date. An intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the intangible asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.10(b)).

2.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, and are
not occupied by the companies within the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other gains/(losses) - net”.

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use,
any difference arising at the date of reclassification
between the carrying amount of the property held for
own use immediately prior to the reclassification and
the fair value as a result of revaluation is recognised as
below:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve; and

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is
decreased as a result of the revaluation, the
decrease shall be recognised in the income
statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property,
the revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as a property held for own use and its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
deemed cost for subsequent accounting in accordance
with Note 2.5.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

(a) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
For the Group, the low-value assets are typically
office equipment. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Notes 2.5 and
2.10(b)), except for the right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with Note 2.7.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities as a separate line item in the statement of
financial position. The current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(b) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2.22(b).

2.9 Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement

Loans to customers are initially recognised when they
are originated. All other financial assets (including
regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or (iii) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as measured at FVPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

(i]  Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(il  Business model assessment [Continued)

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL.

lii)  Assessment whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

i) Assessment whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest
(Continued)

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time
value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.
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EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liii] Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: The net gain or loss recognised
in the income statement includes any interest earned on
the financial asset at FVPL and is included in the “Other
gains/(losses) — Net”. The net gain or loss recognised
excludes the dividend income which is included in other
income.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liv] Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. All financial liabilities of the
Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Derecognition

(i]  Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)

(i]  Financial assets [Continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset (other than
FVOCI), the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset derecognised (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and
the sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of equity investment
securities designated as measured at FVOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities, and will be transferred to retained profits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)
(il Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.

(d) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
on initial recognition is normally the transaction price -
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.
If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a
valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement,
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss
on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and
short positions at an ask price.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date on which the
amount could be required to be paid.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of that
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment
(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(i)  Financial instruments

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) model on financial
assets (including credit-impaired loans to customers
and interest receivable, other debtors and deposits,
dividend receivable and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECLs represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECLs
represents the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowances equal to
12-month ECLs, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECLs.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECLs should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risks of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(ii] ~ Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’'s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status, credit risk ratings and collateral types.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial

asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(iii] Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

liv] Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD")
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default (“EAD"). The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECLs reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECLs is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(vl Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial restructuring; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(vi] Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.22(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the financial
asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

lvii] Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets except for loans to customers
and interest receivable where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

viii] Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects
no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due. A write-off constitutes a derecognition and any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in the income
statement.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
or have not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)

(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
assets belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment (Continued)

(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are
reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any amortisation or depreciation), had no
impairment loss been recognised against the asset in
prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less impairment losses (if
any).

2.12 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that
are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

131



i O BT IR R REHAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

132

F2E5ECR (18)

2.131RIBBE
(a) 98

R e WIRERFL - LA RGN
ELREEFEHDHE

AEBERENEHPRBREH/EIMET
KEAERBRAEH) o

BIMETRBANREAREZTFEE
TRRARSMERYE = FEKBEM
EEMBEINEAR - BERFEAHOK
FEHEH  MEZXIRE - BT
HOREITREINZTENERE AL
ITHERINPEEMERT (BEEME)
EREARBREREFRAFE=ENAGE
TAVMMERBENEIEHERT (A
MEME) °

MERBREOTIEZAAEERTPRERM
ERKRAPEERNEEMFELEE -
EFREMENETEFAE - WHAKE
ERMEATEETER T EHNE
MK IR SRR E (B EPERE) -

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts

(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group
are casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of financial loss arising
from causing harm to third parties as a result of their
legitimate activities. Damages covered include both
contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual
and business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or
property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate
the Group’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost.
Customers who undertake commercial activities on
their premises could also receive compensation for
the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business
interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged
to the income statement as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract
holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have
occurred up to the reporting date even if they have
not yet been reported to the Group. The Group does
not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities
for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group
and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate
costs of more complex claims that may be affected by
external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are assessed by reviewing
individual claims and include an estimate for claims
incurred but not reported at the end of the reporting
period. This provision, although not capable of precise
assessment, has been made in the light of available
information and after taking into account direct claims
handling expenses and possible recoveries from other
parties. Indirect expenses relating to the general
administration of claims are not included as part of
outstanding claims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported
at the end of the reporting period is made based on
historical experience.

Claims recoverable from reinsurers are included as

an asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(c) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary
with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the
life of the contracts as premium is earned.

(d) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administrative expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the income statement initially by writing off DAC and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test
cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group and that
meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts in Note 2.12 are classified as reinsurance
contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these
classification requirements are classified as financial
assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group
under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included as “Insurance
contracts” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-
term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsurance contracts
and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised
as an expense over the terms of reinsurance contracts
and are included as “Insurance payable” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance
asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the consolidated income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that a
reinsurance asset is impaired using the same basis
adopted as described in Note 2.13(f).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(fl Receivables and payables related to
insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.
These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that insurance
receivable is impaired. Insurance receivable is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events (a ‘loss event’) that have occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on insurance receivable has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the original effective interest rate of
insurance receivable.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(g) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell
(usually damaged) property acquired in settling a
claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when
the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
assessed that can be recovered from the action against
the liable third party.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of three months or
less from the date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.15 Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

2.16Financial liabilities - Creditors and
payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits
with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
economic benefits occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
the inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.



in ORI R R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE2E5ECR (18)

2.19 9N 80 8
(a) Ihee SRR S HE

BEEGAMBRRPASESERN
SFER  OUREBKEMENTE
RERBNER ([ThEE®] ) 5tE -
HAEMBRRABTER  BLTREAR
AIRZhBE KR IR EH -

(b) RZRGEER

SNER ZIRAR 5 ANMEXME RINEE

B - BENERFHELWELRE
&Hﬁl\%uﬂﬁﬁ’]ifﬁgééﬂﬁf PAY
ExMEEANEN BEERERARE

7J
at ©

FEBRSREENEE (PIWEATFE
BBERIIROERTA) HKEZH
EBRERAZR/AFERENH
7o FEERIER (PR A FESAR
EEREOBERE) HEREZEE
REHEMEEKERN - XEBRREEA
D RET

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
measured at FVPL, are reported as part of the fair value
gains or losses in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments measured at FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

- assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates,
unless these average exchange rates are not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. In such case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the disposed of portion of
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
associates to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.21 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.22 Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the assets.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(d) Insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates
to unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown
before deduction of commission.

Gross premiums from reinsurance contracts reflect
reinsurance business accepted during the reporting
period. Gross premiums include an estimate for
premiums receivable of the current period and
adjustments to estimates of premiums receivable in
previous years at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred.

2.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.



in ORI R R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE2E5ECR (18)

2.24RE 1R
(a) RRHAREREH

¥ RFRICANR 8 IR ARRE IRA 1Y
FENHEE - EXNHENBE
EMEFEREAR @ IWERBRRER
BARK -

(b) 3RIMN#RIAN

AREBEARFIE - 5B RET
[A) A P SRl A B IR B R IRET IR < 1t
L5t 8RS B S B E R SUE 1
FORKET 8] AERBEEHHRIE - AE
BIMIREE - EESAERFAEH
BERMAREREEE B RAEHE
HY AR ST AR A - AN 5% B T DA E Sk
B EXRIMEK -

AEBNHFERNEEZREE RN
Fix - B 28R E R KATRER At 3
& B TR e R mR A o B HER
# A3 & AR SRk DR A AR SR AN R A RE R

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans
are defined contribution schemes which the Group
pays fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services rendered in the current
and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefits expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee’s leave entitlements

Employee’s entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee’s entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the reporting date are
discounted to present value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and

the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.26 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in Note 2.26(a).

(vii) a person identified in Note 2.26(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes
of them, either due to changes of management’s
judgement or the evolvement of the actual
circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group believes that the assumptions and estimates
that have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group’s financial position and results
in all material respects.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Significant influence over Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”,
together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB”) and
Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"],
are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”)

The Company holds approximately 8.8543%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its representative on the board of directors of XIB as
well as the participation in policy-making processes
through the representation in committees set up by
the board of directors of XIB even though the Company
holds less than 20% of the voting power of XIB.
Accordingly, the Company considers that XIB Group
shall be classified as an associate of the Company
and the Company’s interest in XIB Group shall be
accounted for using equity method in accordance with
the HKFRSs. Details of XIB Group are set out in Note 17.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued]

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.2 Deferred income tax liabilities

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amounts of provision for income tax
and the timing of the payment of the related income
tax. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
In particular, at 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position a deferred income tax liability of HK$40.96
million (2020: HK$35.02 million) in relation to dividend
of RMB334.61 million (equivalent to HK$409.55 million)
(2020: RMB294.65 million, equivalent to HK$350.19
million) which has been proposed by XIB for the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020,
and approved by board of directors of XIB, subject
to approval from the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission Xiamen Office (“CBIRC").
Although the Group has not recognised the dividend
income declared which had not been approved by
the CBIRC, the Group has recognised the related
withholding tax in deferred income tax liabilities (Note
30) based on the assessment of probability of tax
exposure. Where the final tax outcome of the matter is
different from the amount that was initially recorded,
such difference will affect the provisions for deferred
income tax in the period in which such determination
is made.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.3 Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which
are set out in Note 16. The best evidence of fair
value of investment properties held by the Group is
current prices in an active market for similar lease or
other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts) adjusted to reflect
those differences, or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices.
At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately HK$175.63
million (2020: HK$173.11 million).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.4 Estimate of insurance contract liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts,
estimates have to be made for both the expected
ultimate costs of claims reported at the reporting date
and the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) at the reporting date. It may take
a significant period of time before the ultimate costs of
claims can be established with certainty and for some
type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the
insurance liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The ultimate costs of outstanding
claims are estimated by using a range of standard
actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques
is that past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence
ultimate costs of claims. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers
based on the observed development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development
is mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development
data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors
such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated
ultimate costs of claims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account all of the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group

The Group’s major associated financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally conducted banking business
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 17).
The management of XIB Group has prepared a set
of consolidated financial statements for XIB Group's
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of
XIB Group have been aligned, where necessary, in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with those accounting policies adopted
by the Group. Certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied by XIB Group as
described below:

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by XIB Group
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used
include market comparison approach and discounted
cash flows analysis and models. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such
as weighted average cost of capital, credit risks (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management of XIB Group to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect reported fair values of financial instruments of
XIB Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group (Continued)

[b) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group adopts ECLs model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs
are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
When determining whether the credit risk of a loan
and advance has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, XIB Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on XIB Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information. XIB Group uses
watch lists to monitor credit risk of loans and advances,
and conducts regular assessments at the counterparty
level. The internal guidance used in determining
whether credit risk increases significantly is regularly
monitored and reviewed by the management of XIB
Group for the appropriateness.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group (Continued)

(b} Impairment allowances on loans and advances
(Continued]

The ECLs is the result of the discounted product of
PD, EAD and LGD. XIB Group determines the expected
credit losses by estimating the PD, LGD and EAD of
individual exposure or loan portfolios on a collective
basis. The calculation of PD is based on reasonable
and appropriate statistical models selected by the
management of XIB Group, which are based on
market data as well as internal data comprising
both quantitative and qualitative factors, including
historical data, assumptions and expectation of future
conditions. The management of XIB Group applied
judgements to determine LGD after considering
different types of counterparties, methods and priority
of recovering debts, and the availability of collaterals
or other credit support.

Both the assessment of the significant increase in
credit risk and the measurement of expected credit
losses involve forward-looking information. Based on
the analysis on historical data, XIB Group identified
critical economic indicators that affect the credit risk
and expected credit losses of all asset portfolios.

XIB Group quarterly monitors and reviews assumptions
related to the calculation of expected credit losses,
including the changes in PD and the value of collaterals
under the different time limits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group (Continued)

[c) Estimation of impairment on goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill
on acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding
in CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs
of acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net
assets of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the
consolidated goodwill, the recoverable amount
of CYB cash-generating units is determined based
on the value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation requires XIB Group to estimate the future
cash flow projections of CYB cash-generating units
based on financial budgets covering judgement and
assumptions made by senior management and the
pre-tax discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Based on the impairment assessment performed
by XIB Group on such consolidated goodwill at 31
December 2021, no impairment loss was recognised.
However, as key assumptions on which management
of XIB Group has made in respect of future cash flow
projections are subject to change, an adverse change
in the assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group'’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest
its funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s
liquidity requirements and generates optimal returns
to the Group within a manageable risk level. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.

The Board, representing the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, is the highest
decision making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board
has adopted procedures for evaluating and approving
significant investment decisions. Given the nature of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, their risk
exposures are monitored by the Group primarily on a
qualitative basis.

The General Manager Meeting comprises the
General Manager (“GM”) and senior management
of the Company, is responsible for managing the
Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material
risk exposures or transactions within its authority
delegated by the Board.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its
insurance contracts is that the amount of the actual
claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual numbers and
amounts of claims will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

il Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically required to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

li]  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geographical
location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject
the payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts
also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the
legislation requires, the Group's strategy limits the total
exposure of any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amounts of the insurance liabilities (gross and
net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lil  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

2021

—fR
ERELE BWER
AE  General Property Hity B
Motor  liability = damage Others Total

8
&0
R

RIBEELE 8
ik
20
BF

REBEELE  F8

Gross
Hong Kong
Macau

Total insurance liabilities, gross
Net
Hong Kong

Macau

Total insurance liabilities, net

BETFT EBETT EETT EETT ERETT
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

26,864 24,359 6,380 49,845 107,448
5,872 1,034 65,772 2,249 74,927

32,736 25,393 72,152 52,094 182,375

24,848 20,182 2,450 49,683 97,163
5,704 1,016 63,657 2,070 72,447

30,552 21,198 66,107 51,753 169,610

2020
8
EREE UMER
pai=2] General  Property =) e
Motor liability =~ damage Others Total

(27) (E5) (E7)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

£8
&0
BF

R EERE  £8
ik
&0
RF
RiREERE  F8

Gross
Hong Kong
Macau

Total insurance liabilities, gross
Net
Hong Kong

Macau

Total insurance liabilities, net

BEFr EMFrT BMFrT FEFrT EEFT
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

18,074 15,817 5,498 21,567 60,956
7,910 1,190 57,636 1,524 68,260

25,984 17,007 63,134 23,091 129,216

17,391 13,499 3,492 21,365 55,747
7,503 1,113 55,367 1,351 65,334

24,894 14,612 58,859 22,716 121,081
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will
incur as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original liabilities established.
The liabilities for these contracts comprise provisions
for IBNR, provisions for reported claims not yet paid
and provisions for unexpired risks at the reporting
date.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported and not reported), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio
between the ultimate costs of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year
in relation to such claims) and estimates based upon
actual claims experience using predetermined formulae
where greater weight is given to actual claims experience
as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the costs of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is
available. In estimating the amounts of IBNR which
make reasonable provisions for the claims and the
unexpired risks, it is necessary to project future costs
of claims and associated claims expenses and simulate
the outcomes of claims liabilities using models. These
models are simplified representation of many legal,
social and economic forces and may not be entirely
appropriate for the types of insurance business being
analysed. It is certain that actual future claims and
claims expenses will not develop exactly as projected
and may vary significantly from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of
reported claims not yet paid the Group considers
any information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims
are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distortive
effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.
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{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

liii]  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice
of selected results for each accident year of each
class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed
historical developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have been
selected for individual accident year or group of
accident years within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s
motor, employees’ compensation and property
damage insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method
are applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

liiil Process used to decide on assumptions
[Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.

liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
claims development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities
claims are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase or a decrease of 10% in the costs of these
claims would require the recognition of an additional
loss or gain of approximately HK$6.91 million (2020:
approximately HK$4.56 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material.
Such an assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variable may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The
table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of net
claims outstanding of the Group’s motor, employees’
compensation and property damage insurance
portfolio for each accident year has changed at
successive reporting dates.
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ENEE Accident year

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
claims development tables [Continued)

Motor insurance

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 #% Total

it RAEER A Estimate of ultimate costs of claims

REYFE at end of accident year

—Fig one year later

13 two years later

=k three years later

Mm% four years later

ZEEH)25TE(E  Current estimate of cumulative claims
ESRHNR Cumulative payment to date

017FEFNEME  Liabilities in respect of prior years

before 2017

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BETT ERETT BETT EETT BETL | BETR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 | HK$'000

16,561 9,269 7,931 8,355 11,001
11,578 15,306 6,804 7,402

18,675 15,632 5,465

21,094 14,601

21,894

21,894 14,601 5,465 7,402 11,001 60,363
(19,646)  (13,420) (3,297) (2,566) (1,305) | (40,234)

2,248 1,181 2,168 4,836 9,696 20,129

389

20,518
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4.1 RRKRBFERAR (18)

(a) RIREKRR (48)

livl BRI — RERESIEZRIH

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance

RUERFE (B claims development tables (Continued)

ETIRE Employees’ compensation insurance

ENEE Accident year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 #% Total
BEFT EETT  BETT  BETT  BETL | BEFL

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000

EtRAEEKA Estimate of ultimate costs of claims

RERFE atend of accident year 19,720 4,375 2,243 5,548 8,978

—E% one year later 4365 4,775 1,866 6,358

—ERB two years later 7,879 4,571 1,391

=F% three years later 5,841 4,473

ImEf four years later 5,237

ZEEE)25TEE  Current estimate of cumulative claims 5,237 4,473 1,391 6,358 8978 | 26,437

RLZHHT Cumulative payment to date (5,036) (4,473) (912) (1,941) (264) | (12,626)

201 - 479 4417 8,714 13,811
017 EFRMEM  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2017 2,022
15,833
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L RIGNEFREEIR (88) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
41 RIBKMFERMAR (&) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
(a) fRIR@FR (£&) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
liv] BREDNT — REBEEZRENIY liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
REHRZ (& claims development tables [Continued]
BYE R R Property damage insurance
EHEE Accident year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 #%E Total

ERTT  EETT EETT EMTT  EETT | BRETx
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000 | HK$'000

R RRBEER R Estimate of ultimate costs of claims

REHEER atend of accident year 9,375 4,263 5,234 7,095 6,748

—&f one year later 7,875 4,977 1,374 2,376

—ERB two years later 8,132 4363 1377

=FE three years later 7,875 4,263

MEE four years later 7,875

SHEETH 25182 Current estimate of cumulative claims 7.875 4,263 1377 2,376 6,748 | 22,639
ELEHNT Cumulative payment to date (7,875) (4,263) (1,029) (1,061) (685) | (14,913)

- - 348 1,315 6,063 7,726
017EERANET  Liabilities in respect of prior years

before 2017 -

7,726

rEBAETRARRER L —ZRS The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
BRNDRER - REEUSEARD covers on a number of short-term insurance products.
HAR - ABAEBEBITMEFEE —BR The placement of reinsurance is diversified such that
A - BB ARKREEIE —BRR the Group is neither dependent on a single reinsurer
&R - REETE S EFRR AR nor are the operations of the Group substantially
E e dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. The

Group also considers the long-established business
relationship with the reinsurers.
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(a) RIREKRR (48)

livl BRI — RERESIEZRIH
RZERE (&

REE B TR B A BRI L B E AR
BRI —TE 7K - ABIR G20 52 A 7K
KEXFHEFEFOER - ZFARNE
RERSRESH B R RIEA KB R R
o BAERRRAIERENRS TR
N E—BERLHEESHMS  2F
BMEEGFERRNESEIRZEH B
NEIEERRBR LT ([EERR])
BB R A ER A 5% o

(b) himREKR

misERE R EEATSRERERKY
BEYHBEEBENER - BREEE S
EFER - FIR - IRRER KA RERK
BoIBMBERX -

AEENEBRERBFEHERGMRERE
ERRIE - fEORE % 6 7] 3 2 A7k
TR REBREMNAEESTSHE
MRER S TABRIAETRE @ 1Em
ZHhinER - WHEREEHER - L
BERFADEEMENER -

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
claims development tables [Continued)

The Group has also limited its exposure to a certain
level by use of reinsurance arrangements in order
to limit exposure to catastrophic events, such as
earthquakes and flood damages. The purpose of these
underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit
the exposure to catastrophes to a pre-determined
maximum amount based on the Group’s risk appetite.
For a single realistic catastrophic event, the maximum
exposure is less than 5% of the shareholders’ equity
of the wholly-owned subsidiary, Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”), on a net basis.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation
to invest within a list of permissible instruments
authorised by the Board to ensure all risks arising
are thoroughly identified, properly measured and
adequately controlled.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau and is primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
measured in Renminbi and the United State dollars.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income denominated in foreign
currencies.

In respect of insurance receivable, reinsurance assets,
credit-impaired loans to customers and interest
receivable, other debtors and cash and bank balances
held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group's
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate
at the reporting date:
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R R RREIR (18)

4.1 REBRVBERKAR (&)

(b] Fﬁi’%mﬂ (mg)

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

li)  Sh&EfE (& (il Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
2021 200
BEZE BEEE
HKD equivalent _ HKDequivalent
N EY a5 ARE e ke
RMB usb Total RMB usb Total
(Z5) (E51) (E51)
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
BETr  BEFr EETL BEFT  BEFT  BEFX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ROTEFALMBEE  Financial assets at fair value through
IRt aEE other comprehensive income 805,914 = 805,914 361,001 - 361,001
BATEFHBATIRD  Financial assets at fair value through
LREE profit or loss 3,559 44,009 47,568 - 26,979 26,979
o Other debtors 15,549 203 15,752 8,598 m 8709
BERBIER Cash and bank balances 186,398 8,797 195,195 146,953 1,014 147,967
1,011,420 53,009 1,064,429 516,552 28,104 544,656

T%Wﬁ$§%l#z#& H IF’E}\E@?E
KRB S IE AT
HAEH E@Fﬁ%ﬂfﬁmﬂ&%%’%/ﬁﬂ

Ko fzs L AR A BD 0 EE A HO K KD ?é; :

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits, and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates of Renminbi to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date:

2021 2020
EX HEHREENR HiEmAf EX SEREENE  HEnHb
LR/ (FH) RERNNYE ARBINEE A/ (TH) RIENPE ARFrmzy2
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other
foreign  taxation and components foreign taxation and components
exchange rate retained profits of equity  exchangerate retained gfiﬁ of equity
Al
(Restated)
BAlt BETT BETT Bt BETT AETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
ARE Renminbi 5 8,580 40,296 5 6,170 18,050
(5) (8,580) (40,296) (5) (6,170) (18,050)
TSRES T IREEZEH IR Z The above sensitivity analysis has been determined

HRABELENRCHREREEHNTEAEE

FB B2 EL T A SMNE R b
R (5 Bl F =

N
<) Bl T -

assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to remeasure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il  Foreign exchange risk [Continued]

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
date. As a result of the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollars and the United States dollars, the
management considered that there would not be
material impact arising from any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollars against Hong
Kong dollars. Accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
presented for the United States dollars. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation
and equity of each of the Group’s entities measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2020.

(ii]  Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income or at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss comprise listed equity investments,
listed and unlisted investment funds and principal-
guaranteed structured bank deposits. Decisions
to buy or sell these investments are based on the
performance of individual investment compared to
that of the index, expected return and the Group’s
liquidity needs. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income comprise listed equity
investments. These investments have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against
expectation.



in ORI R R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R RREIR (18)

4.1 REBRVBERKAR (&)

(b] Fﬁiﬁmﬂm (mg)

[ I /} F /ng @ (mE

AEBRBARZRSGHMAFRBETHRIA
(R R ES P b M SRIT IR RUE £ B AR
Bk o EERHEZREIZHNER FiE
ITEBMEE - LEMEBRITERHNAF
BEENERAZENAS MBS
LN -t

EA2021$12H31E| I EHREE
ST ﬁFiﬂ&T&E S i ]
ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ“%{i&%T\“ HEFANEE
B B 1200 F S AR BB S ) 78 & 1 n sk g
Zm%)ﬁ%mz%ﬁ(zozoi 475 166
BT

TRIWNARAEBREZHRAREE LHIRE
IR E ISR ELH I A E A &
mhm&,

S EARRY AR
HRRRET - Rl E AR 5
BEEMANTE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii] ~ Price risk [Continued]

The Group monitors price risk arising from structured
bank deposits by limits established for transactions
and open positions. These limits are reviewed and
monitored on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
The fair value of the structured bank deposits was
approximate to their respective aggregate of principal
plus expected interest income at the reporting date.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that if the
quoted prices of unlisted investment funds increased
or decreased by 5%, with all other variables held
constant, would increase or decrease the Group's profit
after taxation and retained profits by approximately
HK$2.42 million (2020: approximately HK$1.66 million).

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits, and other components of equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for listed investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the reporting date:

2020
RREREH ﬁﬁ-\ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ& HEEHY AREREY “ﬁ Wmﬁmﬂ éﬂ% A
t#/ (T BHNYE ARBINFE LA/ (TH) RIEFNFE ANFHrnd2
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained gfiﬁ of equity
Al
(Restated)
BAk BETT Vil I=Fiyid BEFT BT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000
LHREN  Stock market index
BBRT  inrespect of listed
BY investments
EEEY Hang Seng Index 5 680 = 5 400 -
(5) (680) o (5) (400) -
18854358 Shanghai Composite
Index 5 90 39,921 5 - 17,767
(5) (90) (39,921) (5 - (17,767)
FI 538 Shenzhen Composite 5 59 - 5 - -
Index (5) (59) = (5) - -
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

lii]  Price risk [Continued]

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the
stock market index had occurred and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits, bank borrowings
and loan from the controlling shareholder, bore at
fixed or floating rates, which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively. The Group manages these risks primarily
through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short to medium period
and monitoring the market interest rate movements so
that the Group can react accordingly when there are
adverse interest rate movements.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from its savings accounts carrying interest
at variable rates. The Group is not subject to significant
amounts of risk due to the minimal interest rates of its
savings accounts. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
has been presented on cash flow interest rate risk.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes

&% R EZAN RIS IED 8 in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits
""""" BE) o MATAEMEBEEIETE - HAK in response to reasonably possible changes in interest
EENBRHREZEFN MREBRFEENK rates with all other variables held constant for bank
Kl borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
at the reporting date:
2021 2020
HBRBEEAR HRBEEN R
REHERHE RERMNE T E
Effect on Effect on
FIRE B profit after B profit after
Changein taxation and Changein  taxationand
interest rates retained profits  interestrates retained profits
(£7)
(Restated)
2 BEFTT 2E EWFT
Basis points HK$’000 Basis points HKS'000
RITE Bank borrowings 100 (4,163) 100 (3,103)
(100) 4,163 (100) 3,103
TRIREE R Loan from the controlling shareholder 100 (835) 100 (1,253)
(100) 835 (100) 1,253

FlHRESTEREFNEEHEIRE
WABEREHEASBERERARFE
REZHFNEeMTENOFERRR - £H
S TFHI100EESAEEEHES N —
EFEL23FA PR EEENEER]
REE BTG © 2020 FEY D ITIRMER E
—'—ETT°

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments with variable
interest rates held by the Group at the reporting date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2020.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for
amounts due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to loans to customers and
interest receivable, reinsurance assets, insurance
receivable, other debtors and bank balances.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer/
counterparty and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers/
counterparties.

In respect of the reinsurance assets, insurance
receivable and loans to customers and interest
receivable, the Group limits its exposure to credit risk
by screening the counterparties, on-going monitoring
and acquiring collateral from counterparties.
These receivables are required to meet the Group’s
established financial requirements and the Group
will obtain third party guarantees when it considered
necessary.

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECLs model on credit-impaired loans to customers
and interest receivable individually. The management
estimates the PD and LGD of credit-impaired loans to
customers based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the customers. The Group has recognised
impairment allowances at amounts equal to lifetime
ECLs for credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable. At 31 December 2021, the Group's
impairment allowances on credit-impaired loans to
customers and interest receivable were HK$202.23
million (2020: HK$254.39 million) and impairment
allowances to loans to customers and interest
receivable ratio was 91.8% (2020: 92.4%).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

For insurance receivables, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual insurance
debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group maintains
records of the payment history for significant contract
holders with whom they conduct regular business. The
Group limits its exposure to credit risk by selecting the
counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquisition
of collateral from counterparties. The Group mitigates
its exposure to risks relating to receivable from
insurance contracts by requiring debtors to meet
the Group’s established financial requirements and
obtain guarantees from third party if considered
necessary. The exposure to individual counterparty
is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the
right to offset where counterparties are both debtors
and creditors of the Group. Management makes
regular reviews to the recoverability of the insurance
receivable. Management information reported to the
Group includes details of provisions for impairment
on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs if
need.

Reinsurance is employed to manage insurance risk.
This does not, however, discharge the Group’s liability
as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for
any reason, the Group remains liable for the payment
to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers
is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising
from bank balances. At 31 December 2021, credit risk
on bank balances is limited because bank balances
were placed with reputable financial institutions
with diversification. The counterparties are major
institutional banks with credit ratings of BBB or higher
(2020: BBB or higher) assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. These institutional banks have a low
risk of default and there is no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Accordingly, they
are subject to 12-month ECLs.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date without taking into account of any collateral
held or other credit enhancement is the net carrying
amount of the financial assets and insurance assets
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. A summary of the maximum exposure is as
follows:

2021 2020

(&%)

(Restated)

BT JBEMEF T

HKS$’000 HK$’000

R JEHSZ,TA Insurance receivable 110,538 63,218

BIRMEE Reinsurance assets 12,765 8,135
BELERENESER Credit-impaired loans to customers

NERH B (FFRE22) and interest receivable (Note 22) 17,979 21,034

fEU —RBE 2 N FII% S Dividend receivable from an associate - 4,754

HiEWER RIES Other debtors and deposits 43,909 41,766

NE NIRITER Cash and bank balances 904,146 1,175,508

1,089,337 1,314,415

BB SE R EUGEE R R A E —

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the

SHERBENEE20 ﬁﬁEfﬁﬂz{E
M E P ER & A B EE R R E
FEIRREHNERE22 -

EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from insurance
receivable are set out in Note 20 and that arising
from credit-impaired loans to customers and interest
receivable are set out in Note 22.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
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L RIBNEIFFRIREIR (18) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
41 REBRNEIBRRAE (8) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
(d) RENEERME (&) (d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRITRERBLAEENBRBREE The following table details the remaining expected
RRBEEQOOFIRTERZEERE - UKk maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s
REFBUNEYHATRIES R (BFER reinsurance assets and insurance contracts, and the
AHFEH B FEBREZHRAERIT remaining contractual value at the reporting date
WAEHENF L) FTENEAEENS of the Group’s financial liabilities which are based
MEENRRENEE  URKAERK on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
AERBBRIENXT BHFE interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required

to pay:

2021 2020
J iz %z
BHATE £1ER EARTE ERER
FEREE  E-Ea (8 FEisE  E-EA (8
Tt H#EX  EEWE) T AEEX  EEWE)
BEE  contractual  Withinone  In the second BEE  contractual Withinone  In the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifthyear Carrying ~ undiscounted yearor — tofifthyear
amount cashflow  on demand inclusive amount cashflow — ondemand inclusive

(51) (E31) (5) (E5)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

BETT  BETr BEFr BEFn | BFEr BEEr BEFr BEEr
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKs'000 HKS 000 HK 000 HKS 000 HKs 000
BB Assets
BRREE Reinsurance assets 12,765 12,765 9,043 37 8,135 8135 5977 2,158
g Liabilities
RRAY Insurance contracts 182,375 182,375 121,697 60,678 129216 129216 94318 34,898
[RIBRERH Insurance payable 59,366 59,366 59,366 - 31,135 30,135 31,135 -
HiERER Other creditors 11412 11412 11,412 - 2320 2320 230 -
fiEag Lease liabiities 1,063 1,063 230 833 65 65 65 -
BirfEs Bank borrowings 497,308 499,880 499,880 - 371,583 374452 374452 -
BRREEH Loan from the controlling
shareholder 99,985 101,035 101,035 - 14993 154,058 52985 101,073
851,509 855,131 793,620 61,511 704262 711,46 575,275 135,971

182 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management
objectives and policies of the Group’s associated
financial institution, XIB Group, are summarised as
below:

(il  Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB
Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management.
Its senior management establishes related risk
management policies and procedures under the
strategy approved by the XIB Board, including written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management
policies and procedures are implemented by various
departments after XIB Board’s approval. In addition,
its Internal Audit Department is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(i}  Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of
XIB Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

liii]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to
ensure the availability of adequate funds to meet
its needs to funding deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to
meet its obligations to funding loan originations
and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to
assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

[iv] Market risk

XIB Group'’s market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and
in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk
of the trading book. The banking book consists of
financial instruments not included in the trading book
(including those financial instruments purchased with
surplus funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits
and risk limits to identify, monitor and control market
risk. XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

— Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv] Market risk (Continued]

— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and
most common interest rate risk, arises from the
difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating
interest rates) of XIB Group's assets, liabilities and off
balance sheet commitments. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk primarily
through controlling the distribution of the maturity
date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits and the
asset-liability re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total net assets. Total borrowings comprise all bank
borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total net assets comprise all components of
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2020, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders
of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2021

WERBELERMT - and 2020 were as follows:
2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Total borrowings 597,293 521,526
BEFE Total net assets 8,714,581 7,598,091
EARBMEHR Gearing ratio 6.9% 6.9%
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
(@) Capital risk management of Min Xin Insurance

The capital requirements of Min Xin Insurance, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are mainly
set and regulated by the Insurance Authority and these
requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. Min Xin Insurance is required to
maintain the value of its assets to be greater than the
aggregate amount of its liabilities and the relevant
amount within the meaning of Section 10 of the
Insurance Ordinance. Min Xin Insurance is also required
to maintain assets in Hong Kong with an amount that is
not less than the aggregate of a prescribed percentage
of its liabilities arising from Hong Kong insurance
business and the relevant amount determined
in accordance with Section 25A of the Insurance
Ordinance.

In addition, the Macau Branch of Min Xin Insurance
is required by the Macau Insurance Ordinance to set
up technical reserves and to maintain a margin of
solvency sufficient to meet the liabilities arising from
its activities in Macau. The technical reserves shall
be guaranteed by equivalent and congruent assets
located in Macau, unless authorised by Autoridade
Monetaria De Macau to utilise overseas assets.

Min Xin Insurance also maintains a healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximise shareholder’s value. Min Xin Insurance may
adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue new
shares to the Company to fulfill these requirements.

Min Xin Insurance manages its capital requirements
by assessing any shortfalls between the reported
and required relevant amounts on a regular basis.
Min Xin Insurance fully complied with the externally
imposed requirements of the Insurance Authority and
Autoridade Monetaria De Macau during the reported
financial periods.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management of associated financial
institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i)
to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within
XIB Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission, for supervisory
purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristics of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. The Group measures fair
values using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as listed equity securities measured at
FVPL and FVOCI and listed investment funds measured
at FVPL) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is measured
at quoted price provided by the fund administrators or
published by the fund management companies. Such
quoted prices represent the net asset value per share
of the investment funds which are derived from the fair
value of the underlying assets and securities measured
using value or price provided by independent verifiable
pricing sources. The Group adopted the quoted prices
of the funds as their fair value at the reporting date
and these financial instruments are included in Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of fixed-term and principal-guaranteed
structured bank deposits placed with certain banks in
Mainland China were approximate to their respective
aggregate of principal plus expected interest income
at the reporting date and these financial instruments
are included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group'’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments held by the Group at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of
each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement:
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L RIENEERESIE (8) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
43 ERMTBEARYE (8) 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)
(@) URAFENEMNERIA (8) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)
2021 2020
£-50 ECER 254 aE 225 FCEf EZER a3
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
BEFT  BETT  BEIT BEFT | BFEET BETT EEFr BEFT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
EEUNATETE  Recurring fair value
Measurement
EE Assets
BATE AL Financial assets at fair value
2EWENSE  throughother comprehensive
B income 805,914 - - 805,914 361,001 - - 361,001
BATEEBERTE Financial assets at fair value
NEMAE through profit or loss 19,855 723,142 - TAT 9617 360,361 - 369,978
825,769 723,142 - 1,548,911 370,618 360,361 - 730,979

(b) FEARFEIENSETAERF
(=]

REHEKATENEREE  BEK
HERRERE (08) REMNKARE
EBENRETEERAFEMEE - ERAEEN
NHERASERAUSR T ARGNR
BMSMEFRRKENRSRIELA
g o

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost,
trade receivables less impairment losses (if any) and
trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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mIR R FFREREIR (48) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

43 ERTHEAYE (8) 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

by FEUAFEEIENSBTEANFE (b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
8 (48) than fair value (Continued)
fHEF R B & IS B g - WARE BT Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
CES M E AW ITTE  BIEEAD and are based on historical experience and other
ERTHEASENYRAREHNTE factors, including expectations of future events that
EIS are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
EERAARERNSREERSHERE In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
HMATFEEOEERERESRANET assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
g o their carrying values at the reporting date.
0 2®MITE RBREEMNREKRaRE (c) Categories of financial instruments, insurance
F%E R assets and insurance liabilities
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRMEE Financial assets
BT ER AHAM Financial assets at fair value through
rHKENEHEE other comprehensive income 805,914 361,001
N FEFEBIBZYIER  Financial assets at fair value through
HemEE profit or loss 742,997 369,978
R AT ER Financial assets
PREE at amortised cost 966,034 1,243,062
BEER AT B Financial liabilities
THMAE at amortised cost 605,334 540,555
HEAE Lease liabilities 1,063 65
REBEE Insurance assets 173,261 111,793
REEE Insurance liabilities 241,741 160,351
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(@) ZERAARNEZEBKLA

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(@) The amount of each significant category of

wmE revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:
2021 2020
(E31)
(Restated)
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
WER B FEE Net earned insurance premiums
EREBHRA Gross insurance premiums 196,155 160,862
RmEREE Movement in unearned insurance premiums (21,235) (19,872)
BRESHKBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
g A B R 2R reinsurers’ share of movement in
REE B unearned insurance premiums (18,760) (14,089)
,,,,,, 156,160 | 126,901
BREBRFEFETE Interest income calculated using
A B A the effective interest method
EEERENEFER  Interestincome from credit-impaired
FEUA loans to customers 7,153 4,460
IR SERRET B EM  Interest income from other financial
SREENBEWA assets at amortised cost - 49
,,,,,,,,, 7153 | 4509
KEMEHRSWA Rental income from investment properties | ¢ 9935 | 8,671
BAFEFEAEMEE  Dividend income from financial assets
Wi mEE at fair value through other
g M A comprehensiveincome | 14686 | 10,054
PNt Total revenues 187,934 150,135
(b) HAz4gA (b) Otherincome
2021 2020
(E31)
(Restated)
BT T BB F T
HKS’000 HKS'000
RITEZA BUA Interest income from bank deposits 27,824 38,183
AT (EFEBIEZYBE  Dividend income from financial assets
e R EERERA at fair value through profit or loss 1,935 2,091
AT 8 B Government grants 4 2,438
HAt Others 157 215
29,920 42,927

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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WARDSBER (18)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Board and the
General Manager Meeting that are used to make
strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by
the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on individual investee of the
Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

- Financial services: this segment includes the
engagement of banking business through the
Group’s major associate, XIB Group in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and
the provision of micro credit business in Mainland
China.

- Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

- Property investment: this segment includes the
leasing of high quality office space in Mainland
China.

- Strategic investment: this segment includes
the investment in A-Shares of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) and high-tech
investments of the Group.

Corporate activities: corporate treasury and other
centralised functions which cannot be allocated
to each reporting segment. It is not a reportable
operating segment of the Group.
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WARDBER (18)

(c) NEFRE - EERERE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments.
All direct costs incurred by different segments are
grouped under respective segments. Indirect costs
and support functions’ costs related to the strategic
decision making and day-to-day management of the
business of the Group and corporate activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to segments, products
and services are grouped under “Corporate activities”.
Transactions between segments are priced based on
similar terms offered to or transacted with external
parties. Inter-segment income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and
current assets held by the business entities, net book
value of investments held and share of net assets of
and loans to investees (Note 17(b)). Segment liabilities
include insurance liabilities, creditors and accruals,
income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
attributable to respective segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments or directly related
to those segments. An asset and a liability are grouped
under same segment if the liability is collateralised
by the asset. Dividend payable to shareholders of
the Company is treated as unallocated liabilities in
reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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IRAKRRDBBER (1) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
c) NEH*kE - SENRERE (&) (c) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
pii5is
SHEE ik VES T RHRE DIERES Inter-segment &4
Financial services Insurance Propertyinvestment  Strategic investment  Corporate activities elimination Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(&71) (&71) (E71)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

BRFT | BETT | BETT | BT | BRTR | ERTL | AR | BRTT | BETL | BRI | BETR | AETT| BRFR | AT
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSO00| RSO0 | RSO0 | HKSIO00 | HKSO00  HKSO0D | HKSUOD| HKSOO0 | HKSOOD| HKS'O00 | SO0

BENANALEE  Yearended 31 December

HREFUA Revenue from external customers
RiRERE Net earned insurance premiums - - | 156,160 | 126901 - - - - - - - - | 156,160 | 126901
REBHEREES  Interestincome calculated using
H8dA the effective interest method 153|440 - # - - - - - - - o A LN I
ERUA Rentalincome - -S| 4s1| 4115|3810 - - - - - | oss| e
e Dividend income - - - - - - 14686 | 10,054 - - - - 14,686 | 10054
1153 4460 | 161,920 | 131811| 4175 3810 14,686 | 10054 - - - -| 187,934 | 150135
E08 Inter-segments - - 758 %7 31 290 - S1o3e8 | 3339 @asn)| (3% - -
pE Rl Reportable segment revenue 1153 4460 162,678 | 132078 | 4,486 4100) 14686 | 10054] 3,188 3339 (4257)| (3896)| 187,934 | 150,135
EflA Otherincome 7 23 343 5458 - 3 - -| 26461 35233 - -1 990| Q97
BEUA Operating income 7180 6693| 166110 | 137536 | 4486 4103 | 14686 | 10054 | 29,649 | 38572| (4257)| (389)| 217,854 | 193,062
HM@/ g) - 5 Other gains/(losses) - net 4302 | (6990) 1,517 6,693 (imf 250 - -2 168 - S| 3863 | (6089

e *gﬂfﬁﬁﬁ Wite back of impairment loss on
RESHRENAE  creditmpaired loans to customers

HEEER and interest receivable 5750 | 9404 = - = - = - 5 - 5 -|osmo| 94
BERY Operating expenses pmo)| - eim3| nsasm) (3139 (28| (1317 - | emss)| 30| ansr| 3815 (187,087 (1567%9)
S2%7/(E8)  Operating profit(loss 10462 [ 4006| 13203 | 2000 3014 | 5356|4686 | 1005 | 15085 [ 17,169 gof @1 60380 | 39582
BER Finance costs B ) N ) - - - -l meos)| @asnf 7 6| (1632 (1436)
EEBELAZE  Shareof resultsof associates 458,076 | 444781 - - - 51N AL - - - -| 461,205 | 4691
BRAEH/ (58)  Profit/loss) before taxation ans3s | 4930 | 10| wos| 30| 56| 17835 | 1204|3476 8688 -l @) se9em | amer
miw Income ax expense (o890)| 893 196 | s &) (89| (1469 0,003 (96200 (9131) - -1 (aen)| 06129)
KERER)/ (FB)  Profitfloss) for the year d67607 | 405987 | 15076 | 1547|2986 | 3867| 16366 | 1119[ (6144)| () S| 495831 436062

HEBA Interet income 5| 6667|118 |  27% - - -
TEENEREH Depreciation and amortisation for the year W7 Wl 279 269 - - -

26,064 | 33230 - - W A%
1,013 932 (1,960) (1933 209% | 193
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5 WARRDIBER (£8) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) NEPEE  EENERE (8) (c) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
] ‘ e
SRR R VEDE RuRE DRRHES Inter-segment &
Financial services Insurance Property investment ~ Strategicinvestment  Corporate activities elimination Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(&71) (E71)
(Restated) (Restated)
BEFT | BETT | BEFT | BT | BETR | FRTL| BEFR | BETL | BETL | RS | BETR | BRTL| BETR | BETL
HK$'000 | HKSO00 | HK$'000 | HKSOOD | HKS'000 | HKSOO0 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKSO000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000
M128318 At 31 December
KAARKELT The Company and subsidiaries 178,404 | 159276 | 553,572 | 467914| 55126 | 63678 | 805914 | 361,001 1,303,975 [ 1237199 | (2153 (224)) 2,894,838 | 2,288,844
REBELE Investments in associates 6,725,205 | 6,067,913 - - - - S| 49107 - - - - | 6,778,417 | 6,117,020
aEE Total assets 6,903,609 | 6,227,189 | 553,572 | 467914| 55126 | 63678 | 859,126 | 410,108 | 1,303,975 | 1237199 | (2,153) (224)( 9,673,255 | 8405864
KAARNELT The Company and subsidiaries 67,242 | 212491 257,308 | 186731 | 19,685 | 2066 - -| 616,657 | 388509| (2,218 (224)| 958,674 | 807,773
aaR Total liabilities 67,242 | 212491 | 257,308 | 186,731 | 19,685 | 20,66 - -| 616,657 | 388509| (2,218 (224) 958,674 | 807,773

TEERFEESNT  Additons tonon-current segment asets
BE during the year - 0| 6105 B4 - - - - 257 07| (3921) -l 2441 461
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WARDSBER (18) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(d) @& (d) Geographical information
TRHBIEB () AEBREINAZTFR The following table sets out the information about
WA R (i) NEE R Y - e R - the geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues
EREEE REVERKREBRENT from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
([fEFEIEREBEE]) FTEMREAER - plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
e EIRIR RISk E Wk iEFT properties and investments in associates (“specified
EHE D - FEEIEREEEFEHIER non-current assets”). The geographical location of
g ME - HELRE FAEEE customers is based on the location at which the
MR EMELEEBTRITEHE D - services were provided or the goods delivered. The
B2 N A B AE BT E] D - geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment properties and the location
of operations in the case of investments in associates.
ik MEIR 2P ge
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(&51) (Z51) (&51) (Z5)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BETL | BT | BETFr | BEFr | BRI | BETL | BEFL | BT
HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000
BZ12A310LEE  Yearended 31 December
MEEERA Revenues from external customers 68,931 | 56511 26,014 | 18713 | 92,989 | 74911 | 187,934 | 150,135
®12A318 At 31 December
KRR RIELR The Company and subsidiaries 129,984 | 125305 | 73,442 73,584 1,207 103 | 204,633 | 198,992
REBENT] Investments in associates - - 16,778,417 | 6,117,020 - - 16,778,417 | 6,117,020
EEFRBEE Specified non-current assets 129,984 | 125,305 |6,851,859 | 6,190,604 | 1,207 103 | 6,983,050 | 6,316,012

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021



i O BT IR R REHAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 Hfthilkas  (B518) — $58 6 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET
2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
RATFEFBIEZVIEE  Netrealised and unrealised gains on
MEMEEMSEIR financial assets at fair value through
N ARSI WS IFEE (a) profit or loss (a) 14,996 2,822
HEYEEHAFE Fair value gains on revaluation of
& investment properties 5,223 13,698
—REEL N TIREZRHEE  Loss on dilution of interest in an associate
SEREE GEE17d) (Note 17(d)) = (28,746)
bE 5 Ug 25 F 58 Net exchange gains 3,644 6,141
23,863 (6,085)
(@) ZEHEBFEWIEATEBBIR (@) The amount included an interest income of
@Y RN ERMAENF SBAE HK$15,645,000 (2020: HK$5,342,000) received
#15,645,0007C (20204 : & #& from financial assets at fair value through profit
5,342,000 7T) ° or loss.

7 REREVELNBEFHAKAE 7  NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND
E&H COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS

2021 2020
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
R ERELREE Net insurance claims incurred on

JEEE (a) insurance business (a) 48,411 35,331

REBEBEESHFEME  Net commission expenses incurred on
ZH (b) insurance business (b) 83,773 66,834
132,184 102,165

200 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND

COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) RIRFEFELENESEPER (a) Net insurance claims incurred on
insurance business
2021
EH BRE FE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AEERERBLAFAZE  Currentyear claims and loss
£H adjustment expenses 17,355 (1,457) 15,898
AFEEREREBX Additional cost for prior years’
AEBAREEN claims and loss adjustment
AR expenses 29,248 (4,054) 25,194
BEAEBEARZHRAZEE  Increase in claims incurred but
hr=B | not reported 8,833 (1,514) 7,319
RAmBARMETESTEEE  Increase in the expected cost of
PX 738 A0 claims for unexpired risks - - -
55,436 (7,025) 48,411
2020
EE BiRkE FEE
Gross Reinsurance Net
(E51) (E7) (E7)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
AEERERIBLAFAZE  Current year claims and loss
BH adjustment expenses 13,036 (2,155) 10,881
HFEREREX Additional cost for prior years’
AEE BRI claims and loss adjustment
DN expenses 7,039 (1,398) 5,641
BRAERERMNERE  Increase in claims incurred but
| not reported 13,719 4,221 17,940
FmEREBRATERTEEE  Increase in the expected cost of
A ZR3E A0 claims for unexpired risks 869 - 869
34,663 668 35,331
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7 RBERELNEBEFTLEHLA 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND
EEH (88) COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) RBEBEENFHETER (b) Net commission expenses incurred on
insurance business

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HKS’000 HKS’000

B MERHEESE Gross commissions paid and payable 85,857 68,169
o B B ER Less: Commissions received and receivable

B ANE from reinsurers (2,084) (1,335)

HeERFEE Net commission expenses 83,773 66,834
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Z ¥ il 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFFEF AN Operating profit is stated after crediting
TF&I8 and charging the following:
A Crediting
E X e a %58 Net exchange gains 3,644 6,141
BEWMED W FEU Rentals received and receivable from
e HKREEER investment properties less direct outgoings 8,999 7,785
— WA — Rental income 9,935 8,671
— BEERH — Direct outgoings (936) (886)
R Charging
ETRA  BEEZMSE Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 39,775 39,511
— F  EERIEAT — Salaries, allowances and bonus 38,462 38,382
— RIKEFIFL K (a) — Retirement benefit costs (a) 1,313 1,129
ZERRT B & Auditor’s remuneration 2,466 2,187
— BEEE — Provision for current year 2,127 1,864
— P EGET — Interim attestation work 339 323
WEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 2,096 1,923
— YF - EERERE - Property, plant and equipment 1,528 1,451
— HE+# R 1 (& FE - Leasehold lands and land use rights 278 282
— HE A HYE - Properties leased for own use 290 190
EIRE (52 10()(iii))  Management fee (Note 10(a)(iii)) 1,880 1,880
HEME R KLEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
&8 equipment 21 125
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OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available
to all eligible Hong Kong employees prior
to 30 November 2000. The assets of the DC
Scheme were held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group
and employees were calculated at 15% of the
employees’ basic salary until 30 November
2000 when the DC Scheme was replaced by
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) set up under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
6% for employees who joined after 30 September
2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
monthly total income, subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
based on the internal grading system. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
by the Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited
in relation to those employees who leave the MPF
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
material unutilised forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland
China where the Group operates. The Group
makes monthly contributions calculated at
a percentage of the monthly payroll costs to
these schemes and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of the employees of the
Group.

FINANCE COSTS

RITIERA B
PR RE A E
X th

HEREBENEXH

Interest expenses on bank loans
Interest expenses on loan from

the controlling shareholder
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

2021 2020
EBETT BB FIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
8,720 8,495
2,889 5,831
23 -
11,632 14,326
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10 SHRiITHASMERDERS 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES" EMOLUMENTS AND

MENBRIAL FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) EFHE (a) Directors’ emoluments
EREE EHEEE
As director As management
& -RE
REAMRRLL
RENFIR
Salaries,
housing
EEHe and other 2021
Directors’ allowances, and #4 bl
fees benefits in kind Bonus Total
BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WiTEE Executive Directors

BRIESE (£/)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) = - - -
BRARSHE (B/Z/E) MrChen Jie (Vice Chairman) - - - -

RFLE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,569 595 2,224

FHITEE Non-executive Directors

BERLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60

BWEBLE Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -

BAUEHITEE  Independent Non-executive Directors

ERBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - . 250

RXELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 = - 350

ZellEs% 4 Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 = - 250
970 1,569 595 3,134
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10 SIRITHRAEMERDERS 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
BEARBABIAL (88) AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) EFHNE (18) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
ERES EAEEE
As director As management
k- FE
REAZE A
REWFI=
Salaries,
housing
EEe and other 2020
Directors'  allowances, and 2 ek
fees  benefits in kind Bonus Total
BT T BT T BEFT BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HITESE Executive Directors

BRIF%E (£/£)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) - _ _ _
BEANSL 4 (Z/Z/Z)" Mr Chen Jie (Vice Chairman)’ - - _ _
F3EL 4 (/Z/Z)? MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman)’ - _ _ _

RFLE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,496 595 2,151
FRTES Non-executive Directors
BERERL Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 . - 60
1BaER LA Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -
BUIEHTEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
R RE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 _ _ 250
RXELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
2AIB%E Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 - . 250
970 1,496 595 3,061
1 R2020F12 A 11 BEZEREIEFERITE 1 Appointed as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on 11
= ) December 2020
2 7R20205F9 A4RBERIEFERATES 2 Resigned as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on 4
September 2020

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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10 SHKITBHAEMERDhERS
MEav @RI AL (&)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(b]

E5M= (48)

ERES : ZFERBEE/LR
A EMBARNERMEMHREY
AR M A SRRV BN

EREERE: ZFHAEEHE
I AN 5% 18 55 5% P 4R 4 O B At AR %
M kBB -

RAREERBREEZNERE
BB 1888 JT (20204 : B
188E8 L) 1EREREBE—HEE
iR — L EERS - BIER
HEEFARAREEESNER -

heRsSHEtBRIAL

FRAAEEFHRSHAREERE—
# (20205 : — %) EF - HHFMHE
O LAUEE (@R FRAEKREA
(2020%F : [I#%) FEARBESHITR
RENHFHRSNREENFEFMFE

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES® EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) As director: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for the services as a
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(i) As management: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Group.

(iii) An amount of HK$1.88 million (2020: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision
of certain management services which include
the provision of directors to the Board of the
Company pursuant to a management agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the
year included one (2020: one) Director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note (a) above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining four
(2020: four) highest paid employees who are neither

N a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
2021 2020
BT B F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
e - BEENEAMEEL  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

AREDH = and benefits in kind 5,253 4,262
RIREFET 2R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 96
R"e Bonus 5,370 4,975

10,719 9,333
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10 SHKITHAEMERDhERS
MEav @RI AL (8)

(b) hEZFSMEHBRIAL (48)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES® EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

[ S Emoluments Band 2021 2020
AZ A#
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
F5 1,500,001 7C — 7815 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2

7B # 2,500,001 7T — /B % 3,000,000 7T
75 #£ 4,000,001 7T — ¥ 4,500,000 7T

(c) SHREERAE

A FERASREEABOMEHE
HEWT

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000

1
1

(c) Senior management

Details of the emoluments payable to senior
management of the Company by band are as follows:

e E Emoluments Band 2021 2020
AE A%

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

751,500,001 7C — /8% 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 2

7B # 4,000,001 7T — 7B %5 4,500,000 7T

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

income statement represents:

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

2021 2020
BT T B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
SRR Current tax
EEFER Hong Kong profits tax 337 362
B TS TR Mainland China corporate income tax 7,677 7,338
RN T IR TS Mainland China withholding tax 2,607 2,148
R IE Macau taxation 2,164 1,320
,,,,,,, 12785 | 11168
AEE%EME (BZ) /1B (Over)/under provision in prior years
R A ZEFTER Mainland China corporate income tax - 1
RPIREIR Macau taxation (266) 4
,,,,,,,,,, (266) | .5
B IE Deferred tax
TRHREENELAN Relating to the origination and reversal
o of temporary differences | 1,523 ( 24,952
Fr8Hi T H Income tax expense 14,042 36,125

EAFERIIZRBERHETERT G F
75 B 1k W 4% F) 15 5 B 2R 8.25% 1% 16.5%
(2020 4F : 8.25% [ 16.5%) IE B EHE o

B A EFTIS R T IR PR A AT IE
VTR AT SRR R R 25% (2020 £F : 25%)

| A
ST H o
Rl 7

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2020: 8.25% and 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

during the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the

estimated taxable profits for the year.
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11 FrfSHizd (88) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
R BB B AR M IREH R Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and
EIRRER - REEAS IR KA 10% on dividend income received from subsidiaries
5% 2 10% 8 40 B N3 TE R FT 1S B o and investees incorporated in Mainland China

respectively when these subsidiaries and investees
declared dividend.

B P55 T B B 3Kk Rl 42 BR A I 5T FE AR X Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the
FriSREMCRPIRMIRI TR KRG E o estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in Macau.

MEXHEGHAMRBERATEGTERN Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
ISR - profit at applicable tax rates:
2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
EBEFT BT T
HKs’000 HKS’000
BR 15 A1 2 A Profit before taxation 509,973 472,187
116.5% (2020 4F : 16.5%) Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
MBS ERER  16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 84,146 77,911
(R N R EER Tax effect of share of results of
MG 2 associates (71,211) (54,801)
H b B F i = Effect of different tax rates
TRAMENTE in other jurisdictions 3,260 3,146
FR B A FEER FT 1S R Mainland China withholding tax 2,607 2,148
BRI A Income not subject to taxation (8,161) (5,953)
AR A S Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 4,560 10,585
AERTRIBRFTETHTE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 4,390 4,351
A ART AR BERBITIIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (1,132) (2,795)
FFEEE GB%) /B (Over)/under provision in prior years (266) 5
BEMR RIS Income tax at concessionary rate (165) (165)
Hit Others (3,986) 1,693
Frigfi sz Income tax expenses 14,042 36,125
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iRR 12 DIVIDEND
2021 2020
BT T B F T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
PEIREBERAHM S Final dividend proposed after the
BRAEE 1240 reporting date of 12 HK cents
(20204F : BE101U) (2020: 10 HK cents) per share 71,671 59,726

25 AR FR ARSI E R A LR S B
BHRERAFERE - RSN EE2022
F12A3BEFEIIEREBEN DR -

SRR

FRERAEFEREHE2021F12 A
31 A IEFE AR AR R B & A E K
49,593.1 8 7© (20204 : 7 % 43,606.2
Bn) RFABBITRMDAINEFHH
597,257,252 (2020 %F : 597,257,252) %
AEBAFERBEFEHEDEITA
BEENINERSD  AEREEFENES
g R T HERERZFER -

13

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2022.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
HK$495,931,000 (2020: HK$436,062,000) and the
weighted average of 597,257,252 (2020: 597,257,252)
shares in issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.
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14 M7 ~ %8S RaR 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

i £
WERR
Bi%E
BiE Furniture,
BREF EMFEM  fixtures, office RE
Buildings held Computer  and computer Motor @
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
BT BETT BT JERFT JERFT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
1202051 A1 A At 1 January 2020
KA Cost 18,263 2,850 9,540 2,569 33,222
ZEHTERAA Accumulated depreciation and
3] impairment losses (7973) (2,115) (7,970) (1,885) (19,943)
BEEE Net book value 10,290 735 1,570 684 13,279
BZ2020%12A31HILEE  Yearended 31 December 2020
HREFE Opening net book value 10,290 735 1,570 684 13,279
ERZRE Translation differences 228 - 4 - 232
A Additions - - 461 - 461
REEHE Charge for the year (514) (465) (339) (133) (1451)
HE Disposals - - (125) - (125)
HREEFE Closing net book value 10,004 270 1,571 551 12,396
72020512 8318K At 31 December 2020 and
20211 418 1 January 2021
KA Cost 18,518 2,850 6,782 2,645 30,795
ZETERAA Accumulated depreciation and
Eig impairment losses (8514) (2,580) (5211) (2,094) (18,399)
BEEE Net book value 10,004 270 1,571 551 12,396

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

B £
WERR
ElRE
B Furniture,
AREF B4 fixtures, office RE
Buildings held Computer  and computer Motor @am
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HZ202151283181LEE  Year ended 31 December 2021
HREFE Opening net book value 10,004 270 1,571 551 12,396
BN ES Translation differences 114 - 2 - 116
R Additions - - 1,176 - 1,176
FERHE Charge for the year (619) (270) (529) (110) (1,528)
HE Disposals - - (21) - (21)
BREMESTHE @) Reclassified from investment
properties (a) 2,710 - - - 2,710
BREETFE Closing net book value 12,209 = 2,199 441 14,849
®2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021
B Cost 21,358 2,850 6,811 2,684 33,703
ZEMERAEA Accumulated depreciation and
BB impairment losses (9,149) (2,850) (4,612) (2,243) (18,854)
REFE Net book value 12,209 - 2,199 441 14,849

@) MRFEAMHN—EHEEDER
REERBRENEENDERE
TERYE- ZVERETRE
BORFEEIRFIEERET

YRR o

(@) A commercial property located in Mainland China
was reclassified from investment property to
owner-occupied property during the year and
its fair value at the date of change in use was
recognised as cost of building held for own use.
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15 EHIESE=ZE

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HELHR
T fE AR HEAR
Leasehold BRKNYE
lands and Properties
land use leased k]
rights for own use Total
EBEFT BEFT BEFIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
720201818 At 1 January 2020 13,702 253 13,955
REFHH Charge for the year (282) (190) (472)
22020512 A31HK  At31 December 2020 and
20211 A1H 1 January 2021 13,420 63 13,483
IR Additions - 1,265 1,265
AR Lease terminated = (22) (22)
RE[S Y Charge for the year (278) (290) (568)
R2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 13,142 1,016 14,158

AEBRFERARE —HFALORERE
AEEEMMEABHEBE 1278 T
(20204 : #)

FRANHEERSREBEABE 58T
(20204 : BE19&8TT) °

R20215F12A31H  CHERHEARE
1068 7T (20204F : B 7ET) &
EEEME REEEB 1028 7T (2020
F:BBeBEL) cBREMARBAEHES
EMERER 2N BE I8
TRIRY) - HEEETSRAEETRER -

(@) MHEE LKt ibfE RN KREF
BT :

The Group entered into a new lease during the year
and recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
amounted to HK$1.27 million (2020: Nil).

Total cash outflow for leases was HK$0.25 million (2020:
HK$0.19 million) during the year.

Lease liabilities of HK$1.06 million (2020: HK$0.07
million) were recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$1.02 million (2020: HK$0.06 million) at 31
December 2021. The lease agreement did not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessors. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(@) The net book value of leasehold lands and land
use rights are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
BT B F T
HKS’000 HKS’000

EEBF/AHELD Leases held in Hong Kong
50 A £ Over 50 years 4,254 4,274
10F & 504F Between 10 and 50 years 8,888 9,146
13,142 13,420

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited




in ORI R R RERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 REWM* 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
~E At fair value
®1A1H At 1 January 173,113 159,415
N EKES Fair value gains 5,223 13,698
EFDEAYE  HEE  Reclassified to property, plant and
=i (sEEE14@)) equipment (Note 14(a)) (2,710) -
M12H31H At 31 December 175,626 173,113
AEENKREMERZEEES TN The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
I carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2021 2020
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBREMEY Leases held in Hong Kong
10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 114,000 109,100

EBBAIMNGE L Leases held outside Hong Kong

10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 61,626 64,013

175,626 173,113
—RKMBERRFEN A FEHEE 11,400 The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
& T (20204 : B 109108 70) AL A Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$114 million (2020:
RN —IHREYMENREZL ARER HK$109.1 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in
XEERME UNCEERENEN the custody of the Insurance Authority pursuant to the
RIE o relevant regulatory requirements.
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16 REMEK (88) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(al NFERIE

TREJNAEBIFENREYERLEE
HEEA SN 2021 F12A31BHNAF
B WREREBYHERELELFE 135
[AFEFE] FTEEN=RAFEERE
(X 430) P - A FEFEPED
M2 EHE T AT SRR I #R
MHNEBHERBET -

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
investment properties held by the Group measured at
31 December 2021 on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy (Note 4.3(a))
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique.
2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
REMNAFETE Recurring fair value measurement
E=ZZER Level 3
H B P Mainland China
SEXES Commercial properties 53,413 56,337
FEWE Residential properties 6,500 6,000
==Xy Car parks 1,713 1,676
61,626 64,013
0 Hong Kong
[EEXZES Commercial properties 114,000 109,100
175,626 173,113

AEBEFERAFEINRNABEREY
EERARATERBNE=-FHE -
FRILRER R TFERBE=FRNE
%o REBNBR RN ELEBHNZ2W
HIRERARAFERBESSAENER -

All the investment properties carried at fair value held
by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.
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16 R&EM* (18)

(b) AFERBRE=FHER

REMERBIL BEFGHM  F—KF
BAEMEELREEEM AR AR MEE
HEEFHEBABRAT - E20214F
NRABHEHMNAFEEESEMN A5E
BEBYVEET G RN SFERR
AR HERR MGHES

AR BERMEEEMERBNHRF
BERBARABREETE - ER1ERA2
EeMxERE - ERGENEFRMNE
SRAEREESRE  (\BEVERN
BAEENTF425EZ 45E (20204 :
43 E45F) mizAMHENFEF
FARAR®ES2 TE AR® 76 7T (2020
F:AREESD2TTEARET767T) K i)
B EARLERE28[E (20204 : 2.8
B) mi5 AR ASEMARK6307T
(2020 : AR¥6307T) - RV EFE
HERMERERHEEZ  EHhi5AHES
SIFLEEE -

R E A EEMEN R FERA
MIGLEAERE - W2 ER LBRYER
HINE PR EER U AEER
3% B2 A] L B 5 H B RO A4S T LR
W EREEEH R ERITEOEE -
EREEER  IRXNTAIBEEH
BITEE -

VUREBEBHNEEMENRFEEAT
BHEAET  WREM R YE T
HEFHREEBERE TR AEBNY
EHEAERYELEENETREE (4
MR KEEREE) (EH R ERITENSA
o fERBA - A FEBE-- EAR
HEER  MEXHEETERY
BAIE10% (2020 € : £710%) ©

16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2021 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussed with the
independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results at each annual
reporting date.

The fair values of commercial properties and car
parks located in Mainland China were determined by
income capitalisation approach. The current use is the
highest and best use. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are (i)
capitalisation rates ranged from 4.25% to 4.5% (2020:
4.3% to 4.5%) and monthly market rental ranged from
RMB52 to RMB76 (2020: RMB52 to RMB76) per square
meter for commercial properties and (ii) capitalisation
rate of 2.8% (2020: 2.8%) and monthly market rental
of RMB630 (2020: RMB630) per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the monthly market rental.

The fair value of residential properties located in
Mainland China was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price per
square meter of comparable properties, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the factors such
as the location and quality of the Group's properties
while compared to the comparable properties. The
unobservable input for discount applied in valuation
measurement was immaterial.

The fair value of commercial properties located in
Hong Kong was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price per
square foot of comparable properties, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the factors such
as the larger floor area of the Group’s properties
while compared to the comparable properties. Larger
discount will result in a lower fair value measurement.
The significant unobservable input for discount
applied in valuation measurement was approximately
10% (2020: approximately 10%).
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16 BREME (88) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
b) RFERBFEF=FMRERN (b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
(#&) hierarchy (Continued)
FRNZRERATERBE=ZSHNERE The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair
;AT - value hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
BENE GENE BENE:  HENR
Commercial  Residential Efi 8% Commercal  Residenta Bf %
properties  properties  Car parks Total  properties  properties  Carparks Total

BT EETr BRTr BRfa | BETT EETT R EETR
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00 |  HKSOD0  HKSOMD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO

®MA1R At1January 165,437 6,000 1676 173,113 151,883 5810 1722 159415
DTENE/ (BE)  Fairvalue gains/(losses) 4,686 500 37 5223 13,554 190 (46) 13,698
ENNERNE HE  Reclassified to property, plant and

R equipment (2,710 - - (2,710) - - - -
M2A318 At31December 167,413 6,500 1,113 175,626 165,437 6,000 1676 173113

ERRGABERD  Total unrealsed far vlue gains/
[/ (B9)  (losses) for the year recognised in
- BB 1IN the consolidated income statement

FERLTE as part of “Other gains/(losses)
ﬂﬁlfﬁ/ (BR) 2% -net’ 4,686 500 37 5,223 13554 190 (46) 13698
17 BE LT 17 ASSOCIATES
2021 2020
(E5)
(Restated)
BT T JBMEF T
HK$’000 HKS'000
& B A Cost of investment 972,776 972,776
BB R RN K& Share of post-acquisition profits and
HEf 2wk other comprehensive income,
R B Y% B net of dividend received 5,606,482 5,115,422
M 3 32X Exchange adjustments 188,442 18,105
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 6,767,700 6,106,303
ERF—FKEt% AT (b) Loan to an associate (b) 10,717 10,717
6,778,417 6,117,020
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s=/0a (§8) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(@) AEBREZEARMNKREDTMNM (@) The Group’'s investments in associates are
™ analysed below:

EfR&EE Hitb k|
XIB Group Others Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
720201 8 1H At 1 January 2020 5,482,955 49,274 5,532,229
fENZE%8 Translation differences 298,934 2,465 301,399
JEMRBRTRIBER Share of profit after taxation 444,781 2,150 446,931
35 B v A Profit before taxation 493,553 3,685 497,238
e Income tax expense (48,772) (1,535) (50,307)
EEIRRE Dividend declared - (4,754) (4,754)

NEERES (ER) Decrease in fair value reserve

S (recycling) (137,214) - (137,214)
NEEFES (A fER) Decrease in fair value reserve
VRS (non-recycling) - (28) (28)
EREs Dilution of interest
WG ABEERNIERLE  Loss on dilution recognised in
BEEE consolidated income statement (28,746) - (28,746)
MWINETEREEE R Release of exchange translation
NEERES reserve and fair value reserve
(] 1B3R) BEE (recycling) 7,203 - 7,203
72020612 A31HKE  At31 December 2020 and
20211 A1H 1 January 2021 6,067,913 49,107 6,117,020
fE N =58 Translation differences 169,391 946 170,337
FEMGBRTBLERA Share of profit after taxation 458,076 3,149 461,225
B 75 Al A Profit before taxation 439,542 3,403 442,945
Fri5fisz i Income tax expense 18,534 (254) 18,280
NEEFES (FJfER)  Increase in fair value reserve
E (recycling) 30,845 - 30,845
N EFES (FAfER) (Decrease)/increase in fair value
CRA) /10 reserve (non-recycling) (1,020) 10 (1,010)

M2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 6,725,205 53,212 6,778,417

(b)) HEZRAAEEYUZBEATN (b) The loan represented the Group's investments in
K& WTHAEIKR RENE that associate and was unsecured, interest free
PR SE SRR ER o and had no fixed repayment terms.

(0 AEBAEEFEBHENFERR (c) Bank deposits placed by the Group with
TEZRREZeREBE  HER associated financial institutions in the normal
REREERE RIBITHEFERA - course of business are included in cash and bank

balances.

ZZE-—F %R Annual Report 2021

219



220

i O BT IR R REHAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 BE2,9 (18)

(d)

E RN 2020F 128K A F
FETHBROBERERA ([E
BIER] ) UBARRIFER
B A% 7 B 499.7635% 1 # B = 49
8.8543% o A& I 722020 4F
BB EEENBE 28758 T
(T8e6)  WHREBEAEEEZE
2020 12 A 31 B IFWEEZEE
B &R & E IR 5 E £ 2020 F
AN BIEMEEZGENBE
B (EABRUFE RSB
®) 5HE - AEE RIS ERAR
e E = 49 8.8543% E(RHDATE
HEe TRRES BARE
e RAFERES (TAER) &
HOBE 14808 TEEFAER
REHF

mEK

KRAREERTHKIEERE
BTG E AT B 4R 4 8.8543% AR AE
MEREEERE IRAR
BEERNERZER  AAFAH
N BRI R EIERKITE
BAFEN - Al XREHEE
15 E R DB AERNR R M —KEE
NR) WHEZRBESH RS
HERGERFERMER AR
SEHEARR o
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d)

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital in December
2020 (the “Capital Contribution”), which resulted
in the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in
XIB from approximately 9.7635% to approximately
8.8543%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a
loss on dilution of approximately HK$28.75
million (Note 6) in 2020 based on the audited
consolidated financial information of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
audited consolidated financial information of XIB
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
The Group also transferred directly to retained
profits in total of approximately HK$148.02 million
from statutory reserve, general reserve, capital
reserve and fair value reserve (non-recycling)
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in
XIB to approximately 8.8543%.

The Company had evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 8.8543% shareholding in XIB
after the completion of the Capital Contribution
and considered that the Company has had the
ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB in
accordance with the terms of the constitutional
documents of XIB. Accordingly, the Company
has continued to classify XIB as an associate of
the Company and the Company have continued
to account for its interest in XIB using equity
method in accordance with the HKFRSs.
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(&) MUTHERBIEN20204F 12 A 31 (e)
HX2021F12 A31 HEAREER
XEREEFEAZENBLZ A
Ale WEERE2HIHAIIELTA
AN AEREFHEAR o

The following list contains the particulars of
those associates at 31 December 2021 and 2020
which principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. All of these entities are unlisted
corporates and are accounted for using equity

method.
FRai BEIR ARER
BEE HRBAHE BiER
Place of Particulars Group’s TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
il YNGIPA Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
E#RA Directly held
EFBRETRA Xiamen International Bank Co, Ltd, ~ H2 A R A 04745k 8.8543% B RBEER
BRAF and its subsidiaries (AR 9474(ET0)
REMBAR The People’s 9,247.4 million shares Banking and
Republic of China (RMB9,247 4 million) investment holding
BB ETRA Luso International Banking B 261 BER 4.3421% e
ERAA Ltd. (&F%26.1E7T)
Macau 2.61 million shares Banking
(MOP2,610 million)
ERBIERAT Chiyu Banking Corporation i 21824 B 6.1652% idh)
Ltd. (B es7787(57)
Hong Kong 2,218.24 million shares Banking
(HK$6,577.87 million)
EFBERRE Xiamen International &5 641953 Bk 8.8543% A
BRAA Investment Limited (A 641953 (57T
Hong Kong 6,419.53 million shares Investment
(HK$6,419.53 million) holding
RERE Indirectly held
HEEER? Min Faith Investments B 1000 0% AR
ERAF" Limited” (B%10070)
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
(HK$100) holding
(1) WEEARWIFHES FERTEZ - & (1) This associate is not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
Rt B & N R E EFE LR AT &AL Both the aggregate net assets and profit before taxation

I AREELRE BEFM 0.6% % 0.6% °

attributable to this associate represent approximately 0.6%
and 0.6% respectively of the Group’s consolidated totals.
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17 BE13 (8) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(f) BERBEZAAFKEREE (IFAX (f) Summarised financial information of the
SERMOGTEERS - WL material associate prepared in accordance with
HIZSMIEMEAOREEEYR) # the accounting policies adopted by the Group

TR and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed
below:

BiREHR
XIB Group
2021 2020
BT T BETFT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HMENT Ty EEHEEHE Gross amount of the associate’s
BE Assets 1,232,724,395 1,131,842,064
aE Liabilities (1,135,704,828) | (1,048,982,197)
IRV S Non-controlling interests (21,444,747) (14,697,446)
PR AR R Equity attributable to shareholders 75,574,820 | 68,162,421
B2 (a) Dividends (a)
2018 FF 2 2019 FF A HA% B Final dividends for 2018 and 2019 (3,693,707) (3,586,724)
2020 FAREIAR B Final dividend for 2020 (552,421) -
_(4,246,128) | | (3,586,724)
MG FRAL BB EEFE  Net assets after dividend proposed 71,328,692 64,575,697
WA %8 Total revenues 45,852,784 43,449,535
FELEEB RN Profit from continuing operations 5,173,483 4,555,546
H 2 mEES Other comprehensive income 101,739 (1,822,236)
PHEIWN 2% Total comprehensive income 5,275,222 2,733,310
HERZAEER Reconciled to the Group's interest
B N FHER in the associate
HBREEE N AR EERAY %%  Net assets after dividend proposed
WEEFE by the associate 71,328,692 64,575,697
REEN BN E R Group’s effective interest 8.8543% 8.8543%
fEIhEEFE Share of net assets 6,315,657 5,717,723
I 8 Dividends
2018 E 2 2019 ERHABZ S Final dividends for 2018 and 2019 360,635 350,190
2020 F R AR B Final dividend for 2020 48,913 -
FAEVBHRERN Carrying amount in the consolidated
RHEE financial statements 6,725,205 6,067,913
(a) ZEHFBEEEZE20187F + 2019 F K 2020 F (a)  These amounts represented the proposed dividends for the year

124 31 H1EF R BBDRALE. 4 75 7 B4R
TTREEEERZRBEFIEE/RIHE -

ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020, subject to approval
from the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
Xiamen Office.
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17 BE, 8 (88) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(9) IWIFERIERAEE R AMELR (9) Aggregate information of associates that are not
ERHEFEINT ¢ individually material is disclosed below:
2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
RSB &< AAIE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
(N lIEEp N 0] /NG immaterial assocates in the consolidated
WEREEETE financial statements 53,212 49,107
REBELZER S AT Aggregate amount of the Group’s share
T3 &I of those associates’
FRE IS S TS m T Profit from continuing operations 3,149 2,150
HEf 2wk Other comprehensive income 956 2,437
e L Total comprehensive income 4,105 4,587

18 BRAFEFAHMEBREN

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ERtEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2021 2020
BT JEIT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
m1A1H At 1 January 361,001 423,343
RAFERES (T Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in
fBR) RN AT E fair value reserve
sk, (E518) (non-recycling) 444,913 (62,342)
M12H831H At 31 December 805,914 361,001
BAFE At fair value
T REE S Equity securities listed on
EEEEZSFET () Shanghai Stock Exchange (a) 805,914 361,001
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18 BRRFESFAHMEBNRS

EREE (18)

18

(@) 7N £ E 2021 F & 2020512 A

JNABEBERLEERFRS LT
HARAER 0T
NGIES Company name

IAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(@) The equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange held by the Group at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Rl TEXK AEENENER
Place of Principal Group's
incorporation activities effective interest

ERERENRD
BRAR

Inc.

AEBETEERARRERR
FEFARMEEEE (TR A
R) WHIRRBRRERRARK
HRBEE M A -

AR AR AR E & B0 FEae
ARR B BUAS B A 3 AE TR AR A
BHANMFRERHER -
g AREREHREMEE R
wmAHER - YEATFERES (T
AER) AD R R FEZS
TR TR IR

Huaneng Power International,

hEE ARAAE HENHEES 0.43%
(816,795 BIRAR)

The People’s  Generation and sale (approximately
Republic of China of electric power 67.95 million
A-Share)

The Group designated its investment in A-Share
of Huaneng as FVOCI (non-recycling) as the
investment is held for long-term and strategic
purposes.

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had
issued certificate of tax exemption for the gain
from partial disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by
the Company in previous year. Accordingly, the
Group has not provided any tax provision against
the fair value movements recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).

19 ERFEENS N 19 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

2021 2020

BT JEIE T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

®1A1H At 1 January 40,440 28,905

FE RN Increase during the year 93,291 78,368
FERHEE Release during the year (83,773) (66,833)
M12H31H At 31 December 49,958 40,440

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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20 TRIRIEUGR

INSURANCE RECEIVABLE

2021 2020
BT T JBMEF T
HK$’000 HKS'000

REERN A RS #3EH A Due from insurance intermediates and
R contract holders 109,840 62,789
BRER AR Due from reinsurers 698 429
110,538 63,218

Rz YRR F D AV EE B — A% M 60
REIORNE - (RIRFEUKEEE 5K
(BRREHEAE=FHAER) B
EREOSRERABRE -

U IRIREUGK - NEEEERMEERRE
EHO ARG S FE - LR
SRR R ANBERRE - AEERE
HEETHREBNERSNREAN
RS2 A FRECER o {5132 5 1 F HYE 2 IR
BEAMEHIEE - fINERZE TR
AEBENEBAXZERANERL T
HiEHE - AR ERFEPZA - &A%
B HEXSHFAURFEEETFPNE
EEE MREFPHEEEERE IS
FETEL - BVEREZRRE - BF
MEEEEREETNE L N2
BHARRKTRERKEE  AREEE
BRERAARMNERTImEAREERE
A WHERRREETHROBHE
& o

The credit period for the majority of insurance
receivable normally ranges from 60 to 90 days.
The credit terms of insurance receivable, including
whether guarantees from third parties are required,
are determined by senior management of Min Xin
Insurance.

For insurance receivables, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual insurance
debtor to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group maintains
records of the payment history for significant contract
holders with whom they conduct regular business. The
exposure to individual counterparty is also managed
by other mechanisms, such as the right to offset where
counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the
Group. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
will screen the counterparty and on-going monitoring
the customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer, which are reviewed every year. There is no
adverse change in the credit quality of the customers
from the date when credit was initially granted and
no allowance for doubtful debts was provided at the
end of the reporting period. The management of the
Group will have monthly meeting to discuss the long
outstanding amounts and ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.
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20 iREzEWER (58) 20 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)
72021 F 12 A318 - REB BT At 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of insurance
oM (REEAH) T - receivable by invoice date was summarised as follows:

2021 2020

BT B F T

HKs’000 HKS$'000

308 Within 30 days 54,302 19,468
31260H 31-60 days 19,672 10,796
61290H 61-90 days 18,150 14,583
i@ 90 H Over 90 days 18,414 18,371
110,538 63,218

72021128318 ' EBHERBIE At 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of the
B R e FE R B BR e D AT L R TS past due but not impaired insurance receivable was

summarised as follows:

2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS$'000

2 iR HR Past due
90 HA Within 90 days 20,034 4,451
#Bi®90 H Over 90 days 957 809
20,991 5,260
RNEE D 8 B A K 8 HA e WRIR The Group has individually evaluated the recoverability
) AT M (B 14 AR L (B BRSP4 8 1 of those debtors with overdue receivable and
AMRGEHFNEEEERFELEFER considered no impairment is required after taking into
BRBBAERME ° account the credit quality and historical settlement

pattern of the individual counterparty.
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BRREE 21 REINSURANCE ASSETS
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
HIRBAE(EREEE  Reinsurers’share of insurance liabilities
(7ff825) (Note 25) 12,765 8,135

BREBARNAEERSRE D NS
MR (B R R SKIR I AR I BRI B B N e
R o ARIAEF ARB UK (FE#20)
m o

EE&RENEFaMKEL
=2

22

The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.
They are included in insurance receivable (Note 20).

CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE

2021 2020

BT T JBMEF T

HK$’000 HKS’000

NERERER Micro credit business

BEREXK Guaranteed loans 113,362 154,741
EIRERK Secured loans 81,254 92,750
LI LIERER Pledged and guaranteed loans 11,750 11,410
IR - EIMLERER  Secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 4,651 4,516
PEEREMNEFER  Credit-impaired loans to customers 211,017 263,417
DEEREMREYFE  Credit-impaired interest receivable 9,195 12,003
220,212 275,420
B ZE Impairment allowances (202,233) (254,386)
17,979 21,034
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22 EEaRBENEFPEaMKREER

MR (48)

EHERAENBEFTENNEREERS
B (2EERE) OREEFENE SN

22 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement of impairment allowances recognised
at amounts equal to lifetime ECLs (credit-impaired) was

N as follows:
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
m1A1H At 1 January 254,386 252,160
[EH =58 Translation differences 6,562 15,073
EEFEERRRDLE @ Credited to current year’s income statement (a) (5,750) (9,404)
ZHEEEEREN Write-off of credit-impaired
BEZAEAZE (b) loans principal (b) (47,382) -
ZIHEEERER Write-off of credit-impaired
FEULFI & (b) interest receivable (b) (2,313) -
HAib Other (3,270) (3,443)
M12A31H At 31 December 202,233 254,386

(@) BEBEAEFKEE
& 7T (20204F : B %

B2 R RE B 1,200.8

1,465.98 t) m &

O] 5 (B &5 18 78 15 902 B JT (2020 4 « B
1,284.7 B70) A RAFEHENREINAEE
1B 327 87T (20204 : B34435 1)

HYFEREE o

M2021F 128318 -

EEERENEF

BERRERAENEmEEARKS58285
BT (5EB%7133.887T) (20204F © A
R¥e674728 70 SEEHS,01918 L)

MR EERARKS

#5,335.9& ) (2020

B SEBE5915.

35068 0 (5EB
F: ARK49774
787T) HIERAW

HERF FRAERXSHBEENRIRSE
SNEE BB S 327 8 7T (20204F ¢ B
344387T) - NEEBEAZEMEFEEZ
ZSRHAEERBROARE 46898 T (5
BB 1,797.987T) (2020 : AR 1,769.8
BT FEBK2103487T) °

ANER B0 6 AR 31 B OB R e JE LRI B0

#4,969.5 87T (20204 : ) - B EFE
TMERACDRBABRETBRE B AEBK
BUERITHRAEBARTNEEERENE
RECBERTFEREMNBRERNS - FA
ZHMWERE R R EWRF B E NS

FERBIBITH -

AEBEYMBEREE
AREEFEFR - BE
AAMDAEETTH e

228

HAER B
SHWA AR

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The amount represented a net balance of a reversal of
impairment allowance of HK$9,020,000 (2020: HK$12,847,000)
due to settlement of the outstanding balance of HK$12,008,000
(2020: HK$14,659,000) by customers and an additional
impairment of HK$3,270,000 (2020: HK$3,443,000) for the year.

At 31 December 2021, there are credit-impaired loans to
customers and interest receivable with gross carrying amount
of RMB58,285,000 (equivalent to HK$71,338,000) (2020:
RMB67,472,000, equivalent to HK$80,191,000) and impairment
allowance of RMB43,596,000 (equivalent to HK$53,359,000)
(2020: RMB49,774,000, equivalent to HK$59,157,000) being
pledged by properties of borrowers and an impairment
allowance provided was HK$3,270,000 (2020: HK$3,443,000) for
these related loans during the year. The Group has the rights
on these properties to repay these remaining outstanding
exposures of approximately RMB14,689,000 (equivalent
to HK$17,979,000) (2020: RMB17,698,000, equivalent to
HK$21,034,000).

During the year, the Group wrote off loan receivable and
interest receivable of HK$49,695,000 (2020: nil) as there
was information indicating that the borrowers are in severe
financial difficulty and there was no realistic prospect of
recovery after the Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the credit-impaired loans. The contractual
amount of loans and interest receivable that were written-off
during the year are still subject to enforcement activity.

The Group have commenced legal proceedings against
all the borrowers of credit-impaired loans. At the
reporting date, legal proceedings are still in progress.
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BRATFEBEBEGZYIRAMEE 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
aF THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BAFAE At fair value
TR EE Equity securities listed on
B8 22 BT Stock Exchange 7,129 4,041
RN EEHEZ ST Shenzhen Stock Exchange 1,399 -
FEFEAEZ ST Shanghai Stock Exchange 2,160 -
FTREES Investment funds listed on
B2 P Stock Exchange 9,167 5,576
RAEBEIRITFR () Principal-guaranteed structured
bank deposits (a) 663,260 318,319
BHISmE At quoted price
FELTEREES (b) Unlisted investment funds (b) 59,882 42,042
742,997 369,978
@ A ATFBEANME TRITES (@ The amount represented fixed-term and
R EEER MR A EEMHERITER principal-guaranteed structured bank deposits of
AR 541908 70 (2020 1 AR approximately RMB541.9 million (2020: RMB267.83
26,783 8B7T) © million) issued by certain banks in Mainland China.
B2021F 128318 AEBEFES At 31 December 2021, the Group held principal-
MBERRER (BEAREEMNESE guaranteed structured bank deposits with a
DRI BITHRAEBMRITE fair value of approximately RMB168.05 million
HAFEARE 16,8058 T (ZELD (equivalent to approximately HK$205.69 million)
7B #£20,5695% 1) (2020412 A318: (31 December 2020: RMB$5 million, equivalent to
AR¥5008 7T - FEKEK94E8 approximately HK$5.94 million) issued by XIB and
JT) ° CYB respectively, both are associated financial
institutions of the Group.
(b) FHSBEARNEEERTAERPEAM (b) The amount represented unlisted investment

REBEELMIRERSD - ZRFRER
P RIART M ARKEEHE -

funds subscribed by the Group in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. These investment funds are in
United States Dollars and Renminbi respectively.
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26 WERRITER

(a)

MR2021F12A31H AEEH
BITHEFHFEFEN T 0.01% (f#
EEF) £4.18% (20204 : 0.01%
Z=4.18%) °

REENRE MBTEFEBREA
REFBNERHAREK57,794
BT (S EYB70,7378 L)
(2020%F : HARM 79,3828 T -
ZEHNHEME43458TT) - B T
Be MRTTHEGFEZUETEHE -

BIBEREEXEERNHATE  H
EEN—RE2EMNBRAABEER
B F L E A BE DB 1,600
ETNESU [RBREEERER
MERBRERAT | EH B AR
BFHRERETEF - 12021 F 12
A31H BEREREE—RIR
T REEEEREFRERR
BRAR] BEGTHEE1,6008
JC (20204 © 7B #1,6008 L) B
TEHEFAFTEBEBARTE - %M
BAR MG R 1,8438 T
(ZELHB1,7898 ) RBK
6,247 BT (2020 4F : JBFI¥E 1,539
BT SELYEE1,4948BTTUAK
#4203 8 7T) WERITFE AR
BBRPCRBEREEZBE) BT
FRIE o

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(a)

Bank balances of the Group carried interest at
market rates which ranged from 0.01% (savings
account) to 4.18% (2020: 0.01% to 4.18%) per
annum at 31 December 2021.

Included in the cash and bank balances of
the Group are RMB denominated deposits of
approximately RMB577.94 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$707.37 million) (2020:
approximately RMB793.82 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$943.45 million). The
remaining cash and bank balances are primarily
denominated in HKD.

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance
Authority, Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, shall maintain at all times a portion
of its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as
a statutory deposit. At 31 December 2021, Min
Xin Insurance has placed fixed deposits of HK$16
million (2020: HK$S16 million) in the name of
“Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for
fulfillment of such requirements. That subsidiary
has also maintained bank deposits of MOP18.43
million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.89
million) and HK$62.47 million (2020: MOP15.39
million, equivalent to approximately HK$14.94
million, and HK$42.03 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance.
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24 RERIRTETF (18)

(c)

M2020F12 8318 BHE XD
AR 2018 F & 7] M B KB MU 1K
o —RE2EMBARCEHRE
= FHIRTHERA R 20,0008
TT (HEAEM 23,7708 7T) &
FERTRARBEAME KT
EZ D TTEBUEREITAT
EANERERE  BREER
BEEMEEB41%NRITERER
FRNESERRITER - B3H
FIBEWERERE 28(b) A ©

BEES—REBITHAZAERR
AN—XRE2EMBARIERTIEA
SHRRBPEHBRRARARX
mANERERENER B
2021 F12A31B 22 B W B
NEIEHFA—F 1,508 T
(20204 : B ¥ 15158 L) W IR
TEERERERFENERR

24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

()

At 31 December 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary
has pledged its three-year bank deposit of
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$237.7 million) to a branch of the lending
bank in Mainland China for the issuance of a
standby letter of credit in favour of the lending
bank pursuant to the requirements of the loan
facilities, entered into by the Company in 2018.
During the year, the bank deposit, which carried
fixed interest rate of 4.1%, was released by the
lending bank upon the repayment of the loan.
Details of the loan were disclosed in Note 28(b).

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of
credit issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of
a reinsurance company that has entered into the
Non-life Reinsurance Facility with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, that wholly-owned
subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of HK$15
million (2020: HK$15.15 million) as a collateral for
the standby letter of credit at 31 December 2021.
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EEHRREEE BRAAEEALCDE
EERERRENEECHRBH AR
1BER M A ALY O] TR

25 RIBBHEINBRRERE 25 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS
2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
EH Gross
D2HRERIBLFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
EH expenses 41,099 18,008
BEAEAEREE Claims incurred but not reported 51,172 42,339
92,271 60,347
KimERE Unearned premiums 88,330 67,095
7R v A R e B 4 Unexpired risks provision 1,774 1,774
REETHEE £5 Total insurance liabilities, gross 182,375 129,216
B REARIE Recoverable from reinsurers
BEMRENIBLFARE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
== expenses (4,884) (2,540)
BEAEREFREE Claims incurred but not reported (4,652) (3,138)
(9,536) (5,678)
RmERE Unearned premiums (3,229) (2,457)
BRBAEGERBEE  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
BmE (GEE21) liabilities (Note 21) (12,765) (8,135)
HE Net
BEE2ERREKRIELFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
=4 expenses 36,215 15,468
PEABERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 46,520 39,201
82,735 54,669
RmERE Unearned premiums 85,101 64,638
A v B B 8 Unexpired risks provision 1,774 1,774
REBEFEE FE Total insurance liabilities, net 169,610 121,081

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net

of expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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25 WMREHNKBRIREE (18)

(a) REERIBRAEEHEE

25 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment

expenses
2021 2020
| BRRE k| 8 BliRk it
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

(&5) (&5) (85)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

M1A18
FRAREEN
MERE
EEEm/ (BD)
EFELRE
AFELRE
BELBRER
EESNE

R128318

RE=

EELERER

R12A831H

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 1 January

Cash paid for claims settled
during the year

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Arising from current year claims

Arising from prior year claims

Movement in provision for claims
incurred but not reported

At 31 December

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 31 December

BRI BEFr  BETn | BT BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
18,008 (2,540) 15,468 11,122 (5) mnz
42,339 (3,138) 39,201 28,620 (7,359) 21,261
60,347 (5,678) 54,669 39,742 (7,364) 32,378
(23,512) 3,167 (20,345) (13,189) 1,018 (12,171)
17,355 (1,457) 15,898 13,036 (2,155) 10,881
29,248 (4,054) 25,194 7,039 (1,398) 5641
8,833 (1,514) 7,319 13,719 4,221 17,940
92,271 (9,536) 82,735 60,347 (5,678) 54,669
41,099 (4,884) 36,215 18,008 (2,540) 15,468
51,172 (4,652) 46,520 42,339 (3138) 39,201
92,271 (9,536) 82,735 60,347 (5678) 54,669
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25 RIBRESHNIKBRREE () 25 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) KRimHAREERBTEE (b) Movement in provision for unearned
premiums
2021 2020
I8 BRE BE et ARk it
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

(&5) (&5) (851)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

BRTr BT BEFr | EE¥Fr BETr BETrT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

M AR At 1 January 67,095 (2,457) 64,638 47,023 (1,612) 45,611
FREN,/ (D) Increase/(decrease) during the year 196,155 (19,532) 176,623 160,862 (14,934) 145,928
FRED Release during the year (174,920) 18,760 (156,160) (140,990) 14,089 (126,901)
R12A31H At 31 December 88,330 (3,229) 85,101 67,095 (2,457) 64,638
AmEREERES RN 2 HEAREEE Provision for unearned premiums represented the
EEEHARIBENEERRAEINE liabilities for short-term insurance contracts for which
£ the Group’s obligations are not expired at the reporting

date.
(c) FRimHARI R E R T 28 (c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks
2021 2020
2 BRE #E ] ARk FE
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

B¥Fr  ERFr  ERFL | EETT EETT AR
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000 |  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000

m1A1H At 1 January 1,774 - 1,774 905 - 905
FREI/ (D) Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - 869 - 869
M12A31R At 31 December 1,774 - 1,774 1,774 - 1774
Rom Bl B e S B AR R B TR A A B The provision for unexpired risks related to the
ERRBLEERRREEESNRR insurance contracts for which the Group expected
SHEH# - to pay claims in excess of the related provision for

unearned premiums.

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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26 IRIBFERTHR 26 INSURANCE PAYABLE

2021512 A31 B » REBER AR At 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of the
oM (REZEAE) #hnT insurance payable by invoice date was summarised as

follows:
2021 2020
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
30HA Within 30 days 32,107 8,998
31260H 31-60 days 10,456 5,879
61£90H 61-90 days 4,391 7,855
i@ o0 H Over 90 days 12,412 8,403
59,366 31,135

27 THE&E 27 LEASE LIABILITIES
72021512 A31 B - HIEMAEMFH At 31 December 2021, the remaining contractual
WEMNFHE O HABMET - maturity profile of the present value of the minimum
lease payments was summarised as follows:

2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
E—FNRN Within 1 year 230 65
ZR—FEIRME More than 1 year but less than 2 years 248 -
ZRMEBIREF More than 2 years but less than 5 years 585 -
1,063 65

W BRERRRBAEAN  Less: Amount due within 1 year
—FRE IR included in current liabilities (230) (65)
833 —
BAREERENME TG EERF The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
& E23E (2020F : N F35FB F3.7 applied to lease liabilities was 2.3% (2020: ranged from

[E) e 3.5% to 3.7%).
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28 FRITHEM 28 BANK BORROWINGS
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
REIRITE Long-term bank loans
B - ABITTABEL (b) Secured, in Hong Kong dollars (b) | - - 199,983
—FHRRD HRERTTE 3K One-year short-term bank loans
BHEA - LUBTTAER () Secured, in Hong Kong dollars (¢) | . 248,802 | . -
IRITIRIRE R Revolving bank loans
BHEMA - LUBTTASEM () Secured, in Hong Kong dollars (c) 87,890 111,600
mIEH - DUBTTREN (d) Unsecured, in Hong Kong dollars (d) 160,616 60,000
______ 248,506 | 171,600
497,308 371,583
B BERRBA BN Less: Amounts due within one year
—FREIHRFIE included in current liabilities (497,308) (371,583)
(@ MREBEEFHAENEEEKA (@) All outstanding amount of the bank loans will
B FARITERBESR —F mature and is payable within one year based on
WEH R EE - the scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan facilities.
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28 FRfTEK (£8)

(b)

RITERAEKRQATR2018FEBE
B-RIBTIRIAE B FEER
R AR(EE LG o

ZTEBEFRAERBITRAFRER
HME—RPTEENERERE
EERBUBITARRMERE
T ZERERERARRRRE
B —KR2EWERRH
o F2020512A318 0 % M
BRREEHR —SE=FHRTE
HARBE 20,0008 70 (HEL)BE
23,7708 7T) TEKRBRITHAFER
HE—KD1T RARERFR
HEEEREH  1R2021F12
A31 BB HEREESHER -

Z T HERHFE
¥RBNMBE
|

313 :158)

MRAR % 8 FRBEE B R R - RN A 7
AR ERR A RE AR &G
REERNMG R (FREZNE
#) BARRARDBITERAT IR
35% M) B i

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

The bank loan represented the outstanding
balance of a floating rate term loan obtained from
a bank in Hong Kong by the Company in 2018.

The term loan was secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by a branch of the lending
bank in Mainland China for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations. The
standby letter of credit was applied by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland
China. That subsidiary has pledged a three-year
bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$237.7 million) to the branch
of the lending bank in Mainland China at 31
December 2020. The Company has fully repaid
the outstanding balance of the loan during the
year and the bank deposit was released by the
lending bank at 31 December 2021.

The term loan bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate was 1.2% (31 December 2020: 1.5%)
per annum at maturity date.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
Company shall procure FIDG to maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 35% beneficial
interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility.
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28 iR

(©)

IS {H xh

Te®m (8)

ZEBRITEFIUN—RE2ENEAR
ABABURESNERAREEREY
FUEERR  ZEAWER2021F
12 A31 B RE FEL B 889
B (2020 : BEE9I5EIL) o B
202112 A31 8 ZWEDNA T
B A& 7 29,0008 7T (20204 :
129,000 B 7T) °

ZERITEROF BB BRIT
REFENMBEZEFTE  1K20214F
12A318 ' ZSEERITERE
HOEBRFEFNENFT21EE22
JE (2020 : 2.2[E) °

IR % L SR 1T 18 SRR AV IR R
ARRAEREREREREAR
REZLIRITERBE A AR (&
WEZEEE) HREARREET
PR B 35% B B 23 1 o S B
BYHARRITE (EmEELH
&) EEIEHIRES o

ZERBITERASERR A B
BEEBRITAEFEME Z5T
020215128318 %ER
MEBRFEMEA2.1E (2020 : 2.3
[E) o

RIFZERRITEREEDO K
B RARRAGRERBRERES
BANZERRITEREEHAR
M (BERERLER) BAEAR
AEHTRATDR51% M E o
Rt MR HARRIITE (B
k) EEERIED -

{5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

()

These bank loans were secured by the self-
use office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value
of approximately HK$8.89 million (2020: HK$9.15
million) at 31 December 2021. The fair value of
the property was HK$290 million (2020: HK$290
million) at 31 December 2021.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
effective interest rates ranged from 2.1% to 2.2%
(2020: 2.2%) per annum at 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the terms of these bank loan facilities,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of
the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of
these bank loan facilities.

The revolving bank loan was unsecured, bore
interest at a spread over Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and the effective interest rate was
2.1% (2020: 2.3%) per annum at 31 December
2021.

Pursuant to the terms of the revolving bank
loan facility, the Company shall procure FIDG
to maintain (whether directly or indirectly) not
less than 51% beneficial interest in the issued
share capital of the Company and have the
power to exercise (whether directly or indirectly)
management control over the Company during
the tenor of the revolving bank loan facility.
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29 EIRERRER

ARER2019F A EFRVEEEHE
20,0008 T ([BREER]) - B
BaZmigs  WEREREASBHEER
BN (i) RIERMERBEHtm12A 8 B
BEBE 50008 7T : (i) RIEEVERH
Bistm24 M8 A& H{EEB®5,000& 7T :
K Gii) Rl E R HSstm36 @A E
H{EE B 10,0008 7T °

JERERAEET LT EEIEATE
RITRZEFE 21 EE - R2021 45
12A318 BMEREFHNERFNZR A
24JE (2020 : 25[F) ©
FARRERNBBIE S T BB
2898 7T (2020 : BH# 5838 L) » MA
202112 A31 HWABEEMSF B &S
148 7T (2020 : BEE28T) °

RIFHHMENEMEREE  RRE
RSB EALT

29 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDER

The Company drew down a floating rate term loan of
HK$200 million (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) from Vigour
Fine in 2019. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
the Shareholder’s Loan shall be repayable by
instalment, namely (i) HK$50 million on the date falling
12 months after the drawdown date; (ii) HK$50 million
on the date falling 24 months after the drawdown date;
and (iii) HK$100 million on the date falling 36 months
after the drawdown date.

The Shareholder’s Loan was unsecured and bore
interest at three-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2.1%. The effective interest rate was 2.4%
(2020: 2.5%) per annum at 31 December 2021.

The related interest expense of the Shareholder’s Loan
was HK$2.89 million (2020: HK$5.83 million) for the
year and the related interest payable was HK$0.14
million (2020: HK$0.22 million) at 31 December 2021.

The maturity profile of the principal of Shareholder’s
Loan based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the agreement was summarised as follows:

2021 2020
BT T B F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE—FN Within 1 year 100,000 50,000
ZR—FERWEN More than 1 year but within 2 years - 100,000
100,000 150,000
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30

EIEES

IRFE PRSI

BEAMSHRAABEINEREZRIES
5 0 18 89 B % 16.5% (2020 4F : 16.5%)
T A B A a5 T A9 R 2 25% (2020 F ¢
25%) TER B - B B A ERFN A
EMNEAEREPHBEAERYE @
BEIEFTIS TN R — B ISR R — (&
ERTEEE « IR REFS T & E
BEEFSHBEL A -

EILFSRAE / (B1E) HE BN
mT

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2020: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2021 2020

EBEFT JEMT T

HK$'000 HKS’000

®1A1H At 1 January (60,871) (35,925)

JE W =58 Translation differences (1,049) 6
EEFEERSRIE Deferred income tax charged to

IR E PT1SEL current year's income statement (1,523) (24,952)

M12H831H At 31 December (63,443) (60,871)

BEFTBREE YA EABREF =R
BRI REE B AR ERBOEF IR Mt AT
EENTIBERR - 1£20214F 12 A 31
B AEBERERNA AR KE
R E M 1B 408 ¥ 5.04 18T (2020
F QB8 ETT) - MBI WER
H o

EHBFR7AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profits
is probable. At 31 December 2021, the Group did not
recognise tax losses of approximately HK$504 million
(2020: approximately HK$410 million) that can be
carried forward against future taxable profits and have
no expiry date.
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30 IEEPRISHR (18)

RENBLEMSEHREENABENED
(B[R —EA [ ) AE R SE AT ) Bt gn

—

BEIEFRSREE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the
same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was
summarised as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

NERERER BELTM
REMEER RIRRE BATERBRZIE
Accelerated tax (E17) feREELTERER
depreciation Proposed dividend  Fair value adjustment
and revaluation of of associate for financial assets ag
investment properties (Note 17) measured at FVPL Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
BRFL | BETT | BETFL | BEFr | BETR | BETL | BRFL | BEFr
HKS'000 |  HKS'000 | HKS$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000
M ATE At 1 January 37,628 3169 | 35019 16,076 (95) - 72,552 47,774
EHEE Translation differences - (1) 1,045 - 4 - 1,049 (1)
EEERRAER (Credited)/charged to current years
(328) /1B income statement (13,796) 5931 4,891 18,943 522 - (8,383)| 24874
R12A318 At 31 December 23832 37628| 40955 35019 431 S| es218| 7247
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30 RIEPAER (8) 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
FIEFTSME E Deferred income tax assets
BATEEBBRIIE
HEMEELTERE
Fair value adjustment
EtER for financial assets Fob) @i
Accrued expenses  measured at FVPL Tax losses Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
BRI | BT | BETR | BT | BEFL | BT | BEFR | BETT
HKS'000 |  HKS'000 | HKS$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000
M A1HE At 1 January (149) (188) - (330)] (11,532) (11,331)f (11,681) (11,849)
EXER Translation differences - - - 5) - n - 5)
EEERERE (Credited)/charged to current year's
(328 /4% income statement (170) 39 - 240 | 10,076 (201) 9,906 78
R12A31H At 31 December (319) (149) - (95| (1,456)| (11,532)|  (1,775)| (11,776)

242
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IEFRSR (18)

EFABSEEREMEHEERAR
% THleBELEMBRRRAS
e

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
are shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

2021 2020
BT JBMEF T
HKS’000 HKS'000
EEFEHREE Deferred income tax assets 19 170
EEFREHREaE Deferred income tax liabilities (63,462) (61,041)
(63,443) (60,871)
ShhkFERESE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) RRIN (a) Share capital
2021 2020
RB&#E BETFT R17EH BT T
No. of shares HK$’000| No. of shares HKS'000
ERTRBZRAE Ordinary shares, issued
ZER and fully paid 597,257,252 1,715,377 | 597,257,252 1,715,377

RIFE CRRMEDG]) 5135 16 -
PR D I SR (E ©

RRFEE

BERFA AR KEE T KK
B WEARBNERAE LRERE
—ENRER - BT BREBROBEAR
ARG EERA R LR -

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not
have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the shareholders of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
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31 ERKEEE (&)
(b) REEOEBRAR

i)

ZEREE

EERFBEIREE

—HE AT REBRE CRFIER
T RREE R AVARBIR) (R E A
BAR AR D EAEERHER ©

— R E S B RIR B R BB
THR(ERPELEFSFIREE
PE) (B4 2012 209%) s 89—
WEH - Z—REBEATNBS
BRpE I+ W 1E 2 IR R o AR AR &0
53+ FB LA SR 4 18 R Al o A9 8 TE R
B/E518 -

—RXBECREBRERTESR
B I B AR E I AR B 0 A B Y
EEME -

2 TH MR B i M B I 1F — AR

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

lii)

Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
associated financial institution from its retained
profits in accordance with the Financial System
Act of Macau.

General reserve established and maintained
within shareholders’ equity of an associated
financial institution pursuant to Caijin 2012 No.
20 “Regulation on Management of Financial
Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
Finance. The general reserve was established
through the appropriation of income to cover
unidentified potential impairment losses.

Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.

General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.



31

in ORI R R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ankiEEE (8)

(b) fGEtRENHEERAE ()
liii) BN EE

BENfER B

- 2000 FF1ATBULARIRMERS G
REEBERNRMEENTER
AEERERKEENTHNE
E -BERKARABENAFFE
SRR EREEE

- BEQRNMEKERBSE MK
RN E AR RTE T AR B i A B A
HEEAXL:

- EEBEARNETEHERER
[ YNGE S O RN S
DETEY

livl 2 FlEREE (TBR)

NP EFES (JER) BRENR2%RH
AEFARAFEFAEMEZEAKEE
MEBREN RS A FEZHFE (1
BARBRIETR A ) -

vl R FEREE (NIER)

NPEFRES (TAER) BREREZR
HARFAERAFEFARMEZEE S
AFENRERENRF A FERZEFE
(FURARBDEIER A ) -

31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

liii] Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

(iv]

goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of business combination and the
investments in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

capitalisation of retained profits and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of associates and their
subsidiaries;

share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in
their subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control.

Fair value reserve [recycling)

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

vl

Fair value reserve [non-recycling]

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.
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31

32

ERKFES (88)

(b) RBENEERARE (8)
Wil THERFERREGE
HEEEEMREECREHEERME
TERYMEETOBAKREYWENBR
ELHATESDFE -

Wiil] JENEFEE

SNENTE EE S BIEBREBINKTE A R]
LEERNRMPBEREREARARNFZEWRE
MEHEENTEERY =% -

TR

R2021F12 A31 B » KNEBE M E K
TN

31

32

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

lvi] Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii] Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments as follows:

SEIEES T
— M BERERS

%

— B

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Contracted but not provided for
- properties, plant and equipment/
investment properties 203 197
- computer software

2021 2020
BT B FT
HK$°000 HK$'000

203 247
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33 MHEIAIE 33 LEASE COMMITMENTS

B A

MR2021F12 8318 KEBERETA]
TS B 48 B T PR 7R 2R FE UK ER 9 SR K
MEMNZWT :

As lessor

At 31 December 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
BT JBEF T
HK$’000 HKs'000

5 b EE Land and buildings
E—FNA Within one year 9,244 9,759
E_F In the second year 7,274 7,719
£g= In the third year 6,516 5,936
Eapiges In the fourth year 6,961 5,952
FRHF In the fifth year 6,931 6,912
FNERAE In the sixth year and thereafter 12,672 19,584
49,598 55,862

AEBHENEEMENHEFHE—
FENFEAE  HEHANEES HEE
B e

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out
by the Group range from one to eight years and with
fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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34 REBIREMESRHEE 34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) MRiANAMNMKESFEENIRE (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
MA R 2R H R net cash inflow from operations
2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
75 AT v ) Profit before taxation 509,973 472,187
A Adjustments for:
e NG E 2 Share of results of associates (461,225) (446,931)
wEYEELATEKSE  Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties (5,223) (13,698)
HrE N i Depreciation and amortisation 2,096 1,923
BECDEERENER Write back of impairment loss on
BERNERTE credit-impaired loans to customers
BEEE and interest receivable (5,750) (9,404)
NS Loss on dilution of interest in an
WESEREE associate - 28,746
HEWHE - MBEREE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
518 equipment 21 125
FEHA Interest income (27,824) (38,232)
EEERENEFPER Interest income from credit-impaired
HBUA loans to customers (7,153) (4,460)
e Interest expenses 11,632 14,326
WA FEBBIEZEHIES  Net realised and unrealised gains
THEENEERR on financial assets at fair value
IR FEB through profit or loss (14,996) (2,822)
P 5 e 58 Net exchange gains (3,644) (6,141)
REESZHBENR Changes in working capital:
IR IEEAE Ak AN 12 0 Increase in deferred acquisition costs (9,518) (11,535)
IRER FE U R A Increase in insurance receivable (47,320) (40,193)
BREEE (38) /H  (Increase)/decrease in reinsurance assets (4,630) 841
EEERENEFER Decrease in credit-impaired loans to
R SR Bk customers and interest receivable 12,670 14,099
H A fEUBR SR - TR Increase in other debtors, prepayments
NiRe and deposits (9,723) (1,885)
RERA 49380 Increase in insurance contracts 53,159 41,346
IRER FE A 38 A0 Increase in insurance payable 28,231 14,988
E BRI R BT (Decrease)/increase in other creditors and
B L) /12 accruals (10,911) 3,783
KEEBIR G TR AR Net cash inflow from operations 9,865 17,063
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) FEPRAREETEHELS (b) Changes in the Group’s liabilities and
BRIKIPRTIERONE S pledged deposit arising from financing
15 BIEIB S RIEINSET activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes
2021 2020
ERRR BERR
L it £ it
BOER Lonfomthe  BEEE  HAFR ERRS POk Lomfomthe  HERE  BARZ EARE
Bank  controlling lease  Pledged  Dividend 8 Bank  controling lease  Pledged  Dividend 8
borrowings  shareholder liabilities bankdeposit  payable Net  borowings shareholder liabilties ~bank deposit payable Net
AEFr  B¥fr BETn BETn BT BEFL| BiEr BT BETr BEFr BSFr B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'00  HKS'00 HKs000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
R At lanary HEE mEE £ e ek e L
BERLNRD Changes from financing
cash flows
BETRRRER  Lonmepdtothe
controlling shareholder (50,000) - - (50,000) - (50,000 - - - (50,000)
REEAET Bankloans obtained 626,49 - - - 6649 1760 - 171,600
BRENER Bank loans repaid (499,590) - - (a995%0)  (60000) - (60,000
SRERESHE  Otherborrowing costs paid (2,298) - 5 5 (2,298) - - - - - -
EEGE Lease payments (245) - - (245), - - (191) - - (191)
Rfihe Dividend paid - (59,726) (59,726) - - - (59,726) (59,726)
EEERRR Pledged deposit released - 4140 - U140 - - B B
BERETED Totalchanges from
28 fancogcashfons | 124608 GOO00) (45)  a4Mo  (ome)  dmeTm| IS0 G 00 - G M
Fais S Non-cash changes:
EizE Translation differences (6,440) - (6,440 - - (14,000) - (14,000)
ERTUEBER  Increase nlease liabltes
ENmEERE from entering into e
lease during the year 1,265 - - 1,265 - - - -
BV Dividend declared - 59,726 59,726 - - 59,726 59,726
( Amortisation of other
borrowing costs mm ] - - - 1,159 18 57 15
s Lease terminated 2) - - (22), - - -
BsEeLE Total non-cash changes o 1,11? 777777 4 2 o 1,2}13 o 7[9,474(71) o 75?,7}@ o 75?,6}3@ 777777 H} 777777 SZ o 7(1},909) o 75?,?2@ o 7415,&}01
M2A318 At 31 December 497,308 99,985 1,063 - - 598,356 371,583 149943 65 (237,700) - 283,891
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35 BRI X%

BRI AER S M R B B D RSN
AEBAELTEBEENETHEKRE
BOTXZWENT :

(@) F2021F12A318 KREB &
GFRER - SR EBIR (2IAEK
SENEE QR NFREFHEE
19,942 B 7T (2020 £F : 751 34,802
BT c WEBFRHFEN—RE
EANERGFE  AEERFAHL
FRIEAMFBRAABEE 6128 T
(20204 : BEE1,14987T) ©

b) RFEAN XEE—XRZ2EMBA
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(a)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associates of
the Group, totalling HK$199.42 million (2020:
HK$348.02 million). These deposits carried
interest at normal commercial rates and had
generated interest income of HK$6.12 million
(2020: HK$11.49 million) to the Group during the
year.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
underwrote insurance policies with gross
insurance premiums less discounts of HK$4.87
million (2020: HK$5.12 million) to the associated
financial institutions of the Group at prices and
terms not less favourable than those contracted
with other third party customers of the Group
during the year. That subsidiary also paid
commissions of HK$13.03 million (2020: HK$9.77
million) to an associated financial institution for
business referred to the Group during the year.

Key management personnel
The senior executives’ emoluments for the year

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are detailed
as follows:

2021 2020

BT T JBEMEF T

HKS’000 HKS’000

EEHe Directors’ fees 970 970
TIE - BEENEH/M  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

EELANREYHFZ  and benefits in kind 5,912 5,585
RINEFETZIER  Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 926 926
i Bonus 4,055 4,055

11,033 10,706
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

BT of the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2021 2020
(&%)
(Restated)
BT B F T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
W - B R RE Property, plant and equipment 3,974 1,412
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 4,708 2,121
KEME Investment properties 61,075 63,929
MEA A Subsidiaries 1,478,144 1,458,646
= /N] Associates 972,776 972,776
BAFEFAEMAEE  Financial assets at fair value through
T REE other comprehensive income 805,914 361,001
H b i W AR K Other debtors - 8,546
RITHETF Bank balances = 121,702
3,326,591 | . 2,990,133
REEE Current assets
Hih e IRBR X « EfF3k  Other debtors, prepayments and
NiEg deposits 14,752 2,780
WAFEBEBIEZYIE  Financial assets at fair value through
e mEE profit or loss 9,606 9,160
FEW—KMIBATAE  Dividend receivable from a subsidiary = 4,500
e RIBITERF Cash and bank balances 196,187 47,091
,,,,,, 220,545 | 63,531
REBEE Current liabilities
HibER BRI KR FEZTE A Other creditors and accruals 17,233 17,258
HEEE Lease liabilities 2,618 -
RITIER Bank borrowings 497,308 371,583
IR E R Loan from the controlling shareholder 99,985 49,958
e AR ERFR IR Current income tax payable 25,616 24,874
,,,,,, 642,760 | 463,673
REBEEFE Net current liabilites [ (422,215) | (400,142)
BEERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 2,904,376 2,589,991
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36 MraEiRRE (88) 36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
2021 2020
(25)
(Restated)
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
SRR E Loan from the controlling shareholder = 99,985
EIEFASFEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 20,975 21,026
_______ 20,975 | 121,011
EEZEHE Net assets 2,883,401 2,468,980
£ Equity
A& 2 Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377
HEmFEES Other reserves 584,868 139,955
1REB & ) Retained profits 583,156 613,648
R Total equity 2,883,401 2,468,980
BR1E YAN Zheng
E Director
BRF CHEN Yu
E Director
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Information on the movement of the total equity

N during the year is as follows:
Aftffae

_ Otherreserves

AYE HERE Aft

REE  EfiRED e
(FUER) Leasehold EE RRER
R& Fair value buildings Total REEF g
Share reserve  revaluation other Retained Total
capital (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity
(E3) (Z7)
(Restated) (Restated)
BEFT BETT AEFT AEFT AEFT AEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B2020%F1A18 At 1 January 2020 1,715,377 199,957 2,340 202,297 638,274 2,555,948
KEEEN Profit for the year - - - - 35,100 35,100
2k Other comprehensive income - (62,342) - (62,342) - (62,342)
RE Dividend - - - - (59,726) (59,726)
2020124318 At 31 December 2020 1,715,377 137,615 2,340 139,955 613,048 2,468,980
M2021E1A18 At 1 January 2021 1,715,377 137,615 2,340 139,955 613,648 2,468,980
KERRF Profit for the year - - - - 29,234 29,234
B2 EhE Other comprehensive income - 444,913 - 444,913 - 444,913
RE Dividend - - - = (59,726) (59,726)
R2021512A318  At31December 2021 1,715,377 582,528 2,340 584,868 583,156 2,883,401
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EXRBEEEATE

B AR -

SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group.

iR EETR A%5E
BEny BRBAFE bR

Place of Particulars Group's FEEH

incorporation of issued and equity Principal

INTES] Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
B#RE Directly held

SERRERAR Dorfine Development Limited ) 2R (B%27T) 100% ES

Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment

BREGREERAR Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd. hE ARLAE BhER 100% REER

(74%1,010,536,2007C)
The People’s Paid-in capital Investment holding
Republic of China (HK$1,010,536,200)

AERBRARAT Min Xin Insurance Company Limited &% 55008k 100% (R

(B%B235(ET) —RiRBER

Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general

(HK$235 million) insurance business

ST =TRER ) EEH Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin hE ARLAE EWER 100% R NEER

ARAR) Micro Credit Company Limited (AR¥3%1) REFEDER

The People’s Paid-in capital Provision of

Republic of China (RMB300 million) micro credit and

entrusted loans

ABERAR Take Chance Company Limited % 2R (B%27) 100% ES

Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment

REBEARAT Thousand Limited B 1R (B%17) 100% RARK

Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) Investment holding

TRgRERAR Welljet Development Limited ) 2R (B%27) 100% ES

Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
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39

M2021F12 A30H - AQ A E—
RIRTTEF —DERBE - %R
TREMARAREERAER
= N HB BB 20,0008 TR B
BE - ERMEBRNZRITAR
HANEREREEER - B2
wAK%  ARERBR—ZZ=FH
& 7E F = 7F H & 308 % 19,860 &
T MARBEFBEABA—F
2EMBRARAITFEA—SE=ZFHIR
TER AR 20,000 87T (ZEB
¥ 24,479 B7T) tERBAZRRITAR
mAMERERENERRS -

REBREE  AARRETEHE
& Eh RS B SR AR AL = 2018 FF 12
A 31 Elitfﬁf‘iﬁ’\ﬁ)fﬁgzﬁﬁ,%}\ﬁﬁg
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38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

39

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, a summary of
significant events after the reporting period are
disclosed as follows:

(a)

On 30 December 2021, the Company has entered
into a facility agreement with a bank whereby
the bank has agreed to make available to the
Company a credit facility in a maximum aggregate
amount of up to HK$200 million. The credit
facility was secured by a standby letter of credit
to be issued in favour of the bank. Subsequent to
the reporting date, the Company has drawn down
a three-year fixed rate term loan of HK$198.6
million and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in Mainland China has placed a three-
year bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent
to HK$244.79 million) as a collateral for a standby
letter of credit issued in favour of the bank.

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company
has received the after-tax dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of RMB129.36 million
(equivalent to HK$158.33 million) from XIB, the
major associated financial institution of the
Group.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year's presentation.
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

ANEER2021FE12A31AFBERENE

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for

EYEERFFOT investment as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:
P31 | HaEs
ik 3§ BER
JE%H Group's Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor RERR
fi Location expiry interest area Existing use
Al % Erilisq. ft
1 BRI ERE847-865 % Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 FEES
KEREH T AL 7R85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
ESRENER 1BR2EB the whole of 15t and 2nd floors
ZE Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
) MEARANAEERLEMNT 22/F (excluding partial area of unit no. 1) 2044 100 37,090 mE
A58 FRES 218 and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
(Fem1RE3hER) 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
k3 The People’s Republic of China
3 hEAREAEERERMT Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5207 FEES
AMEI8RN B S T = Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
BAISE4E 428 442 F #48 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China
4 PEARKNERREEMND Unit C2 & D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 2450 frz
EANbEIN 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential

BEQEDET

The People’s Republic of China

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
RESBEABRAF

17th Floor, Fairmont House
8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

BERPRAMKSHRREKRE17IE
Tel TS (852)25215671
Fax {&H : (852) 2530 5488

Website 3t : www.minxin.com.hk
Email EH : mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk
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